
CABINET

GWYNEDD COUNCIL
DATE Tuesday, 16th July, 2019

TIME 1.00 pm

LOCATION Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, 
LL55 1SH

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn
01286 679490
cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS

Members

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader

Dafydd Meurig Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member for Environment

Nia Wyn Jeffreys Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Support

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Community

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Finance

Catrin Elen Wager Cabinet Member for Highways and 
Municipal

Cemlyn Rees Williams Cabinet Member for Education

Complete Agenda



AGENDA

Item Submitted 
by

Officer Page

1  APOLOGIES

2  DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST

3  URGENT ITEMS

4  MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY

5  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
25 MAY

4 - 9

6  PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 
FOR BANGOR

Cyng / Cllr. 
Nia Jeffreys

Catherine 
Roberts

10 - 
35

7  PRIMARY SCHOOL MEAL PRICE 
SEPTEMBER 2019

Cyng / Cllr. 
Cemlyn Rees 
Williams

Bethan 
Griffith

36 - 
38

8  ARFOR INNOVATION FUND Cyng / Cllr. 
Gareth 
Thomas

Sioned 
Williams

39 - 
46

9  HOUSING STRATEGY 2020-21 Cyng / Cllr. 
Craig ab Iago

Arwel Wyn 
Owen

47 - 
89

10  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

Cyng / Cllr. 
Gareth 
Thomas

Sioned 
Williams

90 - 
103

11  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE

Cyng / Cllr. 
Ioan Thomas

Dafydd 
Edwards

104 - 
139

12  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT

Cyng / Cllr. 
Gareth 
Griffith

Dafydd Wyn 
Williams

140 - 
173

13  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS 
AND MUNICIPAL AND GWYNEDD 

Cyng / Cllr 
Catrin Wager

Steffan Jones 174 - 
182



CONSULTANCY

14  PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT'S, 
HEALTH AND WELL-BEING

Cyng / Cllr.  
Dafydd 
Meurig

Aled Davies 183 - 
193

15  FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME Cyng / Cllr 
Dyfrig 
Siencyn

194 - 
195



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

THE CABINET, TUESDAY 25 JUNE 2019

Present -
Councillors: Dyfrig L. Siencyn, Dafydd Meurig, Craig ab Iago, Gareth Wyn Griffith, Nia 
Wyn Jeffreys, Dilwyn Morgan, Gareth Thomas, Ioan Thomas, Catrin Wager and Cemlyn 
Rees Williams

Also present-
Dilwyn Williams (Chief Executive), Iwan Evans (Head of Legal Services), Dafydd 
Edwards (Head of Finance Department), Morwena Edwards (Corporate Director) and 
Annes Sion (Member Support Officer), Geraint Owen (Head of Corporate Support 
Deparment)

Item 6:  Gwenllian Williams (Gwynedd Language Development Officer)
Item 7: Dafydd Gibbard (Senior Property Manager)
Item 8: Dewi Wyn Jones (The Council's Business Support Service Manager)
Items 9 and 10: Arwel Wyn Owen (Senior Housing and Well-being Manager), Gareth 
Wyn Parri (Housing Options Team Leader)
Item 11: Delyth Gadlys Williams (Corporate Policy Officer) 

1. APOLOGIES

Cabinet Members and Officers were welcomed to the meeting.
No apologies were received. 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

There were no declarations of personal interest.

3. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items.

4. MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

There were no matters arising from overview and scrutiny.

5. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chair signed the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 21 May 2019 and 4 
June 2019, as a true record. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

6. ANNUAL REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF WELSH LANGUAGE 
STANDARDS 2018-19

Submitted by Cllr  Nia Jeffreys

DECISION

The Annual Report was approved, and was authorised for publication in 
accordance with Gwynedd Council's Language Standards.

DISCUSSION

The report was presented, noting that it reported on the Council's actions in 
complying with the Welsh Language Commissioner standards in relation to the 
Welsh language. It was noted that the Council far exceeded the Welsh Language 
Commissioner's expected standards, and added that the Council set a standard 
for Wales. It was stated that creating and publishing the report was a 
requirement.

It was added that reporting on any work that ensured compliance, Welsh 
speaking staff members, any training held, complaints, and they way language 
requirements were recorded, were all specific requirements.  

The Welsh Language Development Officer added that the data for the number of 
staff members was complete when the report was published but she confirmed 
that 94% of staff were able to speak Welsh fluently. She emphasised that this 
showed that the Council's recruitment policy was very good. Attention was drawn 
to training data available in Welsh, and it was noted that progress had been 
made in the courses that were available bilingually and in English. It was added 
that the Service would look into this further.

Observations arising from the discussion
 Attention was drawn to the fact that, of the 200 staff members that were 

not fluent in the language, 172 had received further training.
 It was noted, in terms of complaints, that one of the complaints had been 

presented to the Council through the Welsh Language Commissioner. The 
Commissioner's process was outlined, emphasising its potential 
lengthiness. Nevertheless, it was explained that the new Commissioner 
had suggested that the arrangements would be amended in the coming 
years.

 The Dafydd Orwig Award was mentioned, drawing attention specifically to 
the work carried out by the Health, Safety and Well-being Department in 
securing Welsh medium resources for IOSH training.

 It was noted that not all training was available in Welsh, and that this field 
needed to be reviewed in order to identify and create specialist courses in 
some fields.

Page 5



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

7.  MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S SMALLHOLDINGS ESTATE

The report was submitted by Cllr  Gareth Griffith  

DECISION

Resolved to respond to the Communities Scrutiny Committee's conclusions by:
 Supporting the Cabinet Member to establish a County Smallholdings 

Advisory Panel with a clear constitution and a broader terms of reference 
to assist the Cabinet Member with his smallholdings estate management

 To refer any surplus deriving from the estate in future, which was above 
the sum already part of the Service's current revenue budget, to be 
reinvested in the Smallholdings Estate, by using a commercial account 
and a fund allocated to this end. 

DISCUSSION

The report was presented, noting the need to amend the decision after further 
discussions with the Finance Department. It was explained that the request to 
commission work to consider whether there would be any financial benefits to 
establishing a company to manage the smallholdings had to be withdrawn.

It was noted that the Smallholdings Estate had not been reviewed since 2008. It 
was added that the matter had been submitted as a report to the Communities 
Scrutiny Committee. The conclusions of the Scrutiny Committee were 
highlighted, noting the need to establish a single Smallholdings Consultative 
Panel across the County with a constitution and terms of reference, and the right 
for the Service to direct any profit generated by the estate to be reinvested in the 
Smallholdings Estate.

The Senior Property Manager added that the report offered a way forward for the 
Smallholdings Service. The Scrutiny Committee's conclusions were elaborated 
upon, noting that the Service had already acted on the Committee's response 
and had increased the staff resource available to manage the smallholdings.  

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was expressed that the smallholdings provided work and 

accommodation for people who would contribute to maintaining rural 
communities in Wales.

 It was noted that the members were pleased to see the report that 
expressed the opinion of Scrutiny Members. It was added that they 
concurred with the idea of withdrawing the request to set up a 
company for a service that had so few staff members.

 It was emphasised that the wording of the decision had to be 
reconsidered, noting that any surplus derived from the estate would be 
put in a fund earmarked for reinvestment within the smallholdings 
estate.

8.  GWYNEDD COUNCIL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2018/19

Submitted by Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn

Page 6



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

DECISION

The Gwynedd Council Performance Report 2018/19 was approved and 
recommended for adoption by the Full Council. 

DISCUSSION

The report was presented and it was noted that the report would be published in 
which it would track the Council's progress. It was added that the Report 
emphasised the Council's priorities seen in the Council's Plan. Attention was 
drawn to the space in the report where the Foreword by the Leader of Gwynedd 
Council should be. This would be written after this discussion. 

It was noted that, in contrast to last year, there was greater emphasis on style 
rather than on numbers and data. It was stated that the report summarised the 
Council's Performance Challenge work, which took place throughout the year.  

Observations arising from the discussion
 The performance of the Education Department was highlighted, and it was 

noted that 43.8% of pupils who had access to free school meals (FSM) had 
gained five GCSEs grades A*-C, and that this figure should be regarded 
with pride.

 It was noted that the foreword should celebrate the Council's successes this 
year.

 It was stated that the Cabinet Member for the Adults, Health and Well-being 
Department was very pleased with the progress made on Improvement 
Priority 6 - Ensuring we have care services that help people live their lives 
as they wish. It was stated that five local teams had been formed to work 
alongside the Health service to provide services to meet the needs and 
welfare of the citizen.

 Hafod y Gest scheme was highlighted as one of the Council's success 
stories this year.

 It was noted that two million people had visited the website during the year, 
and there had been an increase in the number of people using the Self 
Service provision.

 Attention was drawn to the good work being done jointly by the Council, the 
Health Service and the Third Sector.

 As regards recycling statistics, it was stated the Gwynedd Council now 
recycled 63% of the county's waste, and it was added that it recycled 
responsibly within the UK.

 It was emphasised that the street light changing programme was now in its 
second phase, which not only reduced costs but reduced the county's 
carbon emissions.

9.  GWYNEDD COMMON HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY

Submitted by Cllr  Craig ab Iago

DECISION

Page 7



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

Subject to amending the wording in paragraphs 2.23 to 2.25 to ensure that the 
organisation's ability to act as a trustee for applicants aged 16-17 was clear, the 
new Common Housing Allocation Policy to allocate social housing based on the 
reflection of needs for the applicants by banding them rather than allocating points 
was approved. 

DISCUSSION

The report was submitted, noting that it discussed the arrangements for letting 
social housing across Gwynedd. It was added that the Partnership had been 
established in 2012 and four housing registers had been amalgamated into one 
system for the Partnership. It was mentioned that the housing register had been 
making allocations based on points but it was decided that an independent review 
of letting arrangements was needed in order to implement a system that was easy 
to understand and that would simplify the system for the individual.

It was noted that the new system had five different bands. Additionally, it was 
emphasised that individuals with links to Gwynedd would be prioritised in this new 
banding system.  It was reiterated that the new system was innovative and proved 
they were endeavouring to assist local people.

Observations arising from the discussion
 The policy was welcomed noting that it was a huge step forward to securing 

housing for local people. People were encouraged to put their names 
forward so that plans could be made for them. 

 It was noted that the policy could cause problems; therefore, it was asked 
whether the policy would be reviewed. It was expressed that a commitment 
had been made to review it in 12 months' time. It was also added that they 
had learnt from the consultation, that a panel would be set up to escalate 
some cases. In terms of impact, it was noted that most on the list would be 
in band two, and that this band had been divided into sub-categories. 

 Attention was drawn to point 2.23 in the Policy, which was the procedure for 
applicants of 16 and 17 years old. It was expressed that applicants under 
18 years of age would have to provide details of an adult who was willing to 
be a trustee. An enquiry was made about the steps if the Council was the 
corporate parent, as support and accommodation would be required for 
these young people to succeed. It was noted that the clause in point 2.24, 
which stated that trustees act on behalf of an organisation or person, had to 
be amended. 

 The importance of informing the public about the change in policy was 
noted. It was added that the partnership would contact everyone on the list 
and in the community in different ways to make them aware of the change. 

10.  GWYNEDD COMMON HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY

Submitted by Cllr  Craig ab Iago

DECISION

To approve releasing £1.25million from the Council Premium Rates Fund for the 
three plans noted in Appendix 1 for 2019/20.

Page 8



THE CABINET Tuesday 25 June 2019

DISCUSSION

The report was presented, noting that the Housing Strategy would be submitted to 
the Cabinet and the Full Council during the coming months. It was expressed that 
in order to ensure that plans could be delivered in 2019/20, funds would have to 
be allocated.

Plans to be funded were outlined, which included Purpose Built Accommodation, a 
pioneering scheme to provide accommodation units for homeless single people, 
known as pods, and which had received media attention recently. The Empty 
Homes Scheme and Housing Repair Fund were also highlighted. It was added 
that there were more schemes in the Housing Strategy. 

Observations arising from the discussion
 It was expressed that funding these schemes would bridge the gap until the 

Housing Strategy was in place. 

11.  ANNUAL EQUALITY REPORT

Submitted by Cllr  Nia Jeffreys

DECISION

To note and accept the information in the report. 

DISCUSSION

The report was presented, noting the need to ensure equality across the Council. 
It was expressed that the report showed that the work carried out in relation to 
equality was in line with the Council's aims.

It was stated that work had been done with the Core Equality Group and that 
officers continued to learn about the field through training. It was expressed that 
the Council was running an unconscious bias course. It was emphasised that 
equality was an integral part of the Council's work.

Observations arising from the discussion
 The report, which emphasised the Council's good work, was welcomed. 

Attention was drawn to the third aim, noting the need to ensure that people 
from different backgrounds stood as elected members for the Council. 

The meeting commenced at 1.00pm and concluded at 2.15pm.
CHAIR

Page 9



1

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to the Cabinet

1 DECISION SOUGHT
Cabinet is requested:

1) To approve the undertaking of the  process of considering  the 
introduction of  a new Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for a 
designated area within the city of Bangor, as per the attached draft 
Proposed Order; (appendix 1) and revoking the GWYNEDD COUNCIL 
ALCOHOL CONSUMPTION IN DESIGNATED PUBLIC PLACES FOR 
THE AREAS OF BANGOR AND CAERNARFON ORDER 2004 (Current 
Order) to the extent that it applies to Bangor;

2) To authorise the Head of Corporate Support to undertake a consultation 
process for a period of 28 days, with the matter to return to Cabinet in due 
course for decision whether a PSPO should be introduced in Bangor, as 
well as any associated delegations, and revoke of the Current Order.

2 REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED
The making of a PSPO is a function held by Local Authorities only. In accordance 
with the Local Authority’s Constitution, the making of such an order is an 
executive function the responsibility for which lies with Cabinet.

3 INTRODUCTION
The Antisocial Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) provides 
the powers for Local Authorities to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO) to deal with particular nuisanc(es) or problem(s) in a specific area. These 
problem behaviours are those which are deemed to be having a detrimental 
effect on the local communities quality of life. Such orders can last up to 3 years.

Before making such an order, the Local Authority must be satisfied that –

1. There are reasonable grounds for believing that the activities carried out, 

 

Meeting Date: 16th July 2019 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Nia Jeffreys
Contact Officer: Catherine E Roberts 
Contact Number: 679047
Item Title: Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for Bangor 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



2

in a public space have had, or are likely to have, a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality.

2. The activities are, or are likely to be, persistent and continuing in nature.
3. The activities are, or are likely to be, unreasonable.
4. And they justify the restrictions imposed.

In addition, before making an order the Local Authority must consult with the 
Police and with the wider community.

PSPOs work by enabling behaviours to be challenged and the individual given 
the opportunity to cease the activity (in most circumstances). If this is not 
possible, the Home Office guidance suggests the course of action to be that the 
person may be issued with a fixed penalty notice, however in this instance the 
Police have suggested a different approach. The intention of the Police in this 
particular case is to use a model of enforcement which does not utilise fixed 
penalty notices but rather allows for the use of a model based on an escalation 
of responses based on the behaviour of the individual. That is, engaging and 
challenging in the first instance, report for summons if required, and in specific 
situations, an arrest is made (see attached flow chart attachment 2). 

The intention of the Act is to reduce antisocial behaviour in public places.  When 
an order is being considered, there is the possibility that the problems will be  
displaced into other areas. We must also consider the protection of vulnerable 
individuals, such as the homeless.

These issues have already been discussed with the Police and have led to 
amendments and pledges as explained in the report. 

4 REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION.
A PSPO already exists for Caernarfon and Bangor (“the Current Order”). This 
Current Order covers a large part of  Bangor City Centre and Upper Bangor and 
has been in place for some years. The Current Order was originally made as a 
Designated Public Places Order under the provisions of the Police and Criminal 
Justice Act 2001, but on 20 October 2017 automatically converted into a PSPO 
by virtue of the 2014 Act. The Original Order is confined to the confiscation of 
alcohol and enables a power of arrest under certain circumstances.
The Police have suggested that the Current Order no longer allows sufficient 
leverage and powers to deal with emerging and growing types of antisocial 
behaviour in Bangor. The main problems stem from the misuse of alcohol or 
other substances, often resulting in rowdy and antisocial behaviour. There has 
also been an increase in aggressive begging.
Following lengthy and detailed discussions, the Police have provided the Local 
Authority with evidence of the types of behaviours and a list of actual incidents 
which seemingly occur regularly on the streets of Bangor. 
Thereafter, discussions have been held with the Local Authority’s Legal 
Services, Portfolio lead for Community Safety, and 5 of the Bangor local 
members.
Evidence – to support the required grounds for the Local Authority to make 

Page 11



3

such an order

The Police have stated that  :- 
_” The existing order is insufficient to deal with the current issues impacting on 
local businesses, residents, students and tourists. These issues include general 
ASB and crime with intimidating behaviour, foul language, assaults, consuming 
alcohol and being under the influence of drugs. Concerns have been identified 
around begging and loitering at cash machines with intimidating behaviour.”
“The implementation of the PSPO in addition to providing an enforcement option 
will primarily allow early intervention and prevention with potential offenders 
through engagement and education. None of the proposed conditions are 
unreasonable and they’re designed to improve the City’s quality of life and 
impact on specific behaviours “ 
To support their stance on this matter, they have provided a number of data sets, 
including a map of the geographical area which they wish to be considered within 
the order. They have also included within the map an indication of the incidents, 
both Antisocial behaviour and crimes which have occurred within the area during 
the period 1st of April 2018 and the 4th of June 2019.  They number 486 incidents 
and 649 crimes. The timescale indicates that these behaviours were not a ‘short 
term problematic  period’, but are in fact  persistent, and are continuing to be an 
issue within the City centre. (attachment 3) 
They have produced impact statements from members of the business 
community  in Bangor indicating how these incidents are having a detrimental 
effect on their daily working day. They include a School, a Café, 4 shops and a 
representative of Bangor BID (Bangor Improvement District) and in the main 
refer to Antisocial behaviour relating to drug use, extreme littering, harassment, 
intimidation and aggressive begging.
There have also produced an anonymised list of actual incidents, which they 
have sectioned between each of the 4 restrictions they wish to be considered. 
That is, so as to indicate why a new, and more specific order is required in order 
to deal more effectively with the types of behaviour which seem to be increasing. 
The number of incidents which fitted within these specified behaviours was 125.
This would also indicate that the restrictions under consideration,have been 
developed specifically  to deal with the types of behaviours that are causing the 
most issues, and are increasing, thereby justifying their inclusion in the order.

The evidence suggests that there are sufficient grounds  to conclude   that a 
justifiable case had been made for considering such an order.
The Police initially provided 6 restrictions which they favoured having within the 
Proposed Order. The Local Authority has considered 4 of these to be appropriate 
for inclusion in the Proposed Order, namely: 

1. Behaving in a manner that is likely to cause harassment, alarm, nuisance 
or distress

2. Loitering in a state of intoxication through alcohol or drug induced activity
3. That consuming alcohol or being in possession of open containers of 

alcohol likely to cause or causing ASB is prohibited in the restricted Area.  

Page 12



4

A constable or PCSO may require anyone in breach of this condition not 
to consume alcohol or anything they believe to be alcohol and to 
surrender anything in their possession which is alcohol. 

4. Loitering or performing for reward within 10 meters of any cash point

The Police have agreed to reducing the number of restrictions to 4, and have 
also agreed that they will continue to work with partners in the community, such 
as Registered Social Landlords, and the homelessness forums, as regard 
dealing with rough sleeping issues. 
A further aspect to consider is the enforcement of the Proposed Order. North 
Wales Police have experiences of using different enforcement models across 
the region and favour the model as expressed above as oppossed to a fixed 
penalty model.
Local Authority officers have been assured that the Police would carry out 
targeted interventions and that they would work proactively to enforce, based on 
the concerns of the public and the complaints they receive. Displacement of the 
issues into neighbouring areas, particularly residential areas will require the 
Police to act swiftly and mitigate with other appropriate enforcement action. They 
have also agreed to monitor the patterns of antisocial behaviour and report on a 
regular basis.
The Police have also agreed to pay for the new signage which will be required if 
the Proposed Order is made.
In line with the legal requirements of  the Equalities Act 2010, an impact 
assessment has been undertaken  in relation to the process this far, an updated 
assessment will be undertaken following the statutory consultation, and prior to 
returning to the Cabinet for a final determination. (attachment 4) 
To date the assessment has not indicated any reason to not continue with the 
process.
In line with the recommendations of the Wellbeing of Future generations Act 
2015, this development has considered the principles of the legislation, and in 
particular the 5 ways of working concept – as below 

Long Term  
The order itself will remain in place for three years, with the intention of changing 
people's attitudes towards their behaviour in public places. In the longer term, it 
is hoped that this will contribute to more responsible attitudes and respect 
towards safeguarding our communities and an understanding of the need to 
consider the effect on others.
Prevention
Such an order will help to reduce the number of antisocial behaviour incidents in 
the community, and will help to prevent a deterioration in the situation in the near 
future.

Integration

Page 13



5

The order addresses the characteristics of a number of organisations. It will also 
contribute towards the objectives of the Police, namely to reduce offences and 
make the streets safer for residents and towards the Council's ambition of seeing 
communities succeeding and thriving.
Collaboration
This development stems from collaboration between the Council and the Police 
specifically. Local members in Bangor have been a part of the discussions, and 
a public consultation will be held before an order may be approved in full.
Involvement
The police and local members have been a part of the discussions, and a public 
consultation will be held before a final decision is made on the application.

The Police, and Local members have been involved in the discussions, and a 
public consultation will take place before the final decision is reached

6 NEXT STEPS & TIMETABLE
 Cabinet to approve in principle the continuation of the process of 

considering the introduction   of a new PSPO to Bangor as per Proposed 
Order, and revocation of Current Order

 If the above is approved, the Local Authority to undertake consultation
 The Local Authority must undertake a public consultation as regard the 

order, this will need to be in place for 28 days
 Following consultation, the Local Authority officers to present findings of 

consultation to Cabinet, and advise if Proposed Order is still 
recommended.

 If the Proposed Order is still recommended the Local Authority shall 
proceed to make the Proposed Order, revoke the Current Order and erect 
signage.

7 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION
 The consultations to date are as indicated within the report.
 A further statutory Public consultation will be required, before returning to 

the Cabinet for final approval 

Opinion of the Monitoring officer –
The report has been the subjeect of input by the Legal Services and provides 
appropriate recommendations to proceed to consultation. 

Opinion of Statutory Finance officer - 
I have received confirmation from the author that the decision sought would not 
create a new financial commitment, and therefore I support the recommendation 
in order to be able to act pragmatically.

Page 14



6
Page 15



CYNGOR GWYNEDD

DEDDF YMDDYGIAD GWRTH-GYMDEITHASOL, TROSEDD A PHLISMONA 2014

GORCHYMYN DIOGELU MANNAU CYHOEDDUS CYNGOR GWYNEDD (ALCOHOL AC 
YMDDYGIAD GWRTH-GYMDEITHASOL) (BANGOR) 2019

Mae Cyngor Gwynedd (“y Cyngor”), drwy arfer y grym a roddwyd iddo gan adran 59 o’r 
Ddeddf Ymddygiad Gwrth-gymdeithasol, Trosedd a Phlismona 2014 (“y Ddeddf”), yn gwneud 
y Gorchymyn canlynol:

1. Enw’r Gorchymyn hwn yw y Gorchymyn Diogelu Mannau Cyhoeddus Cyngor Gwynedd 
(Alcohol ac Ymddygiad Gwrth-Gymdeithasol) (Bangor) 2019.

2. Daw y Gorchymyn hwn i rym ar [XXXXXXXXXX] a bydd yn parhau mewn grym am gyfnod 
o 3 blynedd tan [XXXXXXXXXX], oni bai y caiff yn y cyfamser ei ddiddymu, ei ddiwygio, 
neu ei ymestyn gan Orchymyn pellach yn unol â grymoedd statudol y Cyngor.

3. Mae’r Gorchymyn hwn yn berthnasol i’r ardal a amlinellir yn goch ar y cynllun a atodwyd 
yn Atodlen 1 (“yr Ardal Gyfyngedig”).

4. Mae’r Cyngor yn fodlon bod yr amod cyntaf o dan adran 59(2) o’r Ddeddf wedi cael ei 
bodloni, sef:

a. bod y gweithgareddau canlynol wedi cael eu cynnal o fewn man cyhoeddus yn yr 
Ardal Gyfyngedig:

i. yfed alcohol;

ii. ymddygiad sydd yn debygol o achosi aflonyddwch, braw, niwsans neu 
drallod;

iii. loetran mewn cyflwr o feddwdod o ganlyniad i gymryd alcohol neu 
gyffuriau, a

iv. loetran neu berfformio am wobr o fewn 10 metr o beiriant codi arian, a

b. bod y gweithgareddau hyn wedi cael effaith andwyol ar ansawdd bywyd pobl yn 
yr ardal, ac mae’n debygol y bydd y gweithgareddau hyn yn cael eu cynnal mewn 
man cyhoeddus yn yr ardal honno ac y byddant yn cael effaith o’r fath.

Page 16



5. Mae’r Cyngor yn fodlon bod yr ail amod o dan adran 59(2) o’r Ddeddf wedi cael ei bodloni, 
sef bod effaith, neu effaith debygol y gweithgareddau yn, neu’n debygol o fod, o natur 
barhaus neu barhaol a’i fod, neu’n debygol o fod, yn gwneud y gweithgaredd yn 
afresymol, ac yn cyfiawnhau’r cyfyngiadau a osodwyd gan y Gorchymyn.

6. Effaith y Gorchymyn hwn yw gosod y gwaharddiadau a/neu ofynion canlynol ym mhob 
man cyhoeddus yn yr Ardal Gyfyngedig ar bob adeg.

Yfed alcohol

7. Yn ddarostyngedig i erthygl 9, mae’r gwaharddiadau canlynol yn gymwys:

a. Ni chaiff person (“P”) yfed alcohol, nac unrhywbeth y mae Person Awdurdodedig 
yn rhesymol gredu i fod yn alcohol, os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P stopio 
ag yfed.

b. Ni chaiff P feddu ar alcohol neu gynhwysydd i ddal alcohol, nac unrhywbeth y mae 
Person Awdurdodedig yn rhesymol gredu i fod yn alcohol neu gynhwysydd i ddal 
alcohol, os yw’r Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i’r P ildio’r alcohol neu’r 
cynhwysydd.

8. Yn ddarostyngedig i erthygl 9, mae’r gofynion canlynol yn gymwys:

a. Os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P stopio ag yfed yn yr amgylchiadau a nodir 
yn erthygl 7(a), rhaid i’r P stopio yfed ar unwaith.

b. Os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P ildio alcohol neu gynhwysydd yn yr 
amgylchiadau a nodir yn erthygl 7(b), rhaid i’r P ildio’r cyfryw alcohol neu 
gynhwysydd i’r Person Awdurdodedig ar unwaith.

9. Nid yw darpariaethau erthyglau 7 ac 8 yn gymwys lle bo’r P yn yfed alcohol mewn mangre 
neu fan sydd o ganlyniad i adran 62 o’r Ddeddf yn eithriedig rhag waharddiad mewn 
gorchymyn diogelu mannau cyhoeddus ar yfed alcohol.

Ymddygiad sydd yn debygol o achosi aflonyddwch, braw, niwsans neu drallod

10. Ni chaiff P ddilyn cwrs o ymddygiad sydd yn achosi, neu sydd yn rhesymol canfod ei fod 
yn achosi, aflonyddwch, braw, niwsans neu drallod i berson arall.

11. Os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P ymadael â’r ardal mewn amgylchiadau lle bo’r P 
wedi tramgwyddo erthygl 10, rhaid i’r P ymadael ar unwaith. 

Page 17



Loetran mewn cyflwr o feddwdod o ganlyniad i gymryd alcohol neu gyffuriau

12. Ni chaiff P loetran mewn cyflwr o feddwdod o ganlyniad i gymryd alcohol neu gyffuriau 
neu’r ddau.

13. Os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P ymadael â’r ardal mewn amgylchiadau lle bo’r P 
wedi tramgwyddo erthygl 12, rhaid i’r P ymadael ar unwaith. 

Loetran neu berfformio am wobr o fewn 10 metr o beiriant codi arian

14. Ni chaiff P loetran neu berfformio am wobr o fewn 10 metr o beiriant codi arian.

15. Os yw Person Awdurdodedig yn gofyn i P ymadael â’r ardal mewn amgylchiadau lle bo’r P 
wedi tramgwyddo erthygl 14, rhaid i’r P ymadael ar unwaith.

Person Awdurdodedig

16. At ddibenion y Gorchymyn hwn, mae Heddwas, Swyddog Cefnogaeth Gymunedol yr 
Heddlu a swyddog o’r Cyngor yn Bersonau Awdurdodedig.

Cosb

17. Mae person sydd heb esgus rhesymol yn methu â chydymffurfio â gofyniad a osodir gan 
erthygl 8 o’r Gorchymyn hwn yn euog o drosedd yn unol ag adran 63 o’r Ddeddf ac yn 
agored o’i gollfarnu’n ddiannod i ddirwy heb fod yn uwch na lefel 2 ar y raddfa safonol.

18. Mae person sydd heb esgus rhesymol yn gwneud unrhyw beth a waherddir iddo rhag ei 
wneud gan erthyglau 10, 12 neu 14 o’r Gorchymyn hwn neu yn methu â chydymffurfio â 
gofyniad a osodir gan erthyglau 11, 13 neu 15 o’r Gorchymyn hwn yn euog o drosedd yn 
unol ag adran 67 o’r Ddeddf ac yn agored o’i gollfarnu’n ddiannod i ddirwy heb fod yn 
uwch na lefel 3 ar y raddfa safonol.

19. Gall Person Awdurdodedig roi rhybudd cosb benodol am swm o hyd at £100.00 yn unol 
ag adran 68 o’r Ddeddf i unrhyw berson y mae ef yn credu sydd wedi cyflawni trosedd o 
dan adrannau 63 neu 67 o’r Ddeddf o ganlyniad i’r person hwnnw yn gwneud unrhyw beth 
a waherddir gan y Gorchymyn neu yn methu â chydymffurfio â gofyniad o osodir gan y 
Gorchymyn hwn.

Herio’r Gorchymyn

20. Yn unol ag adran 66 o’r Ddeddf, gall unrhyw berson â diddordeb sydd yn dymuno herio 
dilysrwydd y Gorchymyn hwn ar y sail nad oedd gan y Cyngor y grym i wneud y Gorchymyn 
neu bod diffyg cydymffurfiad â gofyniad o’r Ddeddf wneud cais i’r Uchel Lys o fewn 6 
wythnos o’r dyddiad y gwnaethpwyd y Gorchymyn.

Page 18



GWYNEDD COUNCIL

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014

GWYNEDD COUNCIL (ALCOHOL AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR) (BANGOR)
PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2019

Gwynedd Council (“the Council”), in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by section 59 
of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 2014 (“the Act”), makes the following Order:

1. The name of this Order is the Gwynedd Council (Alcohol and Anti-Social Behaviour) 
(Bangor) Public Spaces Protection Order 2019.

2. This Order comes into force on [XXXXXXXXXX] and shall remain in force for a period of 3 
years until [XXXXXXXXXX], unless in the meantime it is revoked, amended or extended by 
further Order under the Council’s statutory powers.

3. This Order applies to the area outlined in red on the plan attached in Schedule 1 (“the 
Restricted Area”).

4. The Council is satisfied that the first condition under section 59(2) of the Act has been 
met, in that:

a. the following activities have been carried out in a public place in the Restricted 
Area:

i. consumption of alcohol;

ii. behaving in a manner that is likely to cause harassment, alarm, nuisance or 
distress;

iii. loitering in a state of intoxication through consumption of alcohol or drugs, 
and

iv. loitering or performing for reward within 10 metres of a cash point.

b. these activities have had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of people in the 
locality, and it is likely that these activities will be carried on in a public place within 
that area and that they will have such an effect.

Page 19



5. The Council is satisfied that the second condition under section 59(2) of the Act has been 
met, in that the effect, or likely effect of these activities is, or is likely to be, of a persistent 
or continuing nature and is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, 
and justifies the restrictions imposed by the Order.

6. The effect of this Order is to impose the following prohibitions and/or requirements in 
every public place in the Restricted Area at all times.

Consumption of alcohol

7. Subject to article 9, the following prohibitions apply:

a. A person (“P”) shall not consume alcohol, or anything which an Authorised Person 
reasonably believes to be alcohol, if the Authorised Person asks the P to stop 
drinking.

b. P shall not be in possession of alcohol or a container holding alcohol, or anything 
which an Authorised Person reasonably believes to be alcohol or a container 
holding alcohol, if the Authorised Person asks the P to surrender the alcohol or 
container.

8. Subject to article 9, the following requirements apply:

a. If an Authorised Person asks P to stop drinking in the circumstances noted in article 
7(a), the P shall stop drinking immediately.

b. If an Authorised Person asks P to surrender alcohol or a container in the 
circumstances noted in article 7(b), the P shall surrender the said alcohol or 
container to the Authorised Person immediately.

9. The provisions of articles 7 and 8 do not apply where the P consumes alcohol within 
premises or a place which by virtue of section 62 of the Act is exempt from a prohibition 
in a public spaces protection order on the consumption of alcohol.

Behaving in a manner that is likely to cause harassment, alarm, nuisance or distress

10. A P shall not follow a course of conduct which causes, or which can reasonably be 
perceived to cause, harassment, alarm, nuisance or distress.

11. If an Authorised Person asks a P to leave the area in circumstances where the P has 
contravened article 10, the P shall leave immediately.

Page 20



Loitering in a state of intoxication through consumption of alcohol or drugs

12. A P shall not loiter in a state of intoxication through consumption of alcohol or drugs.

13. If an Authorised Person asks a P to leave the area in circumstances where the P has 
contravened article 12, the P shall leave immediately.

Loitering or performing for reward within 10 metres of a cash point

14. A P shall not loiter or perform for reward within 10 metres of a cash point.

15. If an Authorised Person asks a P to leave the area in circumstances where the P has 
contravened article 14, the P shall leave immediately.

16. For the purposes of this Order, a Constable, Police Community Support Officer, and 
Council officer are Authorised Persons.

Penalty

17. A person who without reasonable excuse fails to comply with a requirement imposed by 
article 8 of this Order is guilty of an offence pursuant to section 63 of the Act and is liable 
on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

18. A person who without reasonable excuse does anything which he is prohibited from doing 
by articles 10, 12 or 14 of this Order or fails to comply with any requirement imposed by 
articles 11, 13 or 15 of this Order is guilty of an offence pursuant to section 67 of the Act 
and is liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

19. An authorised officer may issue a fixed penalty notice pursuant to section 68 of the Act to 
any person whom he believes has committed an offence under sections 63 or 67 of the 
Act as a result of that person doing anything prohibited by the Order or failing to comply 
with a requirement imposed by this Order.

Challenging the Order

20. In accordance with section 66 of the Act, any interested person who wishes to challenge 
the validity of this Order on the grounds that the Council did not have the power to make 
the Order or that a requirement under the Act has not been complied with may apply to 
the High Court within 6 weeks from the date upon which the Order is made.

Page 21



Llofnodwyd y diwrnod o 2019

Signed the day of 2019

GOSODWYD SÊL GYFFREDIN CYNGOR GWYNEDD )

AR HWN YM MHRESENOLDEB )

)

THE COMMON SEAL OF GWYNEDD COUNCIL )

WAS HEREUNTO FIXED IN THE PRESENCE OF )

)

..................................................

Llofnodydd awdurdodedig

Authorised signatory

 

Page 22



ATODLEN 1 / SCHEDULE 1

[CYNLLUN O GANOL BANGOR]

Page 23



DYDDIEDIG / DATED:_____________________________________________________2019

DEDDF YMDDYGIAD GWRTH-GYMDEITHASOL, TROSEDD A PHLISMONA 2014

GORCHYMYN DIOGELU MANNAU CYHOEDDUS CYNGOR GWYNEDD
(ALCOHOL AC YMDDYGIAD GWRTH-GYMDEITHASOL) (BANGOR) 2019

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014

GWYNEDD COUNCIL (ALCOHOL AND ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR) (BANGOR)
PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2019

IWAN G D EVANS

PENNAETH GWASANAETHAU CYFREITHIOL / HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES

CYNGOR GWYNEDD COUNCIL

STRYD Y JÊL

CAERNARFON

GWYNEDD LL55 1SH

CYFEIRNOD / REFERENCE: XXXXX

Page 24



Behaviour escalates – consider appropriate offence 

For example Drunk and Disorderly/Public Order

Arrest Powers Utilised (Code G PACE –specific requirements)

Breach of PSPO identified

Consider use of Community 
Protection notice or Criminal 

behaviour order 

Engage / Educate

Point out relevant PSPO Breach

Offender’s Behaviour PersistsOffender’s Behaviour Desists

Details Recorded

Yellow Card / No further action 

Officer leaves and suspect re-offends Report for Summons

Offender’s Behaviour Persists

P
age 25



P
age 26



                    

Please see the How to do an Equality Impact Assessment leaflet for help in completing this 
form.  You are welcome to contact Delyth Williams, Policy and Equality Officer on ext. 
32708, or DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru, for further help.

The Council is required (under Equality Act 2010) to consider the impact of a change in any 
policy or procedure (or the creation of a new one) on people with protected equality 
characteristics.  The Council also has additional general duties set out in part 2b. A timely 
equality impact assessment must therefore be made before making a decision on any 
relevant change (i.e. one that affects people with a specific protected characteristic). 

1 Details 

1.1 What is the name of the policy / service in question? 

 Under consideration is the implementation of a legal order –

Public Space protection order – for part of the City of Bangor, which will contain  4 
aspects of behaviour  (antisocial behaviour ASB) which are prohibited by the order, 
and can be enforced as criminal acts under certain circumstances

      
1.2 What it the purpose of the policy / service that is being created or 

changed?  What changes are being considered? 

The order is being considered as a means of tackling antisocial behaviour in certain 
geographical areas of Bangor City. An order already exists in the City, but is no longer 
considered sufficient to tackle the growing reports of ASB – and so will be replaced by 
the new order

         

1.3 Who is responsible for this assessment? 

Catherine E Roberts, Senior Operational Officer, Community Safety partnership –
Gwynedd and Anglesey 

1.4 When did you begin the assessment?   What version is this? 

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 27



18.06.2019

    

2) Implementation

2.1 Who are the partners that you will have to work with to carry out this 
assessment? 

North Wales Police
Cabinet
Local Members who are responsible for the 5 areas concerned in Bangor

The public and interested bodies (following Cabinet decision) 

2.2. What steps have you taken to engage with people with protected 
characters?

Following the Cabinet decision –there will be a public consultation – including targeted 
consultation with interested bodies 

2.3 What was the result of the engagement? 

 Discussions with our Partner organisation, North wales Police, have resulted in 
our taking out of the order, any sanctions which would target ‘rough sleepers’ 

 Public consultation Not yet undertaken

Page 28



2.4 What other information informed the way you operate? 

North Wales Police have submitted a substantial amount of documented evidence, 
showing the increase in, and change in types of Anti-Social Behaviour in Bangor City. 
They have also shown, that current enforcement powers are not ideal in tackling these 
issues, hence the need for a new order.

For example, an increase in complaints for the public around ’nuisance’ in public 
spaces, begging in named locations, such as near cash points and ASB associated 
with drug misuse.

2.5 Are there any gaps in evidence that need to be gathered? 

No

Page 29



3) Identifying the Impact 

3.1      The Council must give due regard to the impact any changes will have 
on people with equality characteristics. What impact will the new 
policy/service or the proposed changes have on these characteristics?  
You are welcome to add further characteristics if you wish.

Characteristics What type 
of impact?* 

In what way? What is the evidence?

Race (including 
nationality)

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is possible that this order, because of the specific 
prohibitions within it, can be used if required to 
tackle race/hate crime particularly the first 
prohibition within the order.

The Welsh 
language

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

No

Disability Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is expected that only a low number of people will 
reach the threshold which will result in an arrest. For 
those who are arrested, the Police have processes 
in place to offer wellbeing interventions within and 
beyond the Custody suite. This includes Mental 
health aspects of an individual’s needs – 

“Any person taken to custody are subject of a full risk assessment to 
cover physical and MH (mental health) with access to a custody 
nurse. If not deemed fit to detain arrangements are made to safely 
release with appropriate signposting. If there were significant 
concerns around MH, (mental health) arrangements would be made 
for a medical team to attend custody to complete assessment and if 
required appropriate treatment thereafter or if not feasible to conduct 
in custody the subject would be taken to a MH unit for assessment”
 

It is possible that this order, because of the specific 
prohibitions within it, can be used if required to 
tackle disability/hate crime particularly the first 
prohibition within the order.

Page 30



Gender Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is likely to affect more Males, as the evidence 
shows males are more often the perpetrators of 
such behaviour.  

Therefore the order will protect all genders

Age Positive / 
Negative / 
None

Antisocial behaviour is more likely to be perpetrated 
by younger adults, but not exclusively

Sexual 
orientation

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is possible that this order, because of the specific 
prohibitions within it, can be used if required to 
tackle sexual orientation/hate crime particularly the 
first prohibition within the order.

Religion or 
belief (or lack of 
belief) 

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is possible that this order, because of the specific 
prohibitions within it, can be used if required to 
tackle religion or belief/hate crime particularly the 
first prohibition within the order.

Gender 
reassignment

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

It is possible that this order, because of the specific 
prohibitions within it, can be used if required to 
tackle gender reassignment/hate crime particularly 
the first prohibition within the order.

Pregnancy and 
maternity

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

No

Marriage and 
civil partnership

Positive / 
Negative / 
None

No

* delete as appropriate

3.2 It is the Council’s duty, under the Equality Act 2010, to contribute 
positively to a fairer community by promoting equality and good 
relationships in their activities in the areas of age, gender, sexual 
orientation, religion, race, transgender, disability and pregnancy and 

Page 31



maternity.  The Council must give due regard to the way any change 
affects these duties.

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act

Does the 
policy have 
an impact?*

In what way?  What is the evidence?

Remove illegal 
discrimination, 
harassment 
and 
victimisation

Yes / No
Yes, as the order is specifically targeted at 
behaviour which causes harassment  - this can 
include hate crime of all types (all characteristics 
above) 

Promoting 
equal 
opportunities

Yes / No
No

Encouraging 
good 
relationships

Yes / No
Yes, as the enforcements process begins with 
engagement and education, which if effective, stops 
escalation of behaviour and legal response – and 
therefore seek to improve the persons 
understanding of their behaviour’s effect on other 
members of the public etc.  

One of the intentions is to make Bangor City Centre 
a safer and more pleasant public space for all 
members of  the community. 

* delete as appropriate

Page 32



4) Analysing the results 

4.1 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or the General Duties and what is the 
reason for this? 

Hopefully, there will be a positive impact of the public’s experience of 
working/living/visiting Bangor City centre.  That they will witness less ASB, and feel 
safer when out in their community 

4.2 Is the Plan therefore likely to have a substantial, negative impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or General Duties and what is the reason 
for this? 

None has been identified 

4.3 What should be done? 

Select one of the following: 

Continue with the plan as it is robust  Yes 

Adapt the plan to remove any barriers 

Page 33



Suspend and abolish the plan as the detrimental impacts are too large

Continue with the plan as any detrimental impact can be justified 

4.4 If continuing with the plan, what steps will you take to reduce or mitigate 
any negative impacts?

Not applicable

4.5     If you do not take further action to remove or reduce negative impacts, 
explain why here. 

Not applicable

5) Monitoring

5.1     What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 
plan (action plan)?

The assessment will be reviewed following the public consultation.

Page 34



Page 35



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

Report to the Cabinet

1. DECISION SOUGHT

Not to raise primary school meal income in line with inflation which means that the 
primary school meal price will not increase in September 2019.

2. REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED

If the department do not raise the meal price in line with inflation in 2019-20 it will 
create a deficit in the budget of £82,220.

3. INTRODUCTION

The primary school catering service budget relies on generating income by selling 
primary school meals. There is a need for income generated from primary school 
meals to keep up the inflation of the catering service costs.

Primary school meals income target has risen 4.1% in 2019-20 due to an increase in 
costs – living wage cost is the main reason for the increase.

4. REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION

When comparing Gwynedd’s primary school meal price of £2.50 with 15 other 
Council’s in Wales (see appendix 1), it is one of the highest – only 3 other Council’s 
is £2.50, the rest are cheaper.

Currently, an average 46% of Gwynedd primary pupils choose a school meal. 
2016-17 average was 50% (meal price £2.30) and 2017-18 average was 46% (meal 
price £2.50). The above information shows that a number of parents have decided 
against choosing a school meal for their children following the price increase in 

Meeting Date: 16 July 2019
Cabinet Member: Councillor Cemlyn Rees Williams
Contact Officer: Bethan Griffith
Contact Number: 01286 679 195
Item Title: Primary School Meal Price September 2019

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



September 2017. Increasing the price could potentially further decrease the number 
choosing a school meal as it would not be affordable to families on low incomes who 
are not eligible for free school meals.
Increasing the meal price would mean increasing the price from £2.50 to£2.60.

5. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE
Meal price will be operational from September 2019.

6. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION
Statutory Officers opinion:

 
i. Monitoring Officer: No observations to add in relation to propriety.

ii. Head of Finance: Part 4 of the report highlights the risk of a further reduction in 
demand if the meal price is increased in primary schools, and therefore there is a  
clear rationale for the decision being sought.  With regards to funding of the 
relevant gap in the Education Departments budget, I confirm that in formulating 
the Council's budget for 2019/20, a provision to this effect was set aside in a 
contingency budget.

Page 37



SCHOOL MEALS PRICES

APRIL 2019 - Current prices & Proposals

AUTHORITY Junior Infant Nursery Adult               
(Inc VAT)

Secondary Free meal 
Price

Date of next 
Price Increase

Amount of Increase

Anglesey £2.40 £2.40 £2.40 £4.26 £2.40 Medi-19

Blaenau Gwent
Bridgend £2.20 £2.20 £2.20 £3.48 £2.50 Unknown No increase for September 2019

Caerphilly £2.10 £2.10 £2.50 £3.30 £2.35 Ebr-20 All areas proposed to increase by 10p

Cardiff £2.50 £2.50 £3.60 £2.95 N/A No planned increase

Carmarthenshire £2.50 £2.50 n/a £3.92 £2.50 possibly april 2020 increase only on adult meal april 2019

Ceredigion £2.50 £2.50 n/a £4.35 £2.50 N/A none scheduled for this year

Conwy
Denbighshire £2.20 £2.20 £2.20 £3.60 £2.35 N/A No Increase planned at present

Wrexham £2.40 £2.40 £2.40 £3.20 £2.45 Ebr-20

Gwynedd £2.50 £2.50 £2.50 £3.60 Set by each school Sept-19 Not known as present

Merthyr £2.30 £2.30 £2.30 £3.55 £2.70 April 2019 these are the increased prices from 29/4

Monmouthshire
Neath & Port Talbot £2.30 £2.30 £2.30 £3.25 school decide Sept 19 5p per meal

Newport £2.15 £2.15 n/a £3.30 £2.40 Sept-19 No current proposal however normally for September

Pembrokeshire £2.45 £2.35 n/a £3.48 £2.50 Sept-19 Proposed 10p increase, but still under consideration

Powys £2.45 £2.45 £2.45 £4.50 £2.55 From 1st April 19 Proposal from cabinet to increase to £0.15p from 1st April 2019

Rhondda Cynnon Taf
Swansea
Torfaen £2.40 £2.30 £4.00 £2.60
Vale of Glamorgan £2.30 £2.30 £3.10 £2.50 Ebr-20 Proposed increase of 5p in April 2020

Flintshire

Page 38



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

Date of meeting: 16 July 2019 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Gareth Thomas, Cabinet Member – Economy 
and Community

Contact Officer: Sioned Williams, Head of Economy and Community 
Department

Contact Telephone 
Number:

Ext. 32547
01286 679547

Title of Item: Arfor Innovation Fund

1. THE DECISION SOUGHT
a) That Gwynedd Council acts as the lead body for the Arfor Programme, by 

targeting Welsh Government's Arfor Innovation Fund resources on behalf of 
Gwynedd, Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire Councils;

b) That the Cabinet supports a package of Gwynedd Arfor Programme 
projects, and delegates the decision to approve bids for the expenditure in 
Gwynedd to the Head of Economy and Community Department in 
consultation with the Treasurer.

c) For Cabinet to authorise Head of Economy and Community in consultation 
with the Head of Legal Service to agree and complete a suitable contract 
between authorities

2. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION

Acting as the Arfor Programme Lead Body means that Gwynedd Council will be 
accountable for the performance and expenditure of the Programme across the 
four counties, in accordance with the terms and conditions of Welsh 
Government's proposal letter for the Arfor Innovation Fund.  Gwynedd Council 
needs to be aware of the risks associated with the steps that have been taken 
to manage the risk.

£466,250 is available to be invested in Gwynedd over a two-year period on 
activities that would lead to the creation of new jobs that, in turn, would support 
the language in our communities. The Gwynedd Arfor Steering Group has been 
established to identify a package of innovative projects to trial over the period 
that is in-keeping with the programme's criteria. Arrangements are already in 
place to measure the impact of the various types of interventions on the 
economy and on the language. The Cabinet's support is requested to the 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



recommendations of the Steering Group for the expenditure, and for the right to 
approve bids. 

3. INTRODUCTION

Following a budgetary agreement between Welsh Government and Plaid 
Cymru, in February 2019, the Minister for the Economy, Ken Skates AM, confirmed 
that a budget of £2 million was available to Gwynedd, Anglesey, Ceredigion and 
Carmarthenshire Councils to trial innovative methods of supporting the economy 
in the Welsh language's heartlands. The funding is available up to the end of 
2020/21.

The Leaders of the four Local Authorities have been meeting regularly over the 
past year in order to discuss priorities for the Programme. The Arfor Programme 
Board has been established, which includes the Leaders of the four counties, and 
commentators from Welsh Government are present. At a meeting of the 
Programme Board, Gwynedd Council was asked to act as the lead body for the 
four counties, by co-ordinating the relationship with Welsh Government.

It was agreed that it was a priority for all counties to refer the majority of the 
budget to implementing plans locally, by sharing the lessons learnt in order to 
inform further plans in future.  It was agreed to safeguard some of the budget to 
draw up a plan to develop the economy and create jobs in the Arfor area for 
the future, and to hold some joint pilot activities.

4. THE REASONING AND JUSTIFICATION FOR RECOMMENDING THE DECISION

Gwynedd Council is the lead body for the Arfor Programme

In order to manage the risks associated with the lead body's role, the programme 
will be managed within the Economic Development Programmes Service, which 
has extensive experience of developing and managing similar grant 
programmes. A specific officer has been identified to manage the Programme, 
and Gwynedd Council will receive a remuneration of £27,500 for the leading role 
in co-ordinating the work.

The work will include co-ordinating meetings, commissioning and managing joint 
activities for the counties, gathering information about the expenditure and 
activities of individual counties, submitting claims to Welsh Government and then 
referring the funds onwards to the counties.  

The role will also lead on the cross-county activities that includes the commission 
to evaluate the activities and draw up a new strategy for the western region for 
the future. Additionally, it will lead on the Bwrlwm Business Scheme, which 
includes a welcome pack to the Welsh language to promote value and pride in 
the Welsh language across the region, thus raising businesses' awareness of the 
business opportunities and the importance of the language to our communities.

In order to minimise the risks for Gwynedd Council, the Service, in consultation 
with the Treasurer, has drawn up an agreement between Gwynedd Council and 
the other counties, which places Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire 
Councils under an obligation to act in accordance with the terms and conditions 

Page 40

https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068
https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068
https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068
https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068
https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068
https://llyw.cymru/node/16494?_ga=2.229552412.129809423.1561308068-504583911.1561308068


of Welsh Government's financial proposal, and to provide information in 
accordance with the need to enable Gwynedd to fulfil its role.

The proposed activities of the Arfor Programme in Gwynedd

£466,250, including overheads, is available to implement plans within each 
individual county.

In Gwynedd, a Steering Group was established to lead on developing Arfor ideas 
in the county, comprising of the Cabinet Member for the Economy and 
Community and the Cabinet Member for Corporate Support (who is responsible 
for the Welsh language), along with relevant officers and partners who are 
leading on linguistic planning, and economic and business support matters in 
Gwynedd. The Group recommends that the following pack of schemes be 
implemented in Gwynedd, with the aim of targeting resources from external 
funds in order to add to the Arfor resources to extend the impact:

Project Arfor Budget Details

Support for 
Enterprise

£251,250 Provision of practical and financial support to 
give businesses confidence to grow and create 
new jobs within communities.  

Tailored support for the needs of the individual 
business will be provided, which could include, 
e.g. short-term support with rent to move to a 
larger building, help to buy additional 
equipment to produce more, mentoring to give 
confidence for a business to grow, or training to 
develop new skills.

Support for Enterprise will encourage businesses 
to identify their ambition and the steps required 
to achieve it, and support them to realise their 
ambition.  The Fund will focus on supporting 
businesses to create products (small 
manufacturing, food and drink, energy, 
software, etc.) as this is lacking within the rural 
economy.

We will be working in partnership with key 
stakeholders such as Business Wales to realise 
the plan in order to ensure that Support for 
Enterprise adds value to the existing offering.

The plan will respond to the need for more and 
better jobs in the Welsh language heartlands 
and, through this, it will keep local residents who 
speak Welsh within our local communities and 
will attract others to return.  The plan will also 
contribute towards regenerating our towns and 

Page 41



Project Arfor Budget Details

villages, and restoring them as places to live 
and work. 

Maker and 
Co-location 
Spaces

£75,000 A plan to maintain three or four temporary 
maker / co-location spaces in the towns of 
Welsh language heartlands in Gwynedd.  It is 
intended to establish the space in vacant shops 
on the high street and in vacant industrial 
space in order to target a range of local 
businesses.

The space will include a maker workshop with a 
range of new / modern devices and machinery 
(e.g. CNC machinery, 3D printers, etc.) and a 
work space with a number of work desks / 
benches.  

The locations will be operational within 
approximately six months (with an additional 
set-up and closing-down period).  During this 
period, the location will provide training / taster 
sessions for local businesses on the use of 
modern machinery; will be a hub for business 
support activity locally; will be a networking 
space for local businesses and will offer work 
desks / benches to rent.

The plan aims to contribute towards resolving 
many challenges, including the need to 
generate more to create a new wealth; a lack 
of adopting modern technology / techniques 
amongst businesses and the lack of 
collaborating and trading amongst local 
businesses.

The plan will also contribute towards the 
regeneration of towns, and is an opportunity to 
attract interest in technology in a wider context 
within the local community.

By stimulating economic activity and the 
regeneration of local towns, this will contribute 
to the economic and social sustainability of 
communities, and therefore would support the 
Welsh language.

Enterprising 
Communities 
Challenge

£80,000 This is a plan to support pilot schemes led by the 
local community to encourage and support the 
development of the foundational economy, 
thus facilitating progress in the local supply 

Page 42

https://foundationaleconomy.com/
https://foundationaleconomy.com/
https://foundationaleconomy.com/
https://foundationaleconomy.com/


Project Arfor Budget Details

chains, local employment, increase the 
amount of funding that comes into a 
community, and that stays there.  

The scheme is implemented in 'challenge' form, 
by choosing plans from (up to) three 
communities.  There will be an open call for 
communities to present their proposals on a 
clear brief form (receiving evidence of 
extensive commitment to the application within 
the community will be essential).

The project responds to the challenge of 
supporting the provision of basic services and 
goods in the communities of the Welsh 
language heartlands that, as a result, see a 
change in society's constitution (fewer people / 
young families, more older people, commuting 
to work, etc.)  

Llwyddo’n 
Lleol 

£100,000 
(£50k 

Gwynedd 
and £50k 
Anglesey)

This is a plan to persuade young people who 
are at risk of leaving / who have left the area - 
and those who can influence them (family, 
school and the wider society) - as a way for 
them to have a bright future with a good job in 
an exciting field here in Gwynedd.

The aim will be achieved through a commission 
to hold a multi-media and innovative marketing 
campaign by using young people to persuade 
their peers.  

This is done by giving young people an 
opportunity to work in local businesses within 
contemporary fields such as media, digital and 
energy, or businesses within traditional fields 
(such as tourism or food and drink) that is 
breaking new ground and interview and 
shadow prominent and successful individuals 
within the industry.  The fruits of the young 
people's labour will be a way of creating 
products (videos, blogs, photographs, articles, 
community newspapers, etc.) to be distributed 
as part of the marketing campaign.

Llwyddo'n Lleol will be a joint scheme in 
Gwynedd and Anglesey, which recognises the 
integrated nature of the economy / workforce 
and communities either side of the Menai Strait.

Page 43

https://foundationaleconomy.com/
https://foundationaleconomy.com/
https://foundationaleconomy.com/


Project Arfor Budget Details

The plan responds to the challenge of young 
people moving away from the Welsh language 
heartlands, which undermines the credibility of 
communities, erodes the viability of services 
and reduces the vitality of Welsh language 
heartlands.

TOTAL: £506,250 £456,250 from Gwynedd's Arfor budget
£50,000 from Anglesey's Arfor budget
£10,000 has been provided from the Gwynedd 
Arfor budget to meet the Council's costs 
associated with implementing the above 
projects

Arfor Programme Budget

The budget total for the Arfor programme from Welsh Government is £2,000,000.  
Welsh Government is funding the programme 100%.

The budget's division is as follows:

Activity Cost 

Central administration £27,500

Central publicity / promotion £7,500

Commission a strategic plan / evaluation £60,000

Bwrlwm Business Scheme (jointly across the four 
counties)

£40,000

Local county schemes (£466,250 x 4) £1,865,000

TOTAL £2,000,000

5. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

Welsh Government's proposal letter has been received, and an agreement 
between Gwynedd Council and Anglesey, Ceredigion and Carmarthenshire 
Council is being drawn up.

Page 44



Management structures for the entire programme and the local programme in 
Gwynedd have been established.

It is intended to begin activities in Gwynedd in July 2019.

The programme will end in March 2021.

6. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION

 Chief Finance Officer 

With the Cabinet’s agreement to for Gwynedd Council to act as the lead 
body, I will work with the Head of Economy and Community and the other 
relevant officers to claim the Arfor grant and to account for the expenditure 
on behalf of the 4 Councils.  Prioritising projects in Gwynedd’s Arfor 
programme is a matter for the Cabinet’s consideration 

 Monitoring Officer 

It is crucial  that a contract between appropriate authorities is completed to 
support the role of lead body to ensure clear process and sufficient security to 
the Council. 

Page 45



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to the Cabinet

1 DECISION SOUGHT
To approve the Housing Strategy in order to present to Cabinet for adoption 

2 REASON WHY DECISION IS NEEDED
The Cabinet are require to recommend the Housing Strategy before it is 
presented  for  formal approval by the full Council on the 18th July of 2019 and 
to  outline how we proceed over the next 5 years. 

On the 18th of June 2019 the Council Cabinet approved  an intial  allocation of 
£1.25m towards 3  schemes which will be  implemented during 2019-20.

Once the Council have formally adopted the Housing Strategy the Cabinet will 
undertake a cost benefit analysis of all the proposals contained in the Strategy 
and will then formulate an  expenditure plan

3 INTRODUCTION
The Housing Strategy highlights 26 individual schemes which will be 
considered along with an indication of the resource which is likely to be 
available. Some schemes create opportunities to attract additional external 
grant funding, to maximize attainment. Confirmation of investment will help 
progress and expand existing initiatives and to take advantage of collaborative 
opportunities by forging partnerships. 

The paramount consideration however will be what schemes are likely to 
deliver the most benefit to the residents of Gwynedd with due consideration to 
the cost of delivery.

Whilst we have secured the second home premium to fund an extended 
programme of activity, which would not otherwise be available, it is important 
that the resource is used effectively to maximize its impact. We shall therefore

 

Meeting Date: 16 July 2019
Cabinet Member: Councillor Craig ab Iago
Contact Officer: Arwel Wyn Owen
Item Title: Housing Strategy 2020/21

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



need to carefully assess all the proposals presented in the Strategy and to 
prioritize wisely.

Eguality Impact Assessment
We are required to undertake an equalities impact assessment of our 
recommendations in accordance with the Equalities Act 2010

The Department have undertaken an Equalities Impact Assessment which is 
attached as an appendix to this report. This assessment does not believe there 
are any negative impacts associated with adopting the Strategy. 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
 The Wellbeing Act places a duty on public bodies in Wales to improve 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being. As part of the duty the 
Council has published well-being objectives which outline how it will improve 
well-being in the “Gwynedd Plan 2018-2023”.

The principles of the Act have been an integral consideration in the preparation 
of the Housing Strategy and the Strategy intertwines with the Act's 7 well-being 
goals, and the Council's well-being objectives. The objectives has been a 
central consideration in the preparation of the Strategy and the principles of 
working outlined  in Part 5 of the Strategy mirror  the 7 well-being goals.

The action plans will be measured in part on the basis of these principles and 
the Council will expect all partners to adopt the working methods across the 
work programs. The operating principles will allow us to respond and meet 
Gwynedd's housing needs, without undermining people's future well-being. The 
proposed plans have been drawn up with the intention of working innovatively 
to encourage preventative action in order to try to reduce and avoid problems 
evolving in the future.

Consultation
We have considered the input our partners in developing the direction of the 
Strategy and the content has been reviewed in respond to comments and 
ideas received. The proposed schemes will allow us to promote further joint 
working and to identify new ways of working alongside our partners in order to 
maximize the benefit and impact upon the people of Gwynedd. We anticipate 
that a number of the proposals can help us to build new partnerships and 
strengthen existing arrangements by promoting joint planning and delivery in 
order to respond to the welfare needs of the people of Gwynedd.

In addition to consulting with stakeholders the Drafting Strategy was placed on 
the Council's website for a period of one month.

4 REASON AND JUSTIFICATION BEHIND THE DECISION
The purpose of this application is to secure support for the vision and ambition 
outlined in the Strategy which will help deliver an ambitious and 
transformational programme which will benefit the people of Gwynedd. 
The Cabinet meeting which met on the 18th of June 2019 have approved 
expenditure of £1.25 for 3 schemes to be implemented during 2019-20. It is 
intended to add to the list of schemes which would be delivered during  

Page 48



2019-20.

Gwynedd Council has received additional council tax income by charging a 
higher premium on second homes and long term empty properties and has 
committed that a proportion of the money collected, would be reinvested in 
housing to make a difference in the community. The attached Strategy confirms 
how part of that funding will be committed and how it will be prioritized in the 
future.

A copy of the Draft Housing Strategy was presented to the Care Scrutiny 
Committee on the 28th of March 2019 following an informal discussion with the 
Scrutiny Committee on the 31st January 2019. The content was adapted to 
address observations received and was supported by the Committee.

6 NEXT STEPS & TIMETABLE
The work program will be implemented on confirmation of funding.

7 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO MAKING THE DECISION
Comments of Statutory Officers
Chief Finance Officer:
Gwynedd’s Housing Strategy sets out a long term ambition and outlines a 
range of possible priorities. Approving the report before Cabinet does not 
commit any further funding beyond what was approved by the Cabinet on the 
18th of June 2019 ,an allocation of £1.25m outlined in section 6 this confirms 
the intention to establish a medium term work plan. I note that the appendices 
highlights proposals which could be prioritized by the Cabinet along with the 
potential funding sources which may be available I can affirm that the figures 
provide a fair estimation.
Monitoring Officer:
The report and appendices provide an appropriate basis for the Cabinet to 
come to a decision on recommending the Strategy. It is correctly noted that the 
Housing Strategy forms part of the Councils Policy Framework and 
consequently the decision to adopt rests with the Full Council but on the 
recommendation of the Cabinet.
Local Member/s:
Not applicable.
Consultation
A copy of the Strategy has also been shared with key partners to help co-
ordinate priorities and to ensure that it is possible to achieve within the 
timeframe. A draft consultation copy was also been placed on the Council's 
website.

Page 49



Homes for 
the People 
of Gwynedd

Gwynedd Council’s Housing Strategy
 2019-24 

        CYNGOR
  GWYNEDD
      COUNCIL

Page 50



CONTENTS
                                                                                                                   Page

   1. Foreword................................................................................................3 

   2. The Challenge.......................................................................................6 

   3. Our Ambition.........................................................................................9

   4. How Can we Change the Situation...................................................10 

     4.1 Ensuring that the people of Gwynedd are able to find a suitable 
           home.................................................................................................10 
     4.2 Ensuring that no one is homeless in Gwynedd.............................13
     4.3 Addressing the health and well-being needs of the people of 
           Gwynedd..........................................................................................14      
     4.4 Ensuring that Gwynedd homes are environmentally friendly.....15
     4.5 Offering preventative and seamless services at a local level....16

   5. Our Approach......................................................................................18 

   
   6. Funding the Strategy...........................................................................19

   Appendix A - The Successes of the Last Five Years..................... .......20

   Appendix B - List of Housing Solutions and Commitments..................21

   Appendix C – Outline of Likely Funding Sources to Support the 
                            Strategy................................................................... ........33

Page 51



3

1. FOREWORD
Gwynedd Council’s vision is: 

The above vision is set out in Gwynedd Council’s Strategic Plan for 2019-24. Housing has a 
key role to assist the Council to deliver its vision.  We know that having a suitable, quality 
home leads to better health, more resilient communities and a population that can 
contribute fully to society. It is important that we develop varied, innovative and green 
proposals that promote lifelong solutions as well as offering early support to those in need. 
As a Council, we will intervene to encourage a range of support and accommodation 
options to respond to the needs of the population today, and for future generations. 

At the heart of the Council’s Plan is an ambition to ensure that success in housing is 
planned correctly, is implemented in a sustainable way in the future, promotes social 
equality and maximises the opportunities for innovative development. Alongside this, it is 
necessary to ensure the steps that are taken respect the culture of our communities. 

Gwynedd Housing Strategy sets a long-term ambition and clear priorities for the next 5 
years.  We realise that our housing needs can change during different times of our lives, 
but what is constant is the need to live in homes and communities that are safe and that 
enable our people to live full and healthy lives and to promote their independence.     

One of the biggest challenges is to ensure that there is a sufficient supply of suitable 
housing that is environmentally friendly, and of high quality to address the needs of a 
changing population. The need for housing that is truly affordable has been identified as 
one of the main priorities in the Council’s Plan.  

The Council, Housing Associations and other partners, have achieved a great deal over 
the last 5 years, and it is important to identify and celebrate this success. Working with our 
partners in the housing field, we will continue to work towards preventing homelessness, 
increasing social housing within the County, and the number of empty homes that are 
brought back into use.  We have a great deal to be proud of as a County, and this gives 
us a good foundation to build upon for the future. 

The purpose of this Strategy is to set 
a framework to ensure that we focus
 on the correct priorities to provide 
homes for the people of Gwynedd 
and to make the best use of scarce 
funds to improve housing support and 
provision across the County. This Strategy 
was produced on the basis of the 
information and evidence available 
to us today.  We are also fully aware 
that housing, health, care and well-being 
issues are very high on the Welsh 
Government’s list of national priorities.  

“ “‘To support all the people of Gwynedd to thrive and live full lives in their 
community, in a County which is one of the best counties to live in.”

Page 52



4

This means that there is a golden opportunity for the Housing Strategy to make a 
difference over the coming years. Having said this, the picture is continually changing 
and therefore this Strategy has to be a live document that can respond to the different 
opportunities that may arise in future. We will collaborate closely with the Housing 
Associations and other partners to regularly monitor progress and adapt the priorities and 
the investment programme.

Strategy Structure

The Strategy follows a very simple format to try to ensure that it is easy to understand for 
those who read it and those who will implement it. It is clearly demonstrated what is the 
purpose and aim of the Strategy and the work stream is shown clearly by following three 
simple steps, namely; The Challenge, Our Ambition and Our Committment.  The fourth 
column (Our Approach) highlights the basic principles in terms of how we will implement 
the strategy in order to meet the needs of Gwynedd residents.

It can be seen that the last box notes the Measure of Success. Here the circle will be 
closed by measuring the success and impact of the commitments noted against the 
Ambition.  Then we can evidence if we have made a difference and have achieved 
the aims of the Council’s Strategy and Plan. These will be the main consideration as we 
review our work with our partners.  

Housing Strategy

MEASURING SUCCESS

The 
situation 
‘today’ 
and the 

challenges 
facing us

The Challenge

This is our 
long term 
ambition

Our Ambition Our Commitment Our Approach

What the 
Council is 

committed 
to do over 
the next 5 

years

The 
principles 

and           
approaches       
the Council  
will follow in 

its 
implenentation

Page 53



5

It is important to note that we will, when implementing the strategy, ensure that
our method of working feeds into the Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015), 
and that the strategy complies with the recommendations of the Independent 
Review of Affordable Housing Supply (2019). We will endeavour to respond the the 
recommendations in due course.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015)

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) sets out the ambition, consent and 
legal obligation to improve our Social, Cultural, Environmental and Economic well-being. 
It requires public bodies in Wales to think about the long-term impact of their decisions, 
to work better with people, communities and each other, and to prevent persistent 
problems such as poverty, health inequalities and climate change.

To ensure we are all working towards the same purpose, the Act puts in place seven well-
being goals.

One of the requirements of the Act is the completion of a Local Well-being Assessment. 

With this in view, the Council engaged 
with the residents of Gwynedd and has 
prioritised the 7 Local Well-being Goals. 
Achieving Gwynedd’s Well-being Goale 
will contribute towards achieving the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act

Our Goals drive all that we do, and in 
turn, everything will be measured against
 how the contribute towards these Goals

The delivery of the Goals is very reliant on
 the success of the Gwynedd Homes 
Strategy. The Strategy supports each of 
the goals across a range of service fields, 
and aims to show how suitable housing, 
of a good standard, can contribute towards 
well-being when planning for the long term.

Independent Review of Affordable Housing Review

Following the recent announcement of the Affordable Housing Review announced in 
April 2019, the Strategy will commit to deliver and implement on the recommendations 
adopted by Welsh Government.

Page 54



6

2. THE CHALLENGE
During 2018, an Assessment of the Local Housing Market was undertaken, which served 
as a survey of housing needs in Gwynedd. The findings of this Assessment will set the 
context to the priorities and the Strategy’s direction. Also, the information gathered in 
the Homelessness Review, Gwynedd Population and Well-being Assessments, and an 
Assessment of the Impact of Reforming the Welfare System will be used to get a full 
and clear picture of the demand for housing, and the challenges facing the people of 
Gwynedd.      

The findings of the assessments indicate that the demand for social housing and 
affordable housing in Gwynedd is currently higher than the supply available and the 
current response does not address the requirements of the local population now or for 
future generations. In addition, the assessments show that the population of Gwynedd 
is gradually growing, principally because people are living longer, and we know that 
an ageing population leads to an increase in the demand for care and health services.       
Consequently, if the housing provision it to contribute towards ensuring the best possible 
lifelong health and well-being for the County’s residents, we have to find varied and 
innovative answers by working together with our key partners. 

Main Findings

Population
Over 120,000 residents live in Gwynedd and the figure is increasing every year.  The largest 
increase is expected to be in the number of people over 80 years old, and this is mainly 
due to people living longer. In twenty years, it is expected that there will be an increase of 
60% in the number of people over 80 years old living in Gwynedd, whilst it is expected that 
the growth in population of people between 16 and 64 years old will be only 2%.  

The growth in the population of older people will place additional pressure on the housing 
stock unless a suitable new supply is available.  We need to ensure that we can offer 
help, support and housing options that are suitable for the needs of older people, and 
people who have care needs in order to help them to continue to live independently in 
the community of their choice. Older people have informed us that they would like to 
continue to live independently in their own home for as long as possible. However, the 
nature and construction of some houses are a barrier to achieve this. It is essential that 
flexible support options and suitable and varied types of housing or accommodation are 
available for all communities to enable this to occur. 

Affordable Housing
There is an annual shortfall of 580 affordable houses (social and intermediate) against the 
demand across Gwynedd. It is a huge concern for us in Gwynedd that an average of 60% 
of households are priced out of the housing market. In a number of communities it is very 
difficult, if not impossible, to find suitable property under £140k, and in some communities 
seven times the average income is required to buy property. Another challenge facing us 
in addressing the annual shortfall is the lack of tradesmen to construct housing. This lack 
of tradesmen has meant significant delay and an increase in costs in some schemes over 
the last few years. 

Private Rented Sector 
The Council deals with over 700 annual cases concerning poor housing standards in the Page 55



7

private sector. Housing of poor quality costs £67m per annum for the Health Service in 
Wales, and £1.5 billion in work illness. 

Grants are available for housing in multiple occupation (HMOs) to improve fire and 
security systems, however, we need to motivate landlords to let their houses to tenants on 
Local Housing Allowance.  

As a result of the changes in the benefits arrangements, the private rented sector is much 
less affordable, with some families on benefits facing a gap of up to £121 a month against 
rent costs. 

Social Housing Sector
At the end of July 2018, just under 2,000 people were on the Housing Register in Gwynedd.  
When comparing the needs of people on the Housing Register against the Social Housing 
stock, it is seen that the current housing stock does not match the demand. The main 
demand is for one and two bedroom accommodation for single people under 35 years 
old, however, there is a lack of supply of this type. This means that a high number of 
Gwynedd residents will be on the waiting list for a very long period.  

Empty Housing
We have identified approximately 1,300 empty houses across the County.  These are 
houses that have been empty for some time and their condition can be very poor.  This is 
a waste of a resource when you consider that nearly 2,000 people are on the Council’s 
waiting list. We believe that the list of empty houses is not complete, and efforts need to 
be increased to find them and return them into use as homes for our residents. 

Work Poverty
Work poverty describes people of working age and on a low income who are priced out 
of the housing market, and this is a challenge in Gwynedd.  The level of wages in Wales 
is amongst the lowest in Europe, and this is particularly true in Gwynedd due to the high 
percentage of people who work in the seasonal and hospitality work sector, which is 
often part-time and attracts low wages. Traditionally, this group of people have been 
priced out of the housing market, however, by today they are nearly out of reach of the 
private rented sector, and in danger of failing to find social housing.

Homelessness
Drawing from the North Wales Regional Homelessness Strategy, our research show that an 
increasing number of people are homeless or are at risk of being homeless in Gwynedd.  
An increase of 36% was seen in the demand for the service since 2014/15, and current 
evidence suggests that this increase will continue. The main causes of homelessness in 
Gwynedd are loss of accommodation, leaving prison, parents and relatives no longer 
willing to accommodate, breakdown of relationships and domestic violence. A high 
number of people who present themselves as being homeless are single people, and 
there is overuse of bed and breakfast facilities to support them, rather than established 
units.   

The private rented sector is often used to prevent homelessness but it is necessary to invest 
more in pro-active arrangements and to identify better ways of preventing homelessness.

First-time Buyers
First-time buyers face obstacles due to loan restrictions and not being able to afford a 
deposit. By now, there is a reduction in the number of people of working age in Gwynedd 
who own a house. This means that future generations will have to continue to rentPage 56



8

throughout their lives. We need to strive to reduce the gap between the private rented 
sector and the house ownership sector in an innovative and sustainable way. rentu gydol 
oes. Mae angen i ni ymdrechu i leihau’r bwlch rhwng y sector rhentu breifat a’r sector 
perchen tŷ mewn ffordd arloesol a chynaliadwy.

Income
We know that the average income levels for Gwynedd households are lower than the 
Wales average. In addition, a number of Gwynedd residents live in some of the most 
deprived areas nationally. It is expected that the reforms to the welfare system will have 
an impact on a large number of Gwynedd households and it is estimated that over 
5,000 households will come under the new Universal Credit system. It is anticipated that 
households on benefits will face substantial changes to their finances and entitlements 
and will receive up to £45 a week less. This could lead to more of the County’s households 
living in poverty.  

Energy Efficiency and Fuel Poverty
A high percentage of the County’s housing was built pre-1919. A high percentage of the 
County’s housing have stone walls, and parts of the County have no connection to the 
mains gas supply. This means that the maintenance and heating costs of these houses 
are high. Combined with the County’s low wage level, it can be seen that a number 
of the County’s households face fuel poverty and spend a substantial portion of their 
income on heating. It is estimated that 20% of the Gwynedd population are at risk of 
suffering from fuel poverty compared to 14% across Wales, and that the figure is up to 
29% in some individual wards. Gwynedd housing is responsible for 50% of the County’s 
CO2 emissions. Whilst the vast majority of this challenge derives from the distant past, 
not enough emphasis has been placed more recently on design, layout and building 
materials of the County’s homes. Although the situation continues to improve, mainly due 
to national requirements, there is a substantial investment gap to be closed if we want to 
raise standards and the energy efficiency of the County’s housing stock.

The Support that is available
The increase in the demand on services for people relating to Housing is a challenge to 
Council services and our partners. The Supporting People Scheme supports approximately 
2,000 people a year to live as independently as possible, and plays a key role in 
preventing homelessness. The main demand for service is from people who need urgent 
accommodation as they are homeless, fleeing domestic violence, young and vulnerable, 
leaving prison and / or with additional needs such as mental health or substance misuse.  
In 2018, 2,366 people (Supporting People Commissioning Plan 2018-22) were referred to 
such services, and if it was possible to invest more money to get a better understanding of 
the situation then this would assist with preventative work. 

Our assessments show that we need to look at how we offer support, and invest in 
preventative work (to prevent homelessness, retain and maximise independence, assist 
to reduce crime and the risk of crime etc.) in a coordinated way to those with housing 
needs. We have a number of schemes that integrate services within the field of older 
people and family support, and in the future it is essential that the housing field is a core 
part of our wider Integrated Teams and Service Clusters to prevent people from being 
referred from one place to another.  

In considering the above challenges, it is fair to note that perhaps we as a Council have 
not been progressive enough in the past to respond to what was facing us in the housing 
field, but the hope is that we can learn from those experiences, adapt our method 
of operation and cooperate with our partners to respond to the requirements of the 
residents of Gwynedd. Page 57



9

3. OUR AMBITION

In drawing up this Strategy, a wide range of data sources were reviewed and 
investigated.  Work was undertaken to analyse the local housing market and the 
relevant policies and legislation to define the challenge that face us. Also, and crucially, 
consideration was given to the views of local residents that have been gathered through 
engagement work and specific workshops conducted by the Housing Associations. To 
support this, elements of Housing identified as one of the main priorities in each area 
should be noted when preparing the Gwynedd Well-being Assessment. 

Whilst working to address these priorities, we are contributing to achieving the aims of 
the Well-being of Future Generations Act, which in turn will improve our Social, Cultural, 
Environmental and Economic well-being.

Some of the elements noted in the challenge, such as ownership, rent and support are 
not issues that can be resolved overnight and therefore the ambition set places specific 
long-term aims that will continue beyond the life of this Strategy.

Having considered the information available, our long-term ambition and what we are 
seeking to achieve in terms of providing homes for Gwynedd people are:

• That everyone’s home in Gwynedd is affordable to them. 

• A social house is available to all who require one.

• No one is homeless in Gwynedd.

• Various housing options for a wide range of needs and age.  

•   Plenty of homes available to enable the people of Gwynedd to stay and play a full   
     role within communities. 

• Investment in the housing field contributes to a thriving economy and contributes 
towards freeing people from poverty  

• Gwynedd housing are environmentally friendly. 

• Homes have a positive contribution to the health and well-being of the people of 
Gwynedd. 

Ensure that the people of Gwynedd have access to a suitable Home of 
a high standard that is affordable and improves their quality of life.

Page 58



10

4. HOW CAN WE CHANGE THE SITUATION 
The Strategy focuses on the initial possible steps towards achieving elements of our long-
term ambition. The Council outlines the possible action programme for the next five 
years through this Strategy. We intend to address these priorities to the best of our ability 
and with the resources available to us. Our aim will be to push the boundaries as we 
address the challenge, and to this end a programme is set that is beyond our capacity 
and current financial resources. However, all efforts will be made to fill this gap when 
appropriate opportunities arise.  

We have grouped the following possible commitments under relevant headings. Despite 
this, we are alert to the fact that several of these evidently tie in together, and that this 
will influence and impact others. A specific example would be Extra Care Housing. As 
residents move into Hafod y Gest, Porthmadog, this has released other properties within 
the community that can be new and suitable homes to individuals and other families, and 
possibly also help to avoid homelessness and create economic opportunities. 

Below, under each bullet point we have considered which Local Well-being Goals 
are relevant to each possible scheme. By doing this, we are ensuring that we target 
each objective and therefore work towards contributing to the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act.

4.1 Ensuring that the people of Gwynedd are able to find a suitable home

• Loans Scheme for Housing Associations

We will explore the possibility of a loan scheme for housing associations that will enable 
them to build more social housing to address the need in relevant areas. 

This will be an additional investment targeted to addressing the needs of individuals or 
groups in areas and communities where there is a specific need. We will prioritise areas 
where there is the biggest difference between the demand and the supply of housing, 
focusing on smaller sized units (i.e. one or two bedrooms). 

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

• Local Authority Mortgage Deposit Scheme

Helping first time buyers by offering a deposit scheme for a sum of between 10% and 15% 
for those who can contribute a deposit of 5% themselves. 

This will help local young people who cannot get a deposit of more than 5% to ensure 
better loan terms, and allow them to buy a more suitable home.  The mortgage deposit 
scheme offers up to 15% to people who have a deposit of 5% to buy an empty home, in 
recognition that work is required on the house.  

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Page 59



11

Contribution to deliver the Local Well-being Assessment

• Empty Houses Scheme 

The number of empty properties in Gwynedd is amongst the highest in Wales, and 
reducing the number of empty houses in the private sector is key to helping to find 
affordable housing for local people. Long-term empty property is a wasted resource. It is 
possible to bring these back into use in a fairly short time, and at a lower cost compared 
to building new properties.     

By working in partnership with private landlords, we will continue to give grant or loan 
assistance to improve the standards of empty properties; subject to offering the property 
at a local housing rent allowance level or less, and allocate to eligible local people. 
Consequently, the property will be renewed and returned to use, and we will ensure that 
the rent is affordable for a period of five years. 

This is a scheme that offers interest-free loans to motivate landlords to improve and 
maximise property standards.  Landlords who receive assistance will have to commit to 
offering property of high standard and to let property on affordable rent for a specific 
period. Grant assistance is also offered to first-time buyers to renovate empty houses to a 
living standard. This builds upon the good work undertaken by the Service at this time.   

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

• The Council’s building plan

One of our main priorities is to ensure that we have sufficient, affordable housing to 
address Gwynedd’s population needs, now and in the future. Over the next five years, 
we need to develop over 200 additional units to address this need, which nearly doubles 
our current delivery level. By undertaking this, the Council may take hold again on the 
ownership or part ownership of property and will increase its influence within the housing 
market.  

This scheme will enable the Council to build or buy property on the open market in order 
to let or offer to first time buyers by taking advantage of various financial sources that 
are available. This will not be a quick solution, but will present an opportunity to provide 
bespoke accommodation to address specific needs, which has been difficult in the past.

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Receive 
education

of the highest 
quality

which will enable 
them to do 

what they want 
to do

Live with dignity
and

independently for
as long as
possible

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Page 60



12

In order to find land for development and building, we will look to influence the use of 
redundant sites, namely locations that have received planning consent for some years, 
but where no progress has occurred.

The scheme will look to support and make use of smaller sized building companies, who 
otherwise would not be able to build or develop without the assurance that buyers have 
been identified for the developments. It is proposed to support the building industry to 
reinforce their range of skills and service provision in order to maximise local economic 
benefit.

We hope that investment from the Council will reinforce the efforts to attract additional 
investment from external sources and influence and attract other partners to jointly invest 
on the programme of ambitious plans that will transform the shape of the provision and 
make a real difference to the people of Gwynedd.   

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

• House Ownership Schemes

Our goal with this scheme is to make the most of external financial sources, and use 
Council and other partners’ land and resources to encourage developments that are in 
tune with our priorities to meet local housing needs. We will manage and administer a 
specific grant to facilitate developments by collaborating with Housing Associations to 
increase the number of affordable units for rent and to buy (be they houses, flats or extra 
care provision) in areas where a need has been identified.

There are several schemes that support people on low income to own property.  The 
Council has a long, established and effective relationship with Housing Associations 
to provide affordable housing for rent, but now opportunities arise to own or part own 
property in accordance with the capacity / need of individuals. These include specific 
schemes, such as: Buy to Rent, Self-build, Shared Ownership and Help to Buy.

Commitment and investment in housing will make a positive contribution in terms of de-
veloping the economy and will ensure employment opportunities and training.  By sup-
porting and promoting innovative buying schemes, we will ensure that the people of 
Gwynedd can benefit from the various options of owning property. In doing so, we will 
ensure that we will not only benefit from the opportunities that arise, but will lead the way 
in a progressive direction rather than merely as a customer. 

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

Earn a 
sufficient

salary to be able
to support

themselves and
their

families

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Receive 
education

of the highest 
quality

which will enable 
them to do 

what they want 
to do

Page 61



13

• Tai Teg Scheme

The role of Tai Teg is to assist persons to find affordable properties by advertising on their 
website, offering advice to applicants and administer specific schemes on the Council’s 
behalf. The Council will continue to work proactively with Tai Teg in order to maximise 
the number of affordable housing identified for the people of Gwynedd. This will include 
affordable housing on the open market, and property that comes into existence via any 
future eligible scheme.

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

4.2 Ensuring that no one is homeless in Gwynedd

When we hear the term ‘homeless’ we tend to think of people who sleep on the streets.  
The truth is that people who sleep out are only the tip of an iceberg, and that a significant 
number of people are homeless although they are not seen sleeping rough. Unfortunately 
people may find themselves homeless for several reasons

• Adoption of No Second Night Out Policy

The aim is to try and ensure that no one in Gwynedd has to sleep on the streets. We will try 
to do this by creating a clear accommodation pathway, including the adoption of ‘No 
Second Night Out’ policy. This policy, jointly with a Housing Association, will be developed 
specifically for those who sleep out, with the aim of supporting them to re-connect with 
an area where they have a connection, family or a support network. We will ensure that 
there is direct access provision that supports a clear pathway from the streets to support, 
offering stability and an approach that focuses on the person’s individual needs. 

We are determined to get to grips with the reasons and the real actual cases to reduce 
the levels of homelessness in Gwynedd.  We need to ensure that help is available for 
people who find it difficult to keep a roof over their heads due to complex and varied 
needs.  It is crucial that we strive to offer early help to prevent homelessness. We will 
continue to do this via our services and jointly with our partners. We all have a key role 
to play to improve the provision and support available for those who face mental health 
problems, who are ill, or have alcohol and/or drug addiction, and increasing capacity 
and raising awareness will be required in order to improve the situation.

We will also cooperate with the Housing Association to develop bespoke units that ad-
dress the needs of those who are homeless. 

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Page 62



14

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

• Provide Specific Units for the Homeless 

There is a need to review the County’s current provision for homeless people, together 
with investigating ways of ensuring that accommodation is available to them. The 
current provision in Corris is no longer fit for purpose to support homelessness services. Our 
proposal is to develop a new hostel in Dolgellau, either by building or buying jointly with a 
Housing Association. This would ensure that provision for the homeless would continue in 
the south of the County.

We will also take advantage of the Government’s funding sources to develop innovative 
and bespoke units for homeless people with complex needs, where sufficient and specific 
provision does not currently exist.

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

4.3 Addressing the health and well-being needs of the people of Gwynedd

• Bespoke joint provision with Health and Housing Associations

Gwynedd has an ageing population. In twenty years time it is expected that there will be 
an increase of 60% in the number of people over 80 years old living in Gwynedd. Older 
people have told us that they would like to continue to live independently in their own 
home for as long as possible, however, the nature and construction of some houses are 
a barrier for this to happen.  It is essential that flexible support options and suitable and 
varied types of housing or accommodation are available for all communities to enable 
this to occur.  Working with partners from the health and third sectors, we intend to 
address this in four main ways: 

   1. Extra Care Housing
   The Council and its Housing Partners have developed 3 extra care units to date. Our aim  
   is to develop more, which will be an evolution and variation of the existing 3 Extra Care 
   Housing schemes that are suitable to serve smaller towns. This would address the 
   need for additional schemes in four communities: Pwllheli, Dolgellau Tywyn and Blaenau 
   Ffestiniog. It is likely that they will be smaller than the existing ones in order to reflect 
   the need, and we intend to learn from the lessons of the current units regarding 24-
   hour care. It would also look for opportunities to nutrute and develop multigenerational 
   arrangements.

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Page 63



15

        2. Care, Health and Housing HUB
        This is a scheme that will bring Services together at one location to offer improved     
        support for the people of Gwynedd. 

        There are two locations for the HUBS under consideration: Bangor and Penygroes.     
        This will have the benefit of facilitating the experiences and access of users as well 
        as the efficiency of the organisations that will be located together.  The housing and 
        accommodation element will target specific groups.   

        3. Bangor Homeless Hub
        This is a joint development with the Abbey Road Centre and Betsi Cadwaladr    
        University Hospital, which seeks to bring providers and support services together to 
        ensure that support resources are available in one place. This will try and ensure that 
        primary units and facilities, and support resources will be available for the homeless in       
        the Bangor area, in a convenient, simple and appropriate manner.  

        4. Homes / Care and Health Units
        Historically there is a shortage of accessible properties, suitable for people with    
        care needs. By identifying a specific resource to find these properties, and to simplify 
        the process of gaining access to them, we will aid the process of releasing people 
        from hospitals into suitable properties that meet their needs.

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

4.4 Ensuring that Gwynedd homes are environmentally friendly

• Energy Recovery Scheme

It is a Council priority to improve the quality and energy efficiency of existing dwellings 
across all housing tenures, and to respond to the Welsh Government’s decarbonisation 
agenda. We will review the way homes are built to promote houses that are cheap 
to maintain and effective to heat and are environmentally friendly.  We will aim to 
be innovative in the design and building of houses that will be appropriate for our 
communities, that people will be proud of, in a way that will help to avoid poverty, 
support and make use of raw materials and local skills, and local workers where possible.   

The Council will place high priority to investments that will drive continuous improvements 
in housing quality, with particular emphasis on the most deprived areas, and privately 
rented property. Opportunities will arise to improve the energy efficiency of those areas 
with serious fuel poverty, by collaborating with partnerships to introduce energy recovery 
measures and by applying for a grant to extend gas pipelines to communities that are 
within reach in specific areas. We will also establish a housing repair fund, namely a loans 
scheme for vulnerable owners in order to improve the condition of their homes. The aim 
is to help people to retain and maintain their independence by making improvements to 
their homes. 

Live with dignity
and

independently for
as long as
possible

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Page 64



16

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

4.5 Offering preventative and seamless services at a local level

• Supporting People Scheme

The purpose of this Scheme is to help people to find a home, to retain it and to live as 
independently as possible. The support given is based on the needs of the individual. 

As part of the ‘No one Homeless’ policy, the People Support Unit will fund support that: 

• Helps vulnerable people who need support to prepare and move forward to live 
independently and successfully within the community.

• Helps people to increase / develop essential skills to enable people to retain / maintain 
their tenancies.  

• Helps people to increase and develop their life skills. .

• Helps people to gain access to and retain training or employment opportunities where 
appropriate.

•   Improves quality of life and well-being.

• Refers people to appropriate agencies / services when the service is unable to give 
assistance.  

The support will work towards the prevention of homelessness, to retain and maximise 
independence, enable people to gain access to information in order to make the best 
choices, help to reduce crime and the risk of crime, and help to reduce unnecessary or 
untimely admissions into hospital, prison or other types of institutionalised care.   

Supporting People will also work on a scheme to develop bespoke provision in south 
Gwynedd jointly with Health and Homelessness services. This will be an extension of the 
scheme that already exists in Arfon, and its aim is to provide a high quality support service, 
in relation to housing, for single people and families who are 16 years and over with 
multiple support needs. 

Throughout the life of the Strategy, the Plan will commission more services that provide 
low level support that helps to solve problems before they lead to a situation where 
people can lose their homes.  Support is provided to assist vulnerable persons to develop 
or retain skills and the confidence required associated with household management, and 
the entitlements and responsibilities that are involved with maintaining a home. Tasks, 
that if they were not performed sufficiently, could lead to a failure in an entitlement or the 
individual’s ability to continue to live in the home independently. 

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live in a quality
home within their

communities

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Page 65



17

Contribution to achieving the Local Well-being Assessment

• Review of Housing allocation system

The current system of letting social housing has been with us for some time and is based 
on a points scheme. It is timely for this to be reviewed and to introduce a new system that 
is easier to understand, and to address some of those issues that have been highlighted 
by applicants. By updating the system we will strengthen the position of applicants with 
a local connection to the area where the property is, and recognise the time applicants 
have spent on the register. It is therefore proposed to introduce a ‘banding’ system 
instead of the points system that is currently used. 

Within the ‘banding’ system applications for social housing will be placed in a specific 
band that reflects the level of need. This means that each application will avoid the 
confusion that may arise with the points system, where it is possible for an application to 
receive different points for different areas. This will facilitate and simplify the application 
process and will be an opportunity to maximise the focus on the local connection.  

Contribution to delivering the Local Well-being Assessment

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Enjoy happy,
healthy and safe

lives

Live with dignity
and

independently for
as long as
possible

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Take 
advantage 

oft the beauty 
of the County’s 

natural
environment

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Live in a natural
Welsh society

Page 66



18

5. OUR APPROACH
Due to the extent of the financial, environmental, social and economic challenges facing 
us, we will have to work in different ways in the future. Therefore, these are the principles 
that we will use as a basis for our work.  

It is noted that the above is in accordance with the Ffordd Gwynedd principles of work-
ing, as well as the ways of working identified by the Government in the Future Generations 
Act (Wales) 2015.  Our success will be measured partly on the basis of these principles and 
the Council will expect all our partners to adopt the methods of working in all the work 
programmes that will derive from this Strategy. 

Innovative Working - Looking forward and at innovative solutions to lead in 
the housing field by planning, developing and operating effectively. 

Early intervention and preventative working - Be proactive and solve 
problems before they become more serious. 

Ensure that we give value for money - Maximise all financial sources that are 
available to us in order to deliver for the people of Gwynedd and ensure 
that every investment contributes to the economy and to our skills pool in the 
County.

Working jointly with our partners - Place more focus on joint working and joint 
production with agencies, partners and nearby councils and share good 
practice for the benefit of the people of Gwynedd.

Placing the People of Gwynedd at the heart of everything we do – The whole 
focus of our work will be on the outcomes for the people of Gwynedd, 
eliminating any unnecessary steps from our current work processes. 

Ensure sustainability for future generations - Set green standards for our new 
developments that will guarantee future energy efficiency, across Gwynedd.

Maximise the use of Technology - Ensure that we are aware of new 
developments and technologies, and benefit from them in order to serve the 
needs of the people of Gwynedd.  

Page 67



19

6. FUNDING THE STRATEGY
The possible plans highlighted within this Strategy represent a substantial investment in 
the housing field. If we wished to achieve everything in the Strategy, the total amount 
of resources needed is far beyond that available to Gwynedd Council To realize our 
objectives, we will need to take advantage of any opportunity to maximize grant 
contributions and additional resources towards achieving our aims.

It is the Council’s intention to increase the resources available by using funding from the 
Second / Summer Home levy in order to mitigate the impact of that market on local 
residents.

However, there is a need to ensure that we use the limited resource we have to see 
the greatest impact for the residents of Gwynedd. That may mean focusing on specific 
schemes that bring the greatest impact rather than sharing the resources across the 
larger number of schemes, thereby reducing impact.

In order to do so, during 2019/20 we will undertake a cost benefit assessment on the plans 
set out in part 4 with a view to producing a 2 year rolling medium term action plan from 
2020/21 onwards.

In the meantime in the first year of the strategy 2019/20 we will fund Bespoke 
Accommodation schemes; Empty homes scheme and Housing Repairs Fund at a cost of 
£ 1.25m.

Page 68



20

APPENDIX A - THE SUCCESSES OF THE LAST FIVE YEARS

In looking forward, it is fitting that we also look back and learn from our experiences. Over 
the five-year period of the previous 2012-17 Housing Strategy we have: 

• Added 400 new social housing units jointly with housing associations.    

• Secured 100 additional affordable units through 106 agreements.

• Reduced the number of people/families who are living in temporary/emergency 
accommodation.

• Seen an increase in the number of cases where we have prevented homelessness.

• Achieved £8m disabled adaptations across the housing sector to support independent 
living.

• Brought 400 empty houses back into use (and a roof above approximately 800 
people) with year on year increase.

• Created 112 Extra Care Housing units for older people, in 3  projects namely Awel y 
Coleg, Bala,Cae Garnedd, Bangor and Hafod y Gest Porthmadog.

• Commissioned the services of a Debt Adviser who assists people to solve financial 
problems.

• Commissioned a service that supports people with multi-support needs, this group finds 
it difficult to gain access to available mainstream services. 

•   Established preventative services that give help and information to people, 
     before the problem causes difficulties that lead to the loss of tenancy. 

The above successes have  set a good platform for us to build upon with the Housing 
Associations and our partners. We are however going through a period of change due 
to legislative changes and the financial squeeze, which mean that it is inevitable that 
difficult decisions will have to be made. The strategy outlines a framework to ensure 
that we focus on the correct priorities and act in ways that maximise the  use of scarce 
resources.

We will take changes within the welfare system into account as we develop schemes.  
The impact of some of the changes is significant, and means that some families face 
additional challenges and there is a risk that some experience further poverty.  This means 
that the strategy will need to be kept alive in order to be able to respond to change and 
emerging needs. We also need to be alert to any  additional opportunities that will arise 
that may help to deliver our objectives.  

It is apparent that we must be ambitious and innovative to attract additional funding. We 
must view things through the eyes of the people of Gwynedd and push boundaries. Our 
ambition clearly states what we are aiming for, and we must use funding in different ways 
to achieve this.

The implementation of the Housing Strategy will contribute towards Gwynedd Council’s 
well-being goals as well as National aims and will make a positive difference to the health 
and well-being needs of the people of Gwynedd. 

Page 69



21

APPENDIX B- List of possible Housing Strategy Solutions

Introduction

The following programme of schemes includes ambitious ideas to assist and influence how Gwynedd Housing services will be 
delivered in the future.  It includes schemes that can be delivered immediately to address problematic issues and make a rapid 
difference together with longer-term transformational initiatives.  The programme outlines how we intend to enhance the speed 
of delvievey and maximise attainment within housing.  It also highlights new, ambitious ideas that may take time to be deliver but 
would change the shape of services.  Delivery of the prioritised schemes will only be possible by working collabirativley with our 
partners within Gwynedd’s Housing Parntership and its sub-groups. 

The programme focuses effort on activity that will make a difference in the difficult areas that create challenges or lead to 
additional costs to the Council.  There is also an emphasis on targeting investment on activities that will make a long-term difference 
to provision and the quality of services. 

Many of the schemes provide opportunities to attract additional and supplementary funding from external sources.  This will help 
maximise attainment and delivery.  To facilitate access to these  external funding sources the Council will need to commit an initial 
investment to ensure that proposals  are mature enough to attract funding and provide a  confirm a commitment to enhance 
partnership arrangments.  The adoption of the Housing Strategy and confirmation of resources will help develop and support 
developments in a practicable way helping to maximise external financial sources and opportunities for joint working.  

It is intended that the implementation plan will be approved by Gwynedd Council Cabinet with the necessary resource 
commitments for the first two years. 

Some of the schemes in the programme will be familiar their inclusion reflects the aspiration to extend and adapt schemes which 
have proven successful and popular and the desire to build upon the learning of past years. However, the programme also offers 
a number of more progressive and innovative schemes for the future.  In order to fully benefit from evolving opportunities, some 
flexibility will be required within the schemes to facilitate timing, to jointly plan and to maximise the benefit from external grant 
programmes. This Appendix is a live document and it may be necessary that sections will adapted within and between headings as 
we move forward to take advantage of new opportunities and to maximise attainment.   

P
age 70



22 
 

LIST OF HOUSING SCHEMES TO BE IMPLEMENTED  

 

A. ENSURING THAT NO ONE IS HOMELESS IN GWYNEDD 

 Title Description of Scheme 

Concept 

Benefit for the people of Gwynedd Estimate of 

scheme’s cost  

Investment 

required + number 

of Units  

1. Bespoke 

Accommodation 

 

[PODS Smaller 

Units] 

<6 months 

* 

Innovative scheme to 

provide (modular) 

accommodation units for 

single people without a 

suitable place to live. The 

council will build or 

cooperate with a Housing 

Association to secure 

bespoke units.  

Help to prevent homelessness and reduce the use of 

temporary accommodation by ensuring high quality 

accommodation at a reasonable rent and units that 

are cheap to heat and maintain.  These will provide 

homes for people where there is no suitable provision 

and who are most difficult to place.   

Phase 1 - £300k  

4 units 

(Welsh Government 

have offered 

sponsorship)  

 

Phase 2  - £90k per 

unit 

 

2. Supported Housing 

for Young People 

 

[Smaller Units] 

 

6-18 months 

 

* 

4 bespoke unit 

accommodation (self-

contained) in the Dwyfor 

area for single young people 

under 25 years old.  

 

Additional need to meet 

with demand from young 

people leaving care.   

Address the need for provision for homeless young 

people in the Dwyfor due to the lack of resources in 

comparison with other areas.  Assistance to maintain 

local networks and support to enable young people 

to develop skills to retain independence.  Wider need 

for units for young people leaving care to give them a 

solid foundation and the best opportunity to succeed.  

Anticipate a need for 2 units a year over the Strategy's 

lifetime.  

Phase 1 - £280k 

4 units 

Dwyfor  

 

Phase 2 £70k+ per 

unit  

 

 

P
age 71



23 
 

3. 21st Century 

Hostels 

 

6>18 months 

Scheme to enhance the 

Council's hostel provision 

and transform future 

provision.  

 

 

 

Improve standards and dignity of users by securing 

accommodation that meets with 21st century 

expectations. People will regain their independence 

by receiving support in a difficult time.  Families who 

use existing hostels have to share bathrooms and the 

provision is unsuitable for people with disabilities.    

£500k to upgrade 

re-locate/locate 2 

hostels  

 

(Resources from 

Asset Plan) 

4. Preventative 

Creative Fund 

 

<6 months 

* 

Creative intervention fund  

to identify permanent 

accommodation or to 

safeguard existing 

accommodation and 

support efforts with 'No 

Second Night Out'. 

Care and support will be tailored in accordance with 

what is important to the individual and a focus on 

creative solutions. There will be an emphasis on 

alternative interventions that reduce the dependency 

on temporary arrangements and promote operating 

in an imaginative way to prevent homelessness and 

support the 'No Second Night Out' campaing.  

£100k per annum 

 

5. Mortgage Rescue 

Scheme 

 

<6 months 

Extension of existing scheme 

to support a Housing 

Association to buy a portion 

or the whole of a person's 

property when they are  

facing repossession and loss 

of property.  

Ensure stability for families who face repossession and 

loss of property.  Supporting families within 

communities and saving on investment on temporary 

services and ensuring that households can continue to 

live and pay rent in their current home.    

£100,000 per 

annum 

 

4 Interventions per 

year 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 72



24 
 

6. Homelessness 

Prevention 

Facilitators 

 

<6 months 

Overcome any barriers 

outlined within the Strategic 

Homelessness Action Plan 

 

 

Over the last three years demand upon the service 

has increased by 36%, extra capacity is required to 

avoid transferring costs to temporary accommodation 

arrangements. The resource would address the 

Homeless Strategy priorities and help coordinate 

activities with internal and external partners. It will 

encourage better use of resources and reduce the 

dependency on bed and breakfast and short term 

arrangements that have increased alongside 

demand.   

£90k per annum   

 

(2 posts) 

 

7. Mental Health 

Worker 

 

< 6 months 

* 

Mental health worker 

resource to focus on 

accommodation and to 

cooperate with the 

homelessness service.   

 

 

90% of those living on the streets have mental health 

problems and mental health considerations are linked 

to the majority of complex cases attached to the 

homelessness service.   The resource would strengthen 

capacity and make a proactive contribution to 

identify and assess mental health needs and 

coordinate responses to prevent homelessness.  

£45k per annum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 73



25 
 

B. ENSURING THAT THE PEOPLE OF GWYNEDD HAVE A SUITABLE HOME 
 

 Title Description of Scheme 

Concept 

Benefit for the people of Gwynedd Estimated Cost of 

Scheme  

Investment required  

8. Empty Housing 

Scheme 

 

(a.First Time Buyers)  

(b.Landlord Loans) 

 

<6 months 

 

Evolution and extension of 

the Empty Homes scheme 

where grant assistance or a 

loan is offered to first-time 

buyers or landlords  to bring 

property back into use and 

to maximise the standard of 

empty properties .  

 

 

 

Address two priorities, namely :- 

a) assisting first time buyers to gain a foothold in the 

market and return empty property back into use and 

improve standards.  Pilot scheme has attracted a 

positive response with the demand above the 

allocated resource.  Opportunity to extend and 

reach more young people who can benefit from a 

scheme that works. 

b) Supporting landlords providing they commit to 

offering property of high standard and to let 

property on affordable rent for a specific period, 

and to accept nominations. 

£750k per annum 

 

20 units  for 1st time 

buyers  

25 units from Landlords  

9. Local Building 

Scheme 

(Gwynedd 

Council)    

 

18 months>    * 

Scheme to enable 

Gwynedd Council to buy or 

build new housing from the 

market to be let or offered 

to first-time buyers.     

 

Opportunity for the Council to have more influence 

within the housing market and to own or part-own 

property. It can be an opportunity to support smaller 

builders who could not continue to build without the 

assurance of buyers for some units, and could  

potentially support housing trust. 

£150k per unit including 

land purchase  

 

10. Rate Reduction Initiative to support 1st time 

buyers who are bringing 

long term properties back 

into use 

This will provide an extended period of exemption for 1st 

time buyers who re renovating a long term empty 

property. Currently an exemption of 6 months is 

permissible this would enable us to extend to a 

maximum of 12 months 

£40k per annum to 

support up to 40 

individuals. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 74



26 
 

11. Local Authority 

Mortgage Deposit 

Scheme 

(First Time Buyers) 

Social Tenants) 

6>18  months 

Deposit scheme that will 

offer a sum of between 10% 

and 15% to first time buyers 

with a deposit of 5%.   

 Scheme will also be open 

to Social Housing tenants to 

encourage them to release 

property.  

 

 

Helping local young people who find it difficult to secure 

a  deposit of more than 5%.  This will ensure better loan 

terms and enable them to buy a more suitable house.  

The scheme can offer a mortgage deposit scheme up 

to 20% for people who have a deposit of 5% to buy an 

empty home, in recognition that work is required on the 

house.   

As 'the right to buy' social housing has disappeared 

some existing tenants will lose an opportunity to buy 

property.  By offering a deposit it is possible to release 

social housing to those who have more acute needs.   

£10,000 per unit 

 

 

12. Shared ownership 

scheme  

 

<6 months 

* 

Scheme to address the 

housing needs of people on 

low income. This will allow 

people to share ownership 

of property with a Housing 

Association and there will 

be an opportunity to 

increase the percentage 

over time.   

Helping individuals who often cannot access social 

housing but who have difficulty to secure a mortgage 

and establish a foothold in the housing market.  

Individuals have to rent privately and pay a rent that is 

above social rent.    

£30k per unit to start but 

possible to recover or 

recycle   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 75



27 
 

13 Homebuy and 

Loans Scheme   

(Housing 

Associations) 

 

6>18 months    * 

Grants and loans to Housing 

Associations to increase the 

number of social housing 

they build to respond to 

need.   

 

 

Investment targeted to meet the needs of individuals in 

areas and communities where there is specific pressure.     

It will target communities where there is a difference 

between the demand and supply of Housing focusing 

on smaller sized units.   

£60k per unit  

with an additional % 

contribution from a 

Housing Association  

 

14. Venture Fund 

(Gwynedd 

Council)   

 

 

<6 months 

* 

Reserve fund to help bring 

schemes or developments 

into maturity to be 

presented to external 

sources and to offer 

assurance to partners.  

 

 

The fund would support  the development of a range of 

reserve schemes (that will be mature enough) to be 

presented at short notice and fill a gap when 

developments slip a continuous challenge when 

developing.   The Venture Fund will assist to forward plan 

and maximise external financial sources.   Currently, 

there are investment risks beforehand or commitment 

beyond the budget due to  the risk of losing out if 

developments slip.  The fund's purpose will be to bridge 

and fill a gap and ensure that there is capacity and 

expertise to develop and manage schemes. It will also 

be of assistance to deliver and escalate a number of 

the schemes outlined and meet with the initial 

commitments.   

Sum in reserve  

£500,000 to £1,000,000 

 

£100k to £200k per year 

to establish the fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



28 
 

 C. ADDRESSING THE HEALTH AND WELL-BEING NEEDS OF THE PEOPLE OF GWYNEDD 
 

 Title Description of Scheme 

Concept 

Benefit for the people of Gwynedd Cost of Scheme  

 

Investment required  

15. Extra Care Housing   

(Light - MK2)  

 

18 months + 

Evolution and variation of 

the existing Extra Care 

Housing scheme that is 

more suitable to serve 

smaller towns.   

 

 

Provide and address the need for an additional 4 schemes in 

different communities. (Pwllheli, Dolgellau Tywyn, Blaenau). 

The design of living units will be consistent with the standard 

and size of current extra care units but the scale of 

development will be smaller with between 15 and 25 units 

tailored for the demand within the community.  People who 

are younger than 55 years old will be able to access the 

service, but there will be no 24-hour presence. Opportunities 

for joint location and joint provision of service with Health.  

Cost approximately £2m for each location. Confirmation of 

commitment will help draw grant assistance for other 

schemes. 

£2m per scheme with a 

contribution of 42% from 

Housing Association and 

an opportunity to attract 

grant funding by 

committing to invest.  

 

Funding for 1 scheme has 

been confirmed in the 

Asset Plan. 

 

16. Care, Health and 

Housing HUB 

 

18 months + 

*   

Scheme to combine 

services and resources of 

different partners to 

improve standards and 

strengthen collaboration. 

 

 

Two HUBs under consideration - Bangor and Penygroes but 

other opportunities possible. The aim will be to facilitate the 

experience and access of users as well as the efficiency of the 

organisations located within them.  The housing and 

accommodation element will target specific groups, and the 

aim will be to get supportive communities.  Cost dependent 

on the size and number of activities that are combined and 

partners level of investment along with contributions from 

external funds.    

Cost to be confirmed 

dependent on the nature 

and size of the Scheme 

but requires significant 

investment.  

 

P
age 77



29 
 

17. Bangor Homeless 

Hub 

 

18 months + 

*  

Joint development with 

Abbey Road Centre and 

Betsi Cadwaladr. 

 

 

An attempt to bring providers and support together to deliver 

support resources in one location.  This will ensure initial 

accommodation units and support resources for the homeless 

in the Bangor area.    

Cost to be confirmed on 

the basis of the Scheme's 

size.  Applications for 

assistance being 

prepared  

18. Homes / Living Units 

Care and Health 

 

6 -18 months 

* 

Resource to specifically 

address the historical 

shortage of accessible 

property suitable for 

people with care needs.  

 

By increasing and improving access to a bespoke provision, of 

good design, we will facilitate the discharging process from 

hospital and reduce the risks when  supporting people in their 

homes.  Individuals can also be encouraged to take more 

control and to release under occupation for recycling to 

families.  

£70k per unit with a 

contribution from Housing 

Associations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 78



30 
 

 D. ENSURING THAT GWYNEDD HOMES ARE ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY 
 Title Description of Scheme 

Concept 

Benefit for the people of Gwynedd Cost of Scheme  

Investment per Unit  

19. Innovative Housing 

Fund   

 

<6 months 

* 

A resource to create and 

encourage innovative 

housing schemes. 

 

 

The cost of providing innovative units can be higher but there 

is an opportunity to take advantage and experiment with 

new technology and design securing housing of high 

standard that are cheap to maintain and heat.  It is expected 

that the cost can be reduced by increasing the number of 

units  purchased and there is an opportunity to encourage 

technology and the local workforce's skills and to promote 

economic developments.  Savings are also anticipated for 

residents in terms of costs e.g. heating.   

Around £90k per unit  

 

Can be reduced based 

on the number of units.  

20. Extend Gas Mains 

 

* 

Seek to extend the mains 

gas pipe to communities 

that are within reach.   

Tanygrisiau - Will assist to improve energy effectiveness and 

reduction of fuel poverty.   Can allow individuals in some 

communities to gain access to other measures such as boilers.  

£800k with an opportunity 

of attracting ARBED 

funding from WG towards 

the cost.    

21. Housing Repair Fund Loans scheme for 

vulnerable owners to 

renovate and improve the 

condition of their houses.     

Assist vulnerable people to retain and maintain their 

independence by reviewing essential improvements and 

urgent work to their properties.  Some investment can be 

recovered in the future when property is sold.  Extension of the 

current scheme.  

£200k per annum  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 79



31 
 

 E. OFFERING PREVENTATIVE AND SEAMLESS SERVICES AT A LOCAL LEVEL. 
 Title Description of Scheme 

Concept 

Benefit for the people of Gwynedd Cost of Scheme  

Investment required  

22. Social Property 

Lettings Policy   

 

<6 months 

* 

Introduce Allocation Policy 

based on Banding.  

 

 

By transferring from the existing points system and 

introduce a banding system, we will facilitate and simplify 

the application process.    It also offers an opportunity to 

maximise the emphasis on local and community 

connection and to deal with other matters that have 

been challenging.   

Within current resources 

 

23. Tai Teg Scheme 

 

(In progress) 

Assist individuals who are 

seeking affordable property.  

 

 

Maximise opportunities by implementing the Tai Teg 

Register for local young people to find affordable 

property by demonstrating the need and refer to 

affordable housing development.    

Joint commitment with 

partners within current 

resources  

24. Self-build Scheme 

(Welsh Government)  

12 months +  

* 

Assistance to facilitate the 

development of self-building 

plots.  

 

 

Help individuals to benefit from assistance to self-build. 

Financial assistance to facilitate the development of self-

build plots and overcoming problems of securing 

mortgages.  The Council can assist to achieve this by 

identifying possible land for such developments and 

taking developments forward to a certain level.   

Welsh Government 

Resources 

 

Assistance to facilitate 

and release land    

To be launched 

P
age 80



32 
 

 

The timescale to achieve will differ between schemes.  

* - Designate new plans and programmes that have not been previously implemented in Gwynedd. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25. Rural Housing 

Facilitator  

 

In progress 

Assistance to facilitate smaller 

developments in rural areas 

and address the difficulty of 

developing schemes in smaller 

communities  

Identify suitable locations for development and conduct 

community surveys to measure the size and type of 

demand that exists so that developments meet with need 

and are sustainable.  

Within current resources 

26. OT Capacity 

 

 

>6 months   * 

OT resources to speed-up and 

facilitate housing 

developments  

 

 

Facilitate timely adaptation work located or seconded to 

the Grants Unit.  This will facilitate and speed-up the 

process of completing adaptations especially DFG 

adaptations as it would be possible to prioritise work and 

cooperation.  

£45k per annum 

P
age 81



33 
 

 

  

Investments in the Housing field 2019-24 Annual (£m) Five years (£m) 

Assets Scheme - Gwynedd Council  

(to be confirmed) 

1.3 6.5 

DFG - Gwynedd Council   

(Confirmed in  the Asset Plan) 

1.3 6.5 

Second Homes tax - Gwynedd Council   

(Based on tax collected ) 

1.7 8.5 

Empty Houses Tax - Gwynedd Council  

(Based on tax collected ) 

1.0 5.0 

Sub-total 5.3 26.5 

PDP – Welsh Government 

(forecast) 

2.2 11.0 

Other grants - Welsh Government 

(Potential to attract additional money from schemes) 

1.0 5.0 

Sub-total 3.2 £16.0 

Contributions from Housing Associations 

(42% to some schemes) 

2.0 10.0 

Private contributions  

(Additional Private Funding and/or money that can be 

recycled) 

0.5 2.5 

Sub Total 2.5 12.5 

Total £11m £55m 

APPENDIX C – Possible funding sources which may be available 

P
age 82



34 
 

                                                             COMPARISON WITH HOUSING STRATEGY 2013-2018 

Current Housing Investments 2013 - 18  Annual (£m) Five years (£m) 

Assets Scheme - Gwynedd Council  1.0 5.0 

DFG - Gwynedd Council   1.0 5.0 

PDP – Welsh Government Grant 2.2 11.0 

Total £4.2 £21.0 

 

 

                                                               DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHEMES AND POTENTIAL FUNDING SOURCES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source Fund Title Amount £ Description 

Gwynedd 

Council   

Capital - DFG Housing 

Assets Plan 

£1.3m Statutory expenditure on adaptation for the disabled. Disabled Facilities Grant and Minor 

Adaptations Grant    

(Capital Programme) 

Gwynedd 

Council    

 

Transformation 

Capital  

Assets Plan  

£ 1.3 The link between Housing and Care means that Care and Health solutions are often 

attached.   Supported Housing applications are under consideration for four different sites 

starting with Frondeg Site, Pwllheli.   

Gwynedd 

Council   

Second Homes and 

Empty Properties Tax     

£ 2.7m The Council has introduced an additional levy of 50% on the Council Tax.  Tax receipts are 

to be re-invested to support Strategic priorities in the Housing field.  

P
age 83



35 
 

Welsh 
Government 

PDP 
Social Property 
Development 
Programme 

£2.2m The Council administers the annual financial allocation to the Housing Associations to build Social 
Housing.  The total allocation varies annually but does include a basic sum of £2.2m for Gwynedd.   
There are additional opportunities to attract slippage money but it is necessary to have mature 
schemes in reserve (usually land purchase and full planning permission will be required).  

Welsh 
Government 
Grants 

ICF Fund To be 

confirmed 

It is anticipated that there will be opportunities to attract money from the Welsh Government's 
capital fund for joint developments with Health e.g. Penygroes Care and Health HUB.  

Welsh 
Government 
Grants  

Innovative Housing 
Fund 

£300k Fund to develop innovative housing development plans and new housing ventures.  It will be 
necessary to identify some match funding to realise such schemes, between 30% and 58%, 
dependent on the nature of the scheme.  

Welsh 
Government 
Grants  

TRIP £1.5m  Housing regeneration fund targeted to specific areas (Bangor).  This includes an element of 
housing provision but is dependent on attracting match funding from other funds (private + 
council).   

Housing 
Association  

Housing Associations' 
Contributions  

£2m + Housing Associations can borrow additional private finance to deliver housing developments but 
normally they would require assistance (financial commitment, land or a combination of land and 
money to achieve the schemes).  For every £1 of grant assistance they could borrow 72p in 
addition (42%) for investment. If the Council's level of investment increases then the contributions 
of the Housing Associations can be maximised.   

Health  Health Schemes  To be 
confirmed 

Opportunities are highlighted to attract additional support through cooperation with Health 
(revenue and capital) especially if developments and services can be combined at the same site.  

Gwynedd 
Council    
 

Prudential Loans  £ to be 
 considered 

There is potential to offer housing loans at a lower interest rate to Housing Associations that would 
be cheaper than the existing private loans and would allow them to accelerate and increase 
programmes. 

Gwynedd 
Council   

Pensions Investment £ to be  
considered 

Opportunities to refer a portion of the Council's Pension Fund investments to support Housing 
developments.  Some Funds borrow money to Housing Associations to support developments on 
interest rates that are lower than what is available to Housing Associations in the private market, 
assisting to achieve more schemes.  

 

P
age 84



                    

See the  How to make an Equality Impact Assessment leaflet for help to complete this form.  
You are also welcome to contact Delyth Gadlys Williams, Policy and Equality Officer on ext. 
32708 or DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru, for further assistance. 

It is necessary for the Council (under the Equality Act 2010) to consider the effect any 
change in policy or procedure (or the creation of a new policy or procedure), has on people 
with protected equality characteristics.  The Council also has a general duty to ensure 
fairness and foster good relations.  A timely Equality Impact Assessment must be made 
before making any decision on any relevant change (i.e. which has an effect on people with 
protected characteristics).

1 Details 

1.1. What is the name of the policy / service in question? 

Gwynedd Housing Strategy 2019-2024

      
1.2 What is the purpose of the policy / service that is being created or 

amended?   What changes are being considered? 

The Gwynedd Housing Strategy sets the long-term Housing ambition, and clear priorities for 
Gwynedd over the next 5 years.

The purpose of this Strategy is to set a framework to ensure that we focus on the correct 
priorities to provide homes for the people of Gwynedd and to make the best use of scarce 
funds to improve housing support and provision across the County

     
1.3 Who is responsible for this assessment? 

Aled Humphreys
Strategic Housing Manager
Adult, Health and Well-being

1.4 When did you commence the assessment?   Which version is this?

22.03.19

Version 0.01

    
 

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 85

mailto:DelythGadlysWilliams@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


2) Action

2.1 Who are the partners it will be necessary to work with to undertake this 
assessment? 

The Strategy was developed with input from Housing Service managers, the Head of Adult, 
Health and Well-being, the Corporate Director and Cabinet Member.

2.2 What measures have you taken to engage with people with equality 
characteristics?

Relevant managers were given regular opportunities to feed into the Strategy as it was being 
developed.

The Strategy was influenced by the results of previous consultations, such as the Gwynedd 
Local Well-Being Assessment and the Supporting People and Regional Homelessness 
Strategies.

2.3 What was the result of the engagement?
The Housing Partnership (who represent the key stakeholders) were given an opportunity to 
offer their feedback on the synapsis, and comments were received that were addressed in the 
main document.

The results of the engagements provide a clear picture of the current situation in Gwynedd, 
and what we are trying to achieve. This is clearly shown in ‘The Challenge’ section of the 
Strategy, which leads to Our Ambition to be addressed.

Amongst other things, the main messages include the lack of properties for single people 
under 35, the population growth for the over 80’s, bringing properties back into use, supply, 
affordability and homelessness.

2.4 On the basis of what other evidence do you operate?
A detailed Local Housing market Analysis (LHMA) was undertaken to review the level of need 
of housing in Gwynedd. The LHMA assessed the current need and the need into the future. In 
doing this, it was possible to identify the housing tenure present across the county, and which 
tenures would be developed into the future.

2.5 Are there any gaps in the evidence that needs to be collected? 
A draft version of the Strategy will shortly be open for consultation and will be revised 
following feedback. 

Page 86



3) Identifying the Impact 

3.1 The Council has to give due regard to the effect any changes will have on 
people with the equality characteristics noted below.  What impact will 
the new policy/service or the proposed changes in the policy or service 
have on people with these characteristics?  You are welcome to any 
other characteristics if you wish.

Characteristic
s

What type 
of impact?* 

In what way?  What is the evidence?

Race 
(including 
nationality)

Positive The Council addressed the need of Gypsy and Travellers 
in accordance with Part 3 of the Housing Act (Wales) 
2014.

The Council have committed to receive 40 Syrian refugees 
and to support them in contributing to the local 
community.

The Council can provide relevant information in a range of 
languages.

The Welsh 
language

Positive The Strategy will correspond to the Welsh Language 
Policy

Disability Positive All new social housing will comply with Development 
Quality Requirements that take into consideration specific 
considerations such as space, accessibility, energy efficiency 
and safety. This can address mental health, learning 
difficulty and physical needs.

Sex Positive A high percentage of the social housing waiting list are 
single males under 35. There is an emphasis to develop 
smaller units (with respect to bedroom numbers) in order 
to address this need.

Age Positive It is challenging for young people to gain access into the 
housing market. The expected rise in the over 80s 
population is also a substantial challenge.
The Strategy will try and address this by promoting various 
ways young people can access housing that is affordable, 
and also by developing more extra care units.

Sexual 
orientation

none

Religion or 
belief (or non-

none 

Page 87



belief)
Gender 
reassignment

none

Pregnancy and 
maternity

none

Marriage and 
civil 
partnership 

none This is not considered within the Strategy – married and 
unmarried couples are not treated differently.

3.2 The Council has a duty under the 2010 Equality Act to contribute 
positively to a fairer society by promoting equality and good relations in 
its activities regarding the following characteristics – age, gender, 
sexual orientation, religion, race, gender reassignment, disability and 
pregnancy and maternity.   The Council must give due attention to the 
way any change affects these duties. 

General Duties 
of the Equality 
Act

Does it have 
an impact?*   

In what way?  What is the evidence?

Abolishing 
illegal 
discrimination, 
harassment 
and 
victimisation

Yes The Strategy doesn’t discriminate between different 
characteristics. The purpose of the Strategy is to set a 
direction to provide a range of homes for the people of 
Gwynedd that addresses different and varying needs.

Promoting 
equal 
opportunities

Yes The Strategy identifies the need to assist a wide range of 
people with varying needs, and to offer support 
according to their requirements. It also identifies 
vulnerable groups, and aims to give them the relevant 
support.

Encouraging 
good 
relationships

Yes The Strategy looks favourably at local people so that 
they can remain in their area and keep their local links. 

Page 88



4) Analysing the results 

4.1 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, positive impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or the General Duty and what is the reason 
for this? 

The Strategy will aim to ensure that older people are given specific consideration, that fair 
opportunities are given to all and that we encourage and support developments that adhere to 
the Governments specific standards (to ensure adaptations are possible should they be 
needed).

4.2 Is the policy therefore likely to have a significant, negative impact on any 
of the equality characteristics or the General Duty and what is the reason 
for this? 

The Strategy will not have a negative impact on any of the characteristics

4.3 What should be done? 
Choose one of the following:
Continue with the policy / service as it is robust X

Adapt the policy to delete any barriers 

Suspend and delete the policy as the detrimental impacts are too big 

Continue with the policy as any detrimental impact can be justified 

4.4 What steps will you take to reduce or mitigate any negative impacts?
We do not foresee any negative impact but we will be monitoring and dealing with any 
negative impacts that may arise.

4.5 If you are not taking any further action to delete or reduce the negative 
impacts, explain why here. 

None

5) Monitoring

5.1 What steps will you take to monitor the impact and effectiveness of the 
policy or service (action plan)? 

The draft Strategy will shortly be published for consultation and will be reviewed following 
this.

The Strategy will need to be a live document in order to respond to change and adapt to any 
developing needs. We will also be looking out for any opportunities that may arise that can 
help us to achieve our objectives.

Page 89



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

REPORT TO A MEETING OF 
GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Date of Meeting: 16 July 2019

Cabinet Member: Councillor Gareth Thomas, Cabinet Member – Economic 
Development 

Contact Officer: Iwan T. Jones, Corporate Director

Contact Telephone 
Number:

01286 679685

Title of Item: Economy Development Performance Report

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update you on what has been achieved in the 
field for which I am responsible as the Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development. This includes outlining progress against the pledges within the 
Council Plan; the progress of the performance measures; and the latest in 
relation to the plans for savings and cuts. 

1.2 We are now implementing the 2018-23 Council Plan, and I herein report on 
progress since April to the end of June 2019. 

1.3 In recent months, emphasis has been placed on the implementation of the 
projects that form part of the Council's 2018-2023 Plan. I am, generally, satisfied 
with the performance of most projects and each one is on the right track. I will 
be elaborating on progress in the report, and will refer to examples of good 
practice. 

2. DECISION SOUGHT

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report. 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING THE DECISION

3.1 In order to ensure effective performance management.

4. COUNCIL PLAN PROJECTS

4.1 Growth Vision for North Wales

4.1.1 The project's work includes being a pro-active member of the North Wales 
Ambition Board, and ensuring that Gwynedd benefits fairly from the investment 
that will be brought into the North Wales region. 

Page 90

Agenda Item 10

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

4.1.2 I am very proud that our Leader, Councillor Dyfrig Siencyn, is now the Chair of 
the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. 

4.1.3 The Department is continuing to lead on the Trawsfynydd Infrastructure plan, 
and an Outline Business Case has been submitted to Welsh Government and 
the UK Government. We are continuing to respond to the feedback of the 
private sector and Governments, as well as working pro-actively with 
stakeholders to develop the proposal. 

4.2 Create High Value Jobs (£26,500 + salary)

4.2.1 This project intends to target sectors that pay well by creating an environment 
that supports new businesses, grows existing businesses, and ensures that the 
local workforce is able to take advantage of the opportunities that exist. The 
project will focus on attracting investment to strategic sites such as the 
Trawsfynydd Power Station, Llanbedr Airfield and Parc Bryn Cegin/Parc Menai.

4.2.2 The work continues to attract a new development to the Trawsfynydd site. We 
are working with Welsh Government to establish a purposeful development 
entity for the Site to move activities forward. 

4.2.3 We are in the process of entering into contracts with the Snowdonia Aerospace 
Centre to enable the implementation of a programme of improvements to 
buildings on the site. Work is ongoing with the Snowdonia National Park 
Authority to ensure Planning Permission to improve access to the site, and thus 
attracting funding to build a bypass for the village of Llanbedr. 

4.2.4 Once again this year, it was great to see local children being welcomed to the 
Snowdonia Aerospace Centre in Llanbedr as part of the international 
competition of the Institution of Mechanical Engineers (IMechE). 80 primary 
and secondary school pupils from Meirionnydd schools visited; they had an 
opportunity to speak to competitors from universities all over the world, as well 
as the opportunity to construct spaceships, fly model aeroplanes, fly a virtual 
reality aeroplane, etc. 

4.2.5 We receive feedback that a number of businesses still face barriers that 
prevent them from growing; mainly, due to the uncertainty surrounding Brexit, 
and a lack of sufficient business space. 

4.2.6 We are leading on the STEM Gogledd project, the full team is now in place, 
and engagement work with beneficiaries has commenced. I look forward to 
reporting on the progress of the project, and the success of the pupils aged 11-
19 who are supported through the project. 

4.3 Arloesi Gwynedd Wledig Programme

Page 91

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

4.3.1 The purpose of this programme is to build on the good work that has already 
been done to transform the rural economy by encouraging innovation within 
traditional sectors (such as agriculture and tourism) as well as improving the 
digital infrastructure for rural communities.

4.3.2 Work continues with a number of exciting and ground-breaking developments 
in the pipeline across the County. 37 pilot schemes have been completed by 
Arloesi Gwynedd Wledig, nearly 300 promotion / information sharing activities 
have been held, meaning that contact was made with 4,500 Gwynedd 
residents. Some of the recent highlights include (a host of other examples of 
the Arloesi work can be seen online):

 the completion of the help for enterprise scheme;
 the recruitment of communities to trial the use of electric community 

cars;
 an investigation into the provision of WiFi around Snowdon;
 the installation of a local produce vending machine and piloting an 

activity to regenerate shopping streets.

4.3.3 I am pleased to see some of the Leader trials being developed further. 
Following initial work to raise awareness of the potential of Internet of Things in 
Gwynedd, a major campaign has been launched across Gwynedd and 
Anglesey under the banner "A Year of IoT" which will continue with the work 
and will provide a national profile in the field for the area.  

4.3.4 Gwynedd Council is leading on the Arfor programme, local structures for 
leading and managing the plan have been established, and five plans have 
been identified. Further details on these will be submitted to the Cabinet in a 
separate report.

4.4 Increase the Benefits from Major Events

4.4.1 The purpose of this project is to attract high-profile events to Gwynedd in order 
to take advantage of the economic and social benefit that will ensue.

4.4.2 There has been a good response to the open call for events in the 2019/20 
term. In Quarter 1, one event has succeeded in generating a local economic 
benefit of £200,428. 

4.5 Promoting Town Centres

4.5.1 The purpose of this project is to support and facilitate the town centre 
regeneration to maintain a range of services for local residents and visitors 
within a lively environment with a Welsh atmosphere. 

Page 92

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

4.5.2 The impact of the capital investments valued at £15m to regenerate the 
Caernarfon Waterfront is becoming increasingly evident in the town. To date, 
the Caernarfon Waterfront initiative has created 29.5 jobs. 

4.5.3 The construction work at the Slate Quay is ongoing, and it is expected to be 
completed by February 2020. It was great to see the Ffestiniog and Welsh 
Highland Railway Station opening officially on 14 June, with Lord Dafydd Ellis-
Thomas there as part of the opening. 

4.5.4 The initial investment to establish the Business Improvement Area (HWB 
Caernarfon), has led to the improvement of buildings, establishing a free WiFi 
network, the colourful umbrellas on Palace Street (as part of the Arloesi 
Gwynedd Wledig trials), art schemes and discussions to open the Tourist 
Information Centre. Work is in the pipeline between all partners to develop a 
marketing package for Caernarfon, to open new markets and to extend the 
season. 

4.5.5 We have ensured that Bangor is a regeneration priority for north Wales. If you 
remember, Bangor was the only eligible destination in Gwynedd. We have 
received support in principle by the Cabinet for a package of proposed plans 
as prioritised by the Partnership. A Property Investment fund (£2.16m) has been 
set up, and considerable interest has been seen in the initial months. 

4.5.6 The Council is also continuing to offer support to the Business Improvement 
District in Bangor, but I am becoming increasingly aware of the demand on the 
business community with regard to managing and leading the system of the 
Improvement Districts.

4.5.7 I am pleased to report that a bid for funding of £2m across north Wales has 
been approved to implement the Important Buildings plan (Welsh 
Government's TRI Fund), the plan's areas in Gwynedd are limited to Bangor and 
Caernarfon as a starting point, work will commence to identify properties and 
discuss with owners in order to take advantage of the opportunity. 

4.5.8 The Department is also driving forward with the work of establishing a corporate 
Regeneration Board and, with this; we will drive forward to further research how 
we can support the regeneration of a wider range of Gwynedd town centres.

4.6 Implementing the Gwynedd Slate Heritage 

4.6.1 The purpose of the project is to deliver a programme of regeneration activities 
in the slate areas, and continue to work to secure a World Heritage Site status 
for the slate industry in Gwynedd.  

Page 93

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

4.6.2 We have agreed on a timetable with DCMS in order to present the Gwynedd 
Slate nomination to UNESCO in November 2019, and the decision will be 
announced in July 2021. A report will be submitted to the Cabinet in October 
in order to agree on the plan. 

4.6.3 A programme of community activities are ongoing, including a young 
ambassadors' scheme that is run in partnership with the Welsh Slate Museum. 
14 Young Ambassadors aged between 12 and 18 have been appointed as 
part of the LleCHI scheme across Gwynedd. 

4.7 Benefiting from Tourism

4.7.1 The purpose of this project is to look at the possibility of getting visitors to 
contribute financially to maintaining and enhancing Gwynedd destinations 
and raising the standards of the tourism sector. By doing so, we will improve the 
provision of the county's destinations and increase the standard of the provision 
for the tourist industry.

4.7.2 An expert was commissioned to scrutinise the field and report on potential 
models to move forward and the required implementation structures. A draft 
report on the options has been submitted to the Project Board, and this will be 
the basis of the report for the Cabinet in future. 

4.8 Businesses receiving support to Prosper 

4.8.1 The purpose of the project is to establish a way of working within the Council 
that places the needs of businesses at the centre, and attempts to remove 
obstacles that prevent them from establishing and growing in the county.

4.8.2 I am glad to report that an initial meeting of the Project Board has been 
arranged to move this project forward, to discuss and agree on the brief and 
project plan. 

4.9 More Gwynedd residents playing a full part in the world of work

4.9.1 The purpose of this project is to focus on a series of activities that will encourage 
Gwynedd residents into employment.

4.9.2 The Gwaith Gwynedd (Gwynedd Work) employment pack is still supporting 
individuals to overcome obstacles to employment. So far, 261 individuals have 
received a relevant qualification/accreditation for work, and 105 have moved 
into employment. 

4.9.3 As part of the project, work is done to collaborate with employers and services 
within the Council in order to ensure that the programme meets the needs, 
following discussions with the Provider Service, a Care Career booklet has been 

Page 94

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

developed, and hopefully there will be a follow-up to this with a training 
package. 

5. MEASURING PERFORMANCE

5.1 Appendix 1 reports on performance measures that are associated with my 
portfolio.   

5.2 Although it is early in the year, I am satisfied that the department is on the right 
track in terms of performance measures.

5.3 The department collects field measures (where more than one service feeds 
into the measure) and measures for each service.

5.4 Field Measures

5.4.1 Businesses that receive support - During Quarter 1, 75 businesses have received 
support by the Department, and 59% (44) of those derive from Tourism and 
Marketing activity. 

5.4.2 High Value Jobs have been created - During Q1, five high value jobs were 
created by the Smart Storm company in Parc Menai. 

5.5 Service Measures

5.5.1 The vast majority of the Economic Development Programmes Service resources 
are directed to implementing the Council Plan's projects, with attention also 
being given to connected strategic matters and their delivery, such as 
improving connectivity in the county, or matters that could be a risk to achieve 
priorities such as Brexit and the uncertainty about UK funding in future. 

5.5.2 The Business Support Service provides information, advice and assistance to 
businesses for them to establish, be competitive and develop in Gwynedd. The 
service is responsible for implementing, managing and promoting loan funds 
such as the Caernarfon Town Centre Loans Fund and the Bangor Area Fund.

5.5.3 Once again this year, the Gwynedd Business Week was held in May 2019, with 
a range of business events being organised, as well as the business awards' 
ceremony. It was great to see very positive feedback to all events. 

5.5.4 One of the local priorities of the Council Plan is to promote and regenerate the 
High Street in Dyffryn Ogwen and Dyffryn Nantlle; an Interest Free Loans Fund is 
operational in Bethesda and Penygroes. 

5.5.5 The ‘Business enquiries acted upon' measure shows that the number of business 
enquiries has fallen (26 in quarter 1) in comparison to previous years due to a 
lack of financial schemes. A marketing campaign to raise awareness of the 

Page 95

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Town Centre Loan Funds, and the new grant scheme for Bangor City Centre 
and the Help for Enterprise Pack is part of the Arfor Programme's provision in 
Gwynedd.

5.5.6 The ‘Council owned industrial / commercial space that are full' measure reveals 
that 94% of our industrial units are full. This is a reduction from the previous 
quarter, but marketing work is in progress to attempt to let the vacant units. 

5.5.7 The purpose of the Tourism, Marketing and Events Service is to maximise the 
benefit and value of tourists to Gwynedd's economy. The new Snowdonia 
Mountains and Coast website (https://www.visitsnowdonia.info/) is now live, 
and we have already seen the number of hits rise by 9.9% in the first quarter. 

5.5.8 Funding from Visit Wales' Regional Tourism Engagement Fund (RTEF) was 
secured to fund two projects, namely to promote areas outside the main 
season, namely the Coastal Path jointly with Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion 
Councils, and the other, North Road, jointly with the North Wales Local Councils.

5.5.9 The purpose of the Maritime and Country Parks Service is to ensure quality safe 
resources in our Country Parks, Harbours, and Marinas and on the beaches of 
Gwynedd in order to create a leisure destination for local people and tourists. 

5.5.10 Work is continuing on the management of Hafan Pwllheli, and a further report 
will be submitted to the Cabinet in due course. 

5.5.11 I am eager to see forward planning within the Maritime Service in order to 
attract more people into the field. I see an opportunity to research 
opportunities such as apprenticeships. A Report will be submitted to the 
Cabinet on the matter in due course. 

5.5.12 It is disappointing to report that there are now only six International Blue Flag 
beaches in Gwynedd, as Aberdaron and Tywyn lost their banners because the 
standard of their bathing waters had not reached the required standard in 
2018. 

5.5.13 The purpose of the Libraries and Information Service is to ensure that Gwynedd 
residents have access to support, resources and information that gives them 
the opportunity to learn and acquire skills, read and enjoy. It is very 
encouraging to learn that 99% of users are satisfied with the service they 
receive.

5.5.14 A company has been appointed in order to complete the work of 
reconditioning the Caernarfon Library Storage shelves, and it is aimed to 
complete the work before the end of November 2019. 

5.5.15 Following a successful application for a Libraries' Transformation Grant through 
MALD for £120,000, work will be carried out to enhance facilities and resources 
in Pwllheli Library. 

Page 96

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru
https://www.visitsnowdonia.info/


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

5.5.16 A Coding Club for Children was held at Pwllheli Library in co-operation with 
Coleg Meirion Dwyfor, where a number of students from the college 
volunteered to support children with their coding skills. 

5.5.17 The Museums and Arts Service runs two museums in Gwynedd and is 
responsible for the collections and creating exhibitions at both, namely: Storiel 
and the Lloyd George Museum. 

5.5.18 The Friends of the Lloyd George Museum have worked with the Lloyd George 
Museum in order to commission a Co-ordinator. Legal issues have arisen with 
the Lloyd George Museum, and a report will be submitted to the Leadership 
Team with regards to the Council's role as a Trustee. 

5.5.19 I am concerned about Storiel's financial situation following the end of the 
Lottery funding. Storiel had a £72k overspend at the end of the 2018/19 
financial year, this was a combination of staff overspend and income deficit. I 
have asked officers to revisit Storiel's Business Plan in future. 

5.5.20 The process of establishing and registering Storiel's Development Trust has 
commenced. Initial work will commence soon in order to make a HLF 
application and look at the business elements, raise funds as well as the 
learning and community elements. 

5.5.21 Since the closure of Neuadd Buddug, the digital equipment has been 
transferred to the Derek Williams Theatre on the Ysgol Godre'r Berwyn site, so 
that the community group can provide theatre and cinema services there. A 
Community Co-ordinator has been appointed, and Friends of the Derek 
Williams Theatre has been established. This is the beginning of a new era for the 
arts in Bala. 

5.5.22 The service hold regular meetings with the Libraries Service and the 
theatre/cinema to consider the vision for Neuadd Dwyfor. 

5.5.23 The Museums and Arts Service as well as some other services will be reviewing 
the purpose and measures as Ffordd Gwynedd reviews and changes take 
place in light of savings / income targets and restructuring. 

5.5.24 The purpose of the Archives Service is to protect our public records and ensure 
that people have access to them, by providing two Archives in Gwynedd. 

5.5.25 The descriptions of the Archives Service's conclusion is now available on the 
Archives Hub, and this has attracted many enquiries. 

5.5.26 Following discussions over some years with the Betsi Cadwaladr University 
Health Board and North Wales Archives, arrangements are in the pipeline to 
begin transferring health documents in order to comply with statutory duties. 

Page 97

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

5.5.27 The Education Officer has held sessions at Ysgol y Felinheli and Ysgol 
Maeonofferen as part of the LleCHI project in order to show quarry materials 
that will be used to inspire the children to create artwork. 

5.5.28 We anticipate opportunities arising, given the new curriculum and the potential 
role for Education Officers, Archives and Museums. 

5.5.29 The Supporting Communities Service supports people and local enterprises to 
play a key role in the regeneration process. The newly reformed service will be 
promoted across Gwynedd over the coming months. 

5.5.30 The Cist Gwynedd fund is valuable to the County's voluntary groups. The first 
round has been held, and all funds have been allocated, which reflects the 
need for small grants to support communities and the third sector. 

5.5.31 The Sports for Life Service offers a range of inclusive physical activities. The 
Secondary Ambassadors programme has ended for the year, but the qualified 
Ambassadors receive opportunities to lead sessions and be part of events 
across Gwynedd. 

5.5.32 Work is being carried out to target the participation of specific groups. A taster 
day was arranged for women only as part of the GGG plan as part of the North 
Wales Slalom (part of the Wales canoeing talent path) and, as a result, the 
weekly sessions in Llanberis are full, with the intention of starting new sessions. 

5.5.33 26 regularly attend the Active Family Fitness sessions on Tuesday evenings in 
Maesgeirchen. Through the Playmakers and DIT scheme, and with the co-
operation of the Sport for Life Team Officer and the Disabilities Development 
Officer, 350 children have received training, which expands on the dinner time 
physical activity provision at schools. 

5.5.34 The 2019 Snowdonia Challenge was a great success and a two-day Outdoors 
competition for further education colleges in Wales was held in Llanberis, and 
was led by the Gwynedd Outdoor Activities Development Officer. 

5.5.35 The Economy and Community Department has awarded a contract to the 
Byw'n Iach company to manage the Healthy Living Centres from 1 April 2019. 
The Council will meet with the company during July in order to monitor the 
progress of quarter 1

6. FINANCIAL/SAVINGS SITUATION

6.1 Five of the 2019/20 savings schemes have either been realised or are on track 
to be realised on time before the end of the financial year. 

6.2 The parking order will be introduced at a number of sites across Council 
Departments, including the three parking plans, namely Reconciling parking 
fees through introducing parking fees for new sites (e.g. the Glyn area), 

Page 98

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

establishing parking fees in Dinas Dinlle and increasing launching fees and also 
Reviewing fees and arrangements in Storiel. Preparation work is currently 
underway in terms of proposals to incorporate a number of new sites into the 
Gwynedd Parking Order. There is also an intention to update the Council's fee 
structure to be in-keeping with the work, and an application has also been 
made to incorporate additional aspects (e.g. cards for locals). 

6.3 The plan to increase launching fees on Gwynedd beaches will be postponed 
due to the need to have a plan to manage security risks for staff, as the risk of 
violent behaviour is increasing. 

6.4 In terms of Neuadd Dwyfor we see substantial risks to achieving savings. The 
Department is developing a business case, and a substantial capital 
investment will be required to realise the savings. Additionally, financiers such 
as the Arts Council, Visit Wales, and others will need to be ascertained. I will 
present a report to the Leadership Team with the details.  

6.5 The new Leisure Company must be given an opportunity to establish itself 
before identifying opportunities to move the status from amber to green on the 
plan to Reduce the subsidy for the new Leisure Company 

7. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

7.1 None to note 

8. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION

8.1 Views of the Statutory Officers

i. Monitoring Officer:
No observations to add with regards to propriety.

ii. Head of Finance Department:
The report notes the situation of the Economy and Community 
Department in terms of realising the savings schemes, with five of the 
2019/20 savings schemes having already been realised or on track to 
being realised on time, and the risk involved with the other plans having 
been noted in part 6 of the report. Finance officers will assist the 
responsible Cabinet Member in monitoring the progress against these 
schemes, and we will be in a position to further report on the progress 
following the next financial review. 

We have already highlighted a concern regarding Storiel's financial 
situation in our '2018/19 Final Accounts – Revenue Outturn’ that was 
submitted to Cabinet on 21/6/19, with Storiel overspending by £72k at the 
end of the 2018/19 financial year. It is vital that the Economy and 
Community Department takes appropriate steps to manage this situation.

Page 99

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL

Contact:
01286 679729    01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

8.2 Views of the Local Member:

8.2.1 Not a local matter. 

8.3 Results of Any Consultation

8.3.1 None to note 

Appendices:

Appendix 1 Measures of the Economy & Community Department 
(Economy Development) 

Page 100

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


APPENDIX 1

MEASURES OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
(up to the end of Quarter 1 2019/20) 

Field Measures

394

213

75

17/18 18/19 Q1 19/20 Q2 19/20 Q3 19/20 Q4 19/20
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Businesses that receive support 
(number – 19/20 cumulative)

COMMENTS: 59% (44) derive from Tourism and Marketing activity

21 20 57 5

25

37

39

2
16/17 17/18 18/19 Q1 19/20 Q2 19/20 Q3 19/20

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100
110

High Value Low Value

Jobs created by initiatives in reciept of support 
(number – 18/19 cumulatively)

COMMENTS: 7 jobs have been created through initiatives receiving support in Q. 1, with 5 being 
high value jobs.   

Page 101



APPENDIX 1

Service Measures

Business Support Service

Measure 2017/18 
Performance

2018/19 
Performance

Q 1 
Results Comments

Number of business 
enquiries acted upon by 
the Unit

220 202 26 The number of business 
enquiries has reduced in 
comparison to previous 
years due to a lack of 
financial support plans - a 
marketing campaign to 
raise awareness of the Town 
Centre Loan Funds, and 
also the new grant scheme 
for Bangor City Centre and 
the Help for Enterprise Pack.

Council owned industrial / 
commercial space 

94% 96% 94% The percentage has fallen 
slightly during the first 
quarter. Work on marketing 
and letting vacant units is in 
progress.

Tourism and Marketing Service

Measure 2017/18 
Performance

19/20 
Performance

Q 1 
Results Comments

Visits to the Snowdonia 
Mountains and Coast 
Website 

972,831 1,011,854 263,486

(+ 9.91%)

Museums and Arts Service 

Measure 2017/18 
Performance

19/20 
Performance

Q 1 
Results 1 Comments

Number who use the 
museums and galleries

62,788 59,941 9,595

Page 102



APPENDIX 1

Archives Service

Measure 2017/18 
Performance

18/19 
Performance

Q 1 
Results Comments

Number of people who 
use the Service

- 28,478 5,979

Customer Satisfaction 
Percentage

96% 94% 90% Up to 14 June, 281 had 
completed the slips: 

"The staff are always 
friendly and helpful. It's a 
shame that the Archives 
isn't open 5 days a week."

Libraries Service

Measure 2017/18 
Performance

18/19 
Performance

Q 1 
Results 1 Comments

Number of items loaned 
out

473,255 465,479 66,315 The trend shows a 
reduction in loans in 
general - this is also true 
across north Wales.

Number of visits 346,567 358,904 5,797 The figure compares well 
and is an improvement on 
the corresponding figures 
of visits in Quarter 1 in 
2018/19 (5,386) 

Page 103



www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Contact:
01286 679868
01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 
Date: 16 July 2019 

Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for 
Finance 

Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report.

Cabinet Member: Councillor Ioan Thomas

Contact Officer: Dafydd Edwards, Head of Finance Department

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has been 
happening in the fields within my remit as Cabinet Member for Finance. This 
includes outlining the progress against the pledges within the Council's Plan; the 
progress of the performance measures; and the latest in relation to the savings and 
cuts schemes.

1.2 The matters noted in this report have already been the subject of discussions and 
have been scrutinised at a meeting of the Finance Department management 
team, which also included representation from the Audit and Governance 
Committee, who is undertaking the scrutiny role in this field.

1.3 On the whole, I am comfortable with the performance of the projects and 
performance measures for which I am responsible, or that relevant steps have 
been taken to improve performance.

2. THE DECISION SOUGHT

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report. 

3. CONTINUATION OF WORK ON 2017/18 GWYNEDD COUNCIL PLAN PROJECTS

3.1 Both projects below were a priority within the abovementioned Plan that ended in 
March 2018. The work of implementing the Information Technology Strategy is 
continuous and, therefore, I will continue to report on this work until the new 
Strategy is adopted. The Electronic Document and Records Management System 
(EDRMS) project implementation timetable has slipped since publishing the 
2017/18 Gwynedd Council Plan; therefore, I will also continue to report on the work 
until it is complete. 

An Effective and Efficient Council

Page 104

Agenda Item 11



C6 - Information Technology Strategy (IT) 

3.2 As the current Information Technology Strategy is ending, we have commenced 
internal discussions in order to plan a new Strategy. When it is mature, I will bring it 
to the attention of the Cabinet for discussion. 

The Department officers are working with officers from the Education Department 
to develop a new Strategy that will focus on providing the best IT support system 
for Gwynedd schools. 

C7 Electronic document and records management system (EDRMS) 

3.6 The work of disseminating the use of the system to Council departments is nearing 
conclusion, with only five teams remaining from all the Council's services waiting to 
transfer.  The work has been scheduled to be completed by the end of July 2019. 
Despite the turnover in the project team members, developmental work continues 
on the system, with a view to make the most of the investment in the system.   We 
have found that the services seeing the most benefit from iGwynedd are those 
services which have been further developed, and we will therefore be 
encouraging services to develop their use of the system. At the same time, we will 
take care not to add unnecessary processes to the Council services workflow.

4. PERFORMANCE

Appendix 1 provides a full report on the performance measures related to my field 
of responsibility.    

4.1 The purpose of the Risk and Insurance Service is to protect the interests of taxpayers 
by ensuring appropriate insurance arrangements and dealing with claims.  I have 
challenged service performance and I am satisfied with 81% of public liability 
claims successfully defended by the unit, and 89% by insurers, in the period since 
the last performance report. I wish to note that the work of this service delivers an 
important role to ensure that the Council arrangements are robust in order to 
enable us to minimise harmful incidents. By defending claims, the service scrutinises 
the action taken by the service in which the claim was made against, and provides 
feedback in order to improve.

4.2. The Council's Internal Audit Service gives confidence to the citizen and the Council 
around the Council’s control environment and governance arrangements.     At 
the start of 2019/20 the service has focused its resources on auditing the accounts 
of 70 town and community councils. This means that only three audits were 
completed by the service during the same period, but this is in accordance with 
the expected profile. The audits completed were audits of joint committee and 
harbour authority budgets which the Council hosts or for which the Council acts as 
lead authority. I am pleased to note that a 'high' assurance level was received 
from the three.

4.3 The purpose of the Payroll Service is to pay staff correctly and on time, whilst 
maintaining appropriate accounts for paying external bodies such as HMRC.   In 
keeping with its usual performance, 100% of payments were submitted accurately 
and within the time limit for external bodies.  Despite a case of human error in 
March 2019 which led to 878 cases that led to further adaptations in salary, April 
and May saw a return to the usual level, namely (37 and 41, respectively). I asked 
whether it was possible for the service to reach a situation in which no such cases 
would arise. In response the service noted that this was not impossible, but that it 
tended to be cases of human error which led to adaptations. The service was Page 105



working on reducing the number of errors which were within its control, but that it 
was errors in other parts of the Council or a lack of punctuality in submitting 
information which was to blame for the rest of the cases. The ultimate solution 
would be to reduce human intervention within the system. 

4.4 The Creditors' Payments Service ensures that the Council's creditors are paid 
promptly and correctly.  It is noted that a decrease is to be seen in the number of 
adaptations to previous payments by the Council from 8 in period 2 to 1 in period 
3, and 1 in period 1 of 2019/20. The service noted that while the number of 
adaptations had reduced, the risk of payment for the same invoice twice had 
increased as more and more of the Council's suppliers, departments and services 
operate digitally. However, the service had put a procedure in place to identify 
any duplications, in order to ensure that invoices are not being paid for twice. 

4.5 The Council's performance on measuring the 'percentage of invoices paid within 
30 days' has reached its highest level since 2015/16, with 92% of invoices received 
by the Council paid within 30 days. In the case of local suppliers, 95% of their 
invoices had been paid within 30 days.

4.6 The Information Technology Service supports and enables all the Council's services 
to serve the residents of Gwynedd in an effective, flexible and secure way. 

4.7 The performance measures demonstrate consistent performance and a high 
satisfaction level across all units. 

4.8 Following difficulties experienced in the summer of 2018, upgrading work was 
undertaken in our Data Centres in order to strengthen the resilience of Council 
systems in future. The service has taken advantage of this essential work as an 
opportunity to upgrade equipment coming to the end of its life, and to use the 
available budget wisely. This attitude has led to an improvement in provision and 
resilience without incurring higher costs for the Council. 

4.9 One aspect where an unmet residual risk remains is the risk of a power cut, where 
the answer would be to have a specific generator in place for such incidents.  In 
light of the substantial cost of doing so and due to the infrequency of power cuts, 
we suggest that we should live with this risk.  

4.10 It has become increasingly apparent that discontent with the time it takes to 
complete projects is at the root of the vast majority of negative feedback received 
by the Information Technology Service. The Service has to make effective use of 
scarce resources which leads to strict prioritising of their work. The Service recently 
appointed apprentices, who will, in their turn, increase the service's capacity to 
deliver projects which will offer benefits to the people of Gwynedd.  In addition, 
the Cabinet has of course agreed to add to the resource by providing finance for 
additional jobs, however, we are experiencing difficulties in finding suitable 
applicants.   The service is currently looking for imaginative ways of filling these 
posts. 

4.11 The Pension Service administrates the Local Government Pension Scheme on 
behalf of over 40 employers in order to calculate and pay pensions promptly and 
correctly. The  In terms of Measuring the average number of work days taken to 
send a letter notifying the value of retirement benefits - estimate (CD9.03), a 
reduction was seen in the average time at the start of 2019/20 compared to the 
end of 2018/19 (4.1 working days compared to 4.64 working days). This continues 
to be higher than the 3.5 days recorded in the first quarter of 2018/19, but has been 
achieved this year at the busiest time during the triennial valuation. Page 106



4.12 The Service also continues to work to promote self-service provision and now over 
10,000 users have now logged into the On-line Pension service.

4.13 The purpose of the Finance and Accounting Service is to draw up budgets, keep 
orderly accounts and monitor the financial situation and provide financial advice 
to assist services to be effective and efficient.  For the 2018/19 Financial Year, the 
service succeeded in closing the accounts and completing the statement of 
accounts, ready for their submission to the auditors by 31 May, a month earlier than 
in previous years, in preparation for the schedule which is to be statutory from 
2020/21 onwards. Although they have succeeded in this task, the service has 
identified opportunities to improve processes in order to increase the effectiveness 
of this work in future. I am also confident that closing accounts sooner will enable 
them to provide more assistance and advice for Council departments and 
services.

4.14 The purpose of the Income Service is to process income and collect the Council’s 
debts promptly and efficiently to maximise income, whilst being sympathetic to 
the departments' needs and operating sensitively according to debtors' financial 
circumstances. 

4.15 It is noted that the Total value of various debts over six months old (with the 
exception of deferred payments and debt referred to other services for further 
action) CD7.02 has continued to increase in relation to the end of 2018/19, but is 
an improvement on the same period at the start of 2018/19. The total value of 
debts over six months old now stands at £961,908. The Service noted that the Health 
Board had a considerable debt to the Council, and that the Service was 
continuing to work with the Health Board finance officers in order to find a way 
forward to solve the problem.

4.16 The purpose of the Benefits Service is to process Housing Benefits and Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme applications promptly and accurately, to assist to the citizens 
of Gwynedd in paying their rents and Council Tax bills.  It is noted that the Average 
time taken to process a new benefit application (CD12.03) has improved from 
21.14 days in quarter 2 2018/19, to 17.91 days over the most recent period. 

4.17 In December 2018, full Universal Credit became operational across the whole of 
Gwynedd, which has reduced the number of new applications for housing benefit, 
but to increase the correspondence received from the DWP.  The service took 
advantage of the change in its work arrangements to focus on Housing Benefit 
and Council Tax Reductions applications, causing a reduction in the time taken to 
process applications.

4.18 The service keeps an eye on the quality of its work by measuring the Percentage 
of cases in a random sample where the calculation had to be amended following 
internal checks (CD12.05).  The results of this show that an error had been found in 
5% of cases in the sample. The service notes that there is no specific pattern to the 
errors made and that it is monitoring the errors found and providing appropriate 
training in order to manage the situation. It appears that the service's performance 
on this measure has stabilised at around 5%. I have therefore asked them to 
investigate the impact of this rate of errors in order to establish whether they are 
mistakes that would affect individuals' payments or whether they are technical 
errors. I will report on this in the future.

4.19 The purpose of the Tax Service is to collect taxes in a timely and efficient way, whilst 
attempting to be sympathetic to individuals' circumstances.  Recently, the service Page 107



has proven difficulty in coping with the amount of correspondence reaching them. 
The high number of e-mails and letters reaching them has created a backlog, with 
this backlog in turn leading to a higher number of phone calls and dissatisfied 
customers. On average, customers had to wait for more than five minutes before 
their phone call was answered, with over 2000 calls a month being missed 
completely. It should be noted that March and April are very busy months for the 
service. The risk is that we may have gone a step too far with cuts in this field and 
we should pay attention to this in order to understand what is happening.   The Unit 
is looking to move towards self-service in the near future and hopefully this will 
lighten the burden of calls on the Unit.   I believe that we should wait for that to 
happen in order to see what the situation will be at that point, and for the situation 
to be revisited at that time. 

5. FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS 

5.1 The department has succeeded in achieving the majority of the savings schemes 
for 2019/20. A scheme is under way to move payslips over to an electronic system, 
which is yet to be completed, but is expected to be accomplished fully and in a 
timely manner as intended.

6. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

6.1 None to note.

7. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION

7.1 Views of the Statutory Officers:

i. Monitoring Officer:

No comments to add regarding propriety.

ii. Head of Finance Department:

I confirm the accuracy of the content of the report, and I will support the Cabinet 
Member to deliver the relevant objectives.  

7.2 Views of the Local Member:

Not a local matter.

7.3 Results of Any Consultation:

None to note.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures

Page 108



Risk and Insurance Service - Achievement Measures (Quarterly)

Senior Responsible Manager: Dewi A Morgan
Responsible Manager: Gwyn Varney

Purpose of the Service:

Addressing Risk (2019/20

Quarter 1
During the first quarter of 2019/20 we have regularly advised other Services within the Council on matters such as insurance protection for external bodies/companies. In addition to

this, we have assisted in drawing up correspondence jointly with some Council services for the people of Gwynedd regarding matters where no formal claim has been made against
the Council as yet, but where there is the possibility that a claim may follow in future.

We have also advised on staff concerns where there has been a conflict between work and personal insurance.

Our joint work with the Property Department continues in order to meet the requirements of our property insurer. This includes for new buildings, before foreseeable
requirements arise.

The work towards developing a new Risk Register system based on Sharepoint Technology has moved forward. The Assistant Head and the Risk Coordinator have visited a
number of departments to further work towards transferring to the new system.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT
2019.2

Supports the Council's departments as they assess the threats and opportunities which they could face when providing their

services and prioritise their activities based on the assessment. Protect the interests of ratepayers by ensuring appropriate

insurance arrangements and deal with claims

P
age 109



77.8

90.9

82.4 81.8

66.6

85.7

90.9

42.9

85

90

93.8

85.7

81.3

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q 1 16/17 Q 2 16/17 Q 3 16/17 Q 4 16/17 Q 1 17/18 Q 2 17/18 Q 3 17/18 Q 4 17/18 Q 1 18/19 Q 2 18/19 Q 3 18/19 Q 4 18/19 Q 1 19/20

Percentage of Public Liability Claims refused by the Unit

13 claims out of 16 defended successfully. There
are no common aspects to the 3 claims settled.

1. Damage to a vehicle towed by traffic officers.
2. Damage to a vehicle due to a pothole.
3. Damage to a vehicle due to a insufficiently
secured sign on a work site controlled by the
Council.

P
age 110



63.6

92.3

83.3

76.2 76.9

81.8

50

71.4

50

73.3
71.4

90 89.5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Q 1 16/17 Q 2 16/17 Q 3 16/17 Q 4 16/17 Q 1 17/18 Q 2 17/18 Q 3 17/18 Q 4 17/18 Q 1 18/19 Q 2 18/19 Q 3 18/19 Q 4 18/19 Q 1 19/20

Percentage of Public Liability Claims Refused by the Insurers

17 claims out of 19 defended successfully. . There are no common
aspects to the 2 claims settled

1. Damage to a vehicle where insufficient warning was given of a new
road.

2. Injury to a pupil at an education unit.

P
age 111



Internal Audit

Responsible Assistant Head : Dewi A Morgan

Responsible Manager: Luned F Jones

Purpose of the Service:

To give confidence to the citizen and the Council on the Council’s control environment and

governance arrangements through independent and objective reporting to the Head of

Finance Department and the Audit and Governance Committee.

Performance:

During the initial weeks of the 2019/20 financial year, Internal Audit has focussed the

majority of its resources on its external work in completing Internal Audits of the

community councils, so that they can consider the results and prepare their accounts by the

statutory date (30 June). The service has been appointed this year as the internal auditor

for 70 community councils (60 in Gwynedd and 10 in Anglesey). By 19 June, the final report

for 59 of these 70 had been published.

The result of this is that the number of audits completed from the Gwynedd Council

2019/20 audit plan amounts to three out of the 65 audits included in the amended plan.

This therefore means that the Percentage of Audits in the Audit Plan which have either

been closed or have a published final report (indicator CD2.03) on 19 June 2019 amounts

to 4.6%. Although this figure is low, it is consistent with the expected profile due to the

work on the community councils, and is therefore not a present cause for concern.

The three audits completed were audits of joint committee and 'small' harbour authority

accounts which Gwynedd Council hosts or for which the Council acts as lead authority,

namely:

• North Wales Economic Ambition Board accounts

• Harbours' accounts

• Joint Planning Policy Committee accounts

Each of the above attained a 'High' assurance level, which means that 100% of the internal

audits received an assurance level of 'Sufficient' or better (Achievement Measure CD2.09).

However, it must be kept in mind that this represents only three audits.

The Head of Internal Audit's Annual Report for 2018/19 was submitted to the Audit and
Governance Committee on 13 June. At that committee, the Audit Manager reported as
follows: "On the basis of Internal Audit work completed in 2018/19, in my opinion,
Gwynedd Council has a sound framework of internal controls. This assists in providing
confidence in the arrangements for ensuring effective and efficient achievement of the
Council’s objectives, as the steps taken by the Council during the financial year to
establish and strengthen internal controls and to ensure that the agreed actions to

Page 112



remedy weaknesses identified by the Internal Audit service are implemented, have been
satisfactory.””

Page 113



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Employment Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Dewi A Morgan
Responsible Manager: Martin Morris

Purpose of the Service:
To pay staff correctly and on time, whilst maintaining relevant accounts for paying external bodies such as HMRC.

Ensure accurate payments within the time limit for external bodies (such as HMRC).
Consistent with the performance of the previous quarters, 100% of correct payments to outside bodies (such as HMRC) were ensured within the required time.

2019.2

P
age 114



65

32 28
40

22
38

77

47 44 37 32 30

54
41

63 56
38

53
40

54 49
62

42
29

45
35

52 49
33

55
40

57
42

58
74 70

227

45
32

46
32

54
38 31 38 44 38

878

37 41

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

5

M
ai

2
0

1
5

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
5

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

5

A
w

st
2

0
1

5

M
e

d
i2

0
1

5

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
5

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
5

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

5

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
6

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

6

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
6

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

6

M
ai

2
0

1
6

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
6

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

6

A
w

st
2

0
1

6

M
e

d
i2

0
1

6

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
6

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
6

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

6

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
7

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

7

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
7

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

7

M
ai

2
0

1
7

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
7

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

7

A
w

st
2

0
1

7

M
e

d
i2

0
1

7

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
7

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
7

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

7

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
8

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

8

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
8

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

8

M
ai

2
0

1
8

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
8

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

8

A
w

st
2

0
1

8

M
e

d
i2

0
1

8

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
8

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
8

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

8

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
9

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

9

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
9

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

9

M
ai

2
0

1
9

N
if

er
C

am
gy

m
er

ia
d

au

Mis

CD8.07 - Number of cases leading to further adaptations in salary.

Nifer Cyfartaledd

P
age 115

829222
Text Box


829222_1
Text Box
Apr

829222_2
Text Box
May

829222_3
Text Box
Jun

829222_4
Text Box
Jul

829222_5
Text Box
Aug

829222_6
Text Box
Sep

829222_7
Text Box
Oct

829222_8
Text Box
Nov

829222_9
Text Box
Dec

829222_10
Text Box
Jan

829222_11
Text Box
Feb

829222_12
Text Box
Mar

829222_13
Text Box
Apr

829222_14
Text Box
May

829222_15
Text Box
Jun

829222_16
Text Box
Jul

829222_17
Text Box
Aug

829222_18
Text Box
Sep

829222_19
Text Box
Oct

829222_20
Text Box
Nov

829222_21
Text Box
Dec

829222_22
Text Box
Jan

829222_23
Text Box
Feb

829222_24
Text Box
Mar

829222_25
Text Box
Apr

829222_26
Text Box
May

829222_27
Text Box
Jun

829222_28
Text Box
Jul

829222_29
Text Box
Aug

829222_30
Text Box
Sep

829222_31
Text Box
Oct

829222_32
Text Box
Nov

829222_33
Text Box
Dec

829222_34
Text Box
Jan

829222_35
Text Box
Feb

829222_36
Text Box
Mar

829222_37
Text Box
Apr

829222_38
Text Box
May

829222_39
Text Box
Jun

829222_40
Text Box
Jul

829222_41
Text Box
Aug

829222_42
Text Box
Sep

829222_43
Text Box
Oct

829222_44
Text Box
Nov

829222_45
Text Box
Dec

829222_46
Text Box
Jan

829222_47
Text Box
Feb

829222_48
Text Box
Mar

829222_49
Text Box
May

829222_50
Text Box
Apr

829222_51
Text Box
Number of mistakes

829222_52
Text Box
Calls

829222_53
Text Box
Average (CL)



38

18

24
21

17

40

14

20

31

38

19

41

28

17

30

22
20

18

30
26

13

29

13

21

11

28
26

55

22

44

50
48

23

39
36

39

159

62

32

42

24

38

53

33
30

33

17

83

39

49

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

5

M
ai

2
0

1
5

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
5

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

5

A
w

st
2

0
1

5

M
e

d
i2

0
1

5

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
5

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
5

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

5

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
6

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

6

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
6

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

6

M
ai

2
0

1
6

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
6

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

6

A
w

st
2

0
1

6

M
e

d
i2

0
1

6

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
6

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
6

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

6

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
7

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

7

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
7

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

7

M
ai

2
0

1
7

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
7

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

7

A
w

st
2

0
1

7

M
e

d
i2

0
1

7

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
7

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
7

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

7

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
8

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

8

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
8

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

8

M
ai

2
0

1
8

M
e

h
e

fi
n

2
0

1
8

G
o

rf
fe

n
n

af
2

0
1

8

A
w

st
2

0
1

8

M
e

d
i2

0
1

8

H
yd

re
f

2
0

1
8

Ta
ch

w
e

d
d

2
0

1
8

R
h

ag
fy

r
2

0
1

8

Io
n

aw
r

2
0

1
9

C
h

w
e

fr
o

r
2

0
1

9

M
aw

rt
h

2
0

1
9

Eb
ri

ll
2

0
1

9

M
ai

2
0

1
9

N
if

er
G

al
w

ad
au

Mis

CD8.08 - Number of workers contacting about any shortcoming in the payroll payment process.

Galwadau Cyfartaledd (CL)

P
age 116

829222_54
Text Box


829222_55
Text Box
Apr

829222_56
Text Box
May

829222_57
Text Box
Jun

829222_58
Text Box
Jul

829222_59
Text Box
Aug

829222_60
Text Box
Sep

829222_61
Text Box
Oct

829222_62
Text Box
Nov

829222_63
Text Box
Dec

829222_64
Text Box
Jan

829222_65
Text Box
Feb

829222_66
Text Box
Mar

829222_67
Text Box
Apr

829222_68
Text Box
May

829222_69
Text Box
Jun

829222_70
Text Box
Jul

829222_71
Text Box
Aug

829222_72
Text Box
Sep

829222_73
Text Box
Oct

829222_74
Text Box
Nov

829222_75
Text Box
Dec

829222_76
Text Box
Jan

829222_77
Text Box
Feb

829222_78
Text Box
Mar

829222_79
Text Box
Apr

829222_80
Text Box
May

829222_81
Text Box
Jun

829222_82
Text Box
Jul

829222_83
Text Box
Aug

829222_84
Text Box
Sep

829222_85
Text Box
Oct

829222_86
Text Box
Nov

829222_87
Text Box
Dec

829222_88
Text Box
Jan

829222_89
Text Box
Feb

829222_90
Text Box
Mar

829222_91
Text Box
Apr

829222_92
Text Box
May

829222_93
Text Box
Jun

829222_94
Text Box
Jul

829222_95
Text Box
Aug

829222_96
Text Box
Sep

829222_97
Text Box
Oct

829222_98
Text Box
Nov

829222_99
Text Box
Dec

829222_100
Text Box
Jan

829222_101
Text Box
Feb

829222_102
Text Box
Mar

829222_103
Text Box
May

829222_104
Text Box
Apr

829222_105
Text Box
Number of calls

829222_106
Text Box
Calls

829222_107
Text Box
Average (CL)



Creditors' Payments Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Ffion Madog Evans

Responsible Manager: Christopher Parry

Purpose of the Service:

Paying creditors in an accurate and timely manner.

Ref. Achievement Measure
Comments

Quarter 1
Period 1 19/20 Period 3 18/19 Period 2 18/19 Period 1 18/19

Q1

17/18

Q1

16/17

CD6.01
Percentage of invoices paid within 30

days (across the Council)
92% 89% 88% 91% 89% 89%

CD6.02
Percentage of invoices paid locally within

30 days (across the Council)
95% 92% 91% 93% 92% 92%

CD6.03
Adaptation to previous payments by the

Council

Only one adjustment was made during the first

period (April and May), which is consistent with

period 3 of 2018/19, and is a decrease in numbers

compared to previous periods. The reason for the

adjustment is that a payment was made to the

wrong supplier, who had a similar name and

address to the correct supplier.

Staffing problems seen during 2018/19 have now

been resolved, and have therefore had a positive

impact on the statistics.

Increase in the trend of duplicate payments when

moving to a more electronic arrangement and

receiving invoices via e-mail from companies.

Procedure in place to identify any duplication before

paying suppliers, therefore it has not led to paying

twice.

1 1 8 4 1 5

Review of Internal Systems

PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2018.19

- There has been an increase in the number of suppliers receiving payment via BACS to 95% by 2019/20 (94% in 2018/19, 93% in 2017/18).This accounts for 99% in terms of value, and the Unit continues to strive to increase

these numbers.

- There will be a campaign over the summer to increase the numbers who receive their remittance advice via e-mail rather than in the post.

- The Payments Unit now receives more information electronically from companies and loads it into the payments system, including secondary schools' invoices, school meals, praecepts, 30 hour child care grant, nursery

schools' grant payments, and Libraries Thelnet etc.

- We have recently been working with Highways officers to transfer from a paper procedure to an electronic procedure, and looking at possibilities for the Property Department in terms of moving water bills so that there is one

bill for the whole Council. We are already undergoing discussions with the Procurement Unit in terms of Ffordd Gwynedd procedure and the implications in terms of paying the Council's suppliers.

- Separate arrangements have been established in order to pay the new Byw'n Iach company's suppliers; moving away from cheque payments, with BACS transfers to be used for 100% of payments.

- Recent software developments mean that it is possible to upload an electronic image of an invoice into the payments system, which speeds up the process.

P
age 117



70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

P E R I O D 1
1 5 - 1 6

P E R I O D 2
1 5 - 1 6

P E R I O D 3
1 5 - 1 6

P E R I O D 1
1 6 - 1 7

P E R I O D 2
1 6 - 1 7

P E R I O D 3
1 6 - 1 7

P E R I O D 1
1 7 - 1 8

P E R I O D 2
1 7 - 1 7

P E R I O D 3
1 7 - 1 8

P E R I O D 1
1 8 - 1 9

P E R I O D 2
1 8 - 1 9

P E R I O D 3
1 8 - 1 9

P E R I O D 1
1 9 - 2 0

0/0

CD6.01 Canran anfonebau a dalwyd o fewn 30 diwrnod (ar draws y Cyngor)

GWYNEDD COUNCIL
TOTAL

EDUCATION

ENVIRONMENT

HIGHWAYS AND
MUNICIPAL

Generally, the trend continues upwards during period 1, 2019/20, with performance in the Education and Highways and Municipal Departments contributing to
raising the Council's overall eprformance.

P
age 118



84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

Period 1
15-16

Period 2
15-16

Period 3
15-16

Period 1
16-17

Period 2
16-17

Period 3
16-17

Period 1
17-18

Period 2
17-17

Period 3
17-18

Period 1
18-19

Period 2
18-19

Period 3
18-19

Period 1
19-20

%

CD6.02 Percentage of invoices paid locally within 30 days (across the Council)

Percentage of local Invoices
paid within 30 days

Percentage of the Council's
other invoices paid within 30
days

Local suppliers have been paid sooner than other Council suppliers, and the payment performance for period 1 (April and May) has increased, and is
higher than performance in previous years.

P
age 119



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

The Information Technology Service

Senior Manager: Huw Ynyr

Responsible Managers: Bryn Goodman Jones

The Purpose of the Service:

Quarterly

Ref. Acheivement Measure Comments
Q1

19/20

TG06 Number of incidents recorded by the Help Desk
To be reviewed with the

new system
5018

TG07 Number of incidents closed by the Help Desk

Percentage lower than

previous quarters, effect of

renewals and upgrades

(Win7 and Thin Client)

4560

BGJ Number of calls closed on 'first contact'

Users' first contact (new

measure so not all staff

have been recording

correctly)

773.0

BGJ Number of emails that automatically created a call 2849

TG10 Number of phone calls received by the help desk
Number of calls consistent

with usual pattern
4266

BGJ Feedback left
Improved from previous

quarters
168

5 out of 5 166

4 out of 5 1

3out of 5 1

BGJ Number that left a score of less than 3 out of 5 0

BGJ Number that received the email/call 1

BGJ Changes created/recorded by IT infrastructure staff 139

2019-20

(Help Desk) To support and enable all Council Services to serve the citizens of Gwynedd in an effective, flexible and secure way.

(Infrastructure) Develop and support the Council's infrastructure to provide a resilient and safe platform to maintain the Council's information technology services.

P
age 120



IT Support Service (infrastructure)

A new call recording system has now been established for just over two months. IT staff (and

departments) and general staff ar beginning to see its benefits but there is still work to be done to

train everyone on the new mindset and options. I will soon be notifying staff of what can be done with

the self-service element, but it may be an idea to time this so that it coincides with the IT Intranet

launch.

IT staff now also record changes. 139 of these have been recorded, and 120 completed. This gives an

improved vision of the work done by staff which does not derive from calls from users. A great amount

of work happens without it being recorded anywhere. This facilitates the identification of difficulties

arising from work and also, if needed, approval of the work by a manager. The hope is that these will

increase as everyone begins to grasp the new process.

The number of times the help desk has been contacted in Q1 appears lower than usual, but fewer

weeks have been measured and so it is difficult to be sure of this (the new system was established

15/04/19, and additional reports 19/06/19). I will be keeping an eye on this, and will report any

improvements.

• Number of phone connections to IT - 8,016 (however, 244 disconnected during this time)

o Through the Help Desk number, 32114 = 4266

o Direct calls to infrastructure staff = 3750

In quarter 2 of '19, I will be reporting on -

• The average time taken to close IT calls to:

o Help Desk

o Second tier infrastructure

• Satisfaction

• Number of applications/connections

• Calls that are closed upon the user's first contact.

Quarter 1 and 2 work, '19

Work has commenced to establish the Council's new 365 environment. The licences become

operational on 1 July, and the work of moving people should commence in the second and third weeks

of July. It is hoped that users can be transferred in groups, with the hope of completing the work for

all 2,500 within six to eight weeks. This should not have an impact on the staff and their ability to use

computer systems, but this does depend on the testing work having been thorough. Once the work is

completed we will be able to offer far more packages as part of the new licences, e.g. External sharing,

remote access from any device, costless right (other than Microsoft licence costs) to receive e-mails

etc. on a personal phone ... This needs to be discussed with the data protection service in order to

ensure that their rules are followed to reduce risk to data.

The above will impact the responsibilities and duties of my staff; not that these will be reduced, but

this is necessary due to the nature of the system/licences.

Work to remove Windows 7 and Thin Client devices continues. In the last three quarters, the figure

for Windows 7 has reduced by almost 1000 to as low as 200 by this point. In respect of the Thin Client

Page 121



devices, over 600 have now been changed for PCs or Laptops. This work has a considerable impact on

the help desk's work and statistics.

Page 122



IT - Infrastructure

Responsible Assistant Head - Huw Ynyr

Responsible Manager - Gwyn Jones

Purpose of the Service

To develop and support the Council's infrastructure to provide a resilient and safe platform to

maintain the Council's information technology services.

2019-20 Performance (Quarter 1)

April
2019

May
2019

June
2019

Core Network 99.99% 99.99%

Finance Systems 100.00% 99.95%

The core network's condition continues to reach the expected standard.

A problem encountered in May (15/05/19) is noted, which is shown in the availability of 'Finance

Systems' above. The cause of this was a small fire in the computer room which led to a loss of

electricity. IT staff who were on call, along with an electrician, were on site by 07:00. The systems

were restored by around 09:00.

Projects in progress

• The work to build systems' resilience continues in collaboration with Dell/EMC.

• A tender for renewing the Council's corporate Firewall is open, as well as for setting up a new

Firewall at our second data centre.

• A project to upgrade the phone system software has commenced. It is expected that this will be

completed in Q2, with improvements to the systems and extension to additional schools.

• A project is under way to set up the Council's new CCTV network and system in collaboration

with Highways and Municipal, via the CCTV Systems company. This project is to be completed in

Q4. There will be substantial savings, including over £44k in bespoke circuit costs, which will be

achieved by using a new wireless network and existing network connections.

• Security information has been shared with staff, including training videos. Potential data loss has

been highlighted recently, and the need to look at improving the ways we promote this

important information.

Page 123



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2019.2

The Information Technology Service (Development and Maintenance) - Achievement Measures

Responsible Managers: Rhodri Fretwell and Elfyn Evans

Senior Manager: Huw Ynyr

The Service's Purposes:

Ref. Achievement Measure Quarter 1 Comments Q4 18/19 Q2 18/19 Q1 18/19 Q1 17/18

TG15 Development opinion survey:

"Were you happy with the

suggestions, solutions

and the service in general

that was received from

the development unit? ".

1 - Yes, I do not have any

suggestions for improvement

2 - Yes, but I believe that

there is room for

improvement

3 - No

15 projects have received

feedback.

1. Happy, no improvement

94%

2. Happy, room for

improvement 6%

3. Unhappy 0%

It was noted that there

was room for improvement

with regard to the

development of the

corporate website due to a

lack of progress on the

work programme.

This stems from the recent

loss of a team member,

and we are in the process

of identifying an individual

to fill this post.

1. Happy, no improvement

94%

2. Happy, room for

improvement 6%

3. Unhappy 0%

1. Happy, no improvement 74%

2. Happy, room for improvement

26%

3. Unhappy 0%

1. Happy, no improvement 84%

2. Happy, room for improvement

16%

3. Unhappy 0%

1. Happy, no improvement

75%

2. Happy, room for

improvement - 25%

3. Unhappy 0%

(Development) Collaborate with our customers to develop and evolve innovative solutions in

response to business needs.

(Maintenance) Maintain a range of technological systems and solutions to keep us operational,

efficient and up-to-date.

P
age 124

829222_108
Text Box
20



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Pensions Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Dafydd L. Edwards
Responsible Manager: Nick Hopkins

Purpose of the Service:

Ref. Achievement Measure
Comments

Quarter 1

Q1

19/20

Q 4

18/19

Q 3

18/19

Q2

18/19

Q 1

18/19

Q 2

16/17

CD9.03 Average number of work days taken to

send a letter notifying the value of

retirement benefits - estimate. 4.10 4.64 4.40 4.20 3.50 9.70

CD9.04 Average number of work days taken to

send a letter notifying the value of

retirement benefits - estimate.
1.50 2.03 1.00 1.80 2.10 2.20

CD9.05 Average number of work days taken to

complete dependants' calculations and

payments following the death of a

member of the scheme.

5.94 5.94 8.73 9.10 6.70 5.80

2018.19

To administrate the Local Government Pension Scheme on behalf of over 40 employers including Gwynedd Council, Isle of Anglesey County Council

and Conwy County Borough Council in order to calculate and pay pensions promptly and accurately.

P
age 125

829222_109
Text Box
2019-20



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19

Internal Errors

P
age 126



0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19

First Login to Online Pension Service since June 2018

P
age 127



Finance and Accounting Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Ffion Madog Evans

Responsible Manager: Sian Pugh

Purpose of the Service:

Provide a finance and accounting service, and help and support services to be effective and efficient.

Ref. Achievement Measure Comments - Period 1 2019/20

CD5.01 Success in staying within the budget

A report was given on the situation at the end of 2018/19 during the first

period of 2019/20 by reporting to the Cabinet on 21/5/19 and then to the Audit

Committee on 13/06/19. Despite the overspend in the Children's Department

(£1.6m), Highways and Municipal Department (£618k), Economy and

Community Department (£185k) and Education Department (£116k), by using

the one-off underspend on Corporate headings and also from the Environment

Department to assist to mitigate against the overspend, we succeeded to fund

the total expenditure as intended for 2018/19 by using £1.5m from funds

earmarked to finance one-off bids and we did not make any use of the

Council's general balances.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2019/20

P
age 128



Finance and Accounting Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Ffion Madog Evans

Responsible Manager: Sian Pugh

Purpose of the Service:

Provide a finance and accounting service, and help and support services to be effective and efficient.

Ref. Achievement Measure
Comments

Period 1 2019/20

CD5.3

Financial monitoring including producing quarterly

reports for the Budget Managers, the Leadership

Group, the Portfolio Leaders, the Cabinet and the

Audit Committee, as well as monitoring the

performance of the Council's savings and cuts

schemes.

∙ A report was given on the end of year revenue, capital and savings situation to the Cabinet 21/05/19 

and to the Audit and Governance Committee 13/06/19.

∙ Monthly reports of expenditure against the budget are sent to budget managers.

∙ The work of monitoring savings is permanently ongoing, with reports being submitted to the 

departmental management teams and to departmental performance challenge meetings, and

incorporated in Cabinet Members' reports. Savings reports have been completed for the June round of

challenge meetings which include an assessment of achievement in terms of the new savings schemes

for 2019/20 onwards. It is anticipated that there is a risk involved with achieving a number of the new

savings schemes for 2019/20 onwards.

∙ We will report on the situation at the end of August, the end of November and the end of March in 

terms of the financial reviews.

CD5.04

Formulate and distribute the Council's Budget

annually and in line with the specific and

designated timetable to achieve the necessary

essential steps

∙ Work has already commenced on 2020/21 Financial Strategy projections, looking at various inflation 

headings, the pressure upon services, Council Tax rates, savings and other considerations around the

budget.

∙ The detailed work of looking at staffing structures and salary points etc. is to commence shortly, in 

accordance with the annual procedure of establishing the budget for the year ahead.

CD5.5

Completion of the Final Accounts (Accounts of

Gwynedd, two Joint Committees and the four

Harbours) and the relevant requirements to

produce a Draft Statement Accounts and to

ensure approval of the final Statement of

Accounts.

∙ Gwynedd Accounts, Joint Committees, North Wales Ambition Board and the Harbours were completed 

earlier for 2018/19, having been completed and submitted to the Auditors before 31 May 2019. This date

will not be statutory until 2020/21 onwards, but we succeeded in achieving it nevertheless. This

compares to 30 June in previous years.

∙ The actions implemented in an attempt to respond to the challenge have been successful, but there is 

further work to be done during the year to attempt to improve and speed up our processes, and to

identify and overcome barriers for the 2019/20 accounts. The implications of group accounts will be an

additional requirement on the Council from 2019/20 onwards.

∙ Whole of Government Accounts returns for 2018/19 are in the process of being completed, which 

means we will be reporting to Welsh Government earlier than usual.

∙ 2018/19 revenue and capital outturn returns to Welsh Government are in the process of being 

completed by the Accountants.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2019/20

P
age 129



Income Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Dewi A. Morgan

Responsible Manager: Stephen Williams

Purpose of the Service:

Ref. Achievement Measure
Comments

Quarter 1

Q 1

19/20

Q4

18/19

Q 3

18/19

Q 2

18/19

Q 1

18/19

Q 1

17/18

Q 1

16/17

CD7.02 Total value of various debts over six months

old (with the exception of deferred

payments and debt referred to other

services for further action).

The performance is better than

that which was reported for

quarter 1 of 18/19, but has

worsened in comparison with

the previous quarter. The fact

that some of the Health Board's

invoices have slipped into the >

6 months category has

contributed to this decline.

961,908 866,188 1,043,638 1,089,822 1,062,319 937,535 925,294

CD7.05 Rate of various debt collection within the

quarter - Value

The performance is better than

that which was reported for

quarter 1 of 18/19.
89.84% 88.86% 86.22% 84.25% 86.47% 81.97% 85.05%

CD7.06 Percentage of debts where a payment

agreement was made with the debtor.

The percentage is higher than

the previous periods as the

Pwllheli Hafan/Harbour invoices

are now charged from the

Corporate system, and there

has been an increase in the

number of payment

agreements. The lower figure of

5.96% represents agreements

which go beyond 2019/2020.

16.55% /

5.96%
14.03% 8.19% 6.98% 6.35% 14.67% 12.88%

PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

2019/20

Process various incomes and collect the Council’s debts promptly and efficiently to

maximise income, whilst being sympathetic to the departments' needs and operating

sensitively to debtors' financial circumstances

P
age 130



$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

Performance Monitoring - Income (as on May 31 2019)

(Various debts over 6 months old, with the exception of debts referred for further action to other services)

The performance is better than that which was reported for
quarter 1 of 18/19, but has worsened in comparison with the
previous quarter. The fact that some of the Health Board's
invoices have slipped into the > 6 months category has
contributed to this decline.

P
age 131



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Benefits Service - Achievement Measures

Uwch Reolwr Cyfrifol : Dewi A. Morgan

Responsible Manager: Dylan Griffith

Purpose of the Service:

2019/20

Process Housing Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Scheme applications promptly and accurately, to assist the citizens of Gwynedd to pay

their rents and Council Tax bills.

P
age 132



22.24
22.78

21.48

15.23

16.07

16.84 16.95

15.99

17.15 17.34

18.31

17.08

19.65

20.34

18.08

16.58

18.77

21.14

19.57
19.11

17.91

0

3

6

9

12

15

18

21

24

Q1
2014-15

Q2
2014-15

Q3
2014-15

Q4
2014-15

Q1
2015-16

Q2
2015-16

Q3
2015-16

Q4
2015-16

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Q1
2018-19

Q2
2018-19

Q3
2018-19

Q4
2018-19

Q1
2019-20

Average time taken to process a new benefits application (Number of days) (CD12.03)

Days Average

Since CAB secured the Financial and Digital Support contract for
Universal Credit customers, Benefits staff have had more time
to focus on Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction matters.
This, in turn, has enabled the team to reduce the number of
days it takes to process new applications. There has also been
a reduction in the number of new applications submitted in
comparison with Quarter 1 of 2018/19 (down from 960 to 727),
as Gwynedd is now a Full Universal Credit Service area.

P
age 133



8.95

6.94

7.6

3.62

6.55

5.22

6.27

3.71

5.95
5.78

6.89

4.04

6.53

7.09 7.08

3.09

5.19

6.82

7.11

4.11

5.76

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Q1
2014-15

Q2
2014-15

Q3
2014-15

Q4
2014-15

Q1
2015-16

Q2
2015-16

Q3
2015-16

Q4
2015-16

Q1
2016-17

Q2
2016-17

Q3
2016-17

Q4
2016-17

Q1
2017-18

Q2
2017-18

Q3
2017-18

Q4
2017-18

Q1
2018-19

Q2
2018-19

Q3
2018-19

Q4
2018-19

Q1
2019-20

Average time taken to process a notice of change in circumstances (benefit) (days) (CD12.04)

Days Average

The same reasons as CD12.03 apply to the figure for changes in
circumstance in Q1 2019/20. Although the figure (5.76) shows
an increase against Q4 2018/19 (4.11), the figure is similar to
Q1 2018/19 (5.19) and Q1 2017/18 (6.53).

P
age 134



0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

Q3 2016-17 Q4 2016-17 Q1 2017-18 Q2 2017-18 Q3 2017-18 Q4 2017-18 Q1 2018-19 Q2 2018-19 Q3 2018-19 Q4 2018-19 Q1 2019-20

Percentage of randomly selected cases where the calculation needed to be adusted following internal review
(CD12.05)

180 applications have been verified during this quarter, with
nine of them requiring a second assessment.

From the analysis work carried out on the data for this quarter,
there is no particular pattern to the errors.

P
age 135



Taxes

Responsible Assistant Head : Dewi A Morgan

Responsible Manager: E Bleddyn Jones

Purpose of the Service:

To collect taxes promptly and efficiently, whilst trying to be flexible and sympathetic to

individuals' circumstances.

Performance:

The 2018/19 financial year was another challenging period for the Tax Service, as the impact

of the introduction of the Council Tax Premium on second homes and long term empty

properties continued to be felt, and as the new staffing structure began to find its feet.

The table below shows our situation at the end of each month this year and over the past

six years, in terms of Council Tax collection:

Table 1: Council Tax Collection Rate

It can be seen from the table that the collection rate up to May this year is comparable with

2018/19, but continues to be lower than in previous years.

In the same manner, Table 2 shows Non-Domestic Tax collection rates:

Page 136



Table 2: Non-Domestic Tax Collection Rate

What we see here is more encouraging. For the first time since 2013/14, the service has

collected over 20% of the annual debit by the end of May. This is a significant improvement

on recent years.

Phone Calls

Dealing with the volume of phone calls received continues to be a cause for concern. We

have invested in monitoring software, but we will continue to consider the options available

to further deal with the matter. March and April are always busier months as this is, of

course, the annual billing period. However, it can be seen below that neither the number of

calls lost nor the average time before calls are answered reaches our expectations at

present.

Page 137

829222_110
Text Box
Council Tax

829222_111
Text Box
Number of calls answered

829222_112
Text Box
Number of calls lost

829222_113
Text Box
         Jun      Jul      Aug   Sept     Oct    Nov     Dec      Jan     Feb     Mar    Apr     May



Having said this, we are fully aware that the graphs above show the challenge faced in

maintaining an acceptable level to be able to deal with phone calls. It must also be kept in

mind that initiatives to review Council Tax accounts in order to ensure that everyone pays

the correct sum (e.g. single person discount reviews) could potentially increase, rather than

decrease, the number of calls.

'Nudge' principles

Since two years, the service has been looking at the use of 'nudge' principles in order to

determine whether a positive impact can be achieved in terms of Council Tax collection

rates; in particular, attempting to shift taxpayers to direct debit payments rather than other

methods.

Page 138

829222_114
Text Box
Council Tax

829222_115
Text Box
         Jun      Jul      Aug   Sept     Oct    Nov     Dec      Jan     Feb     Mar    Apr     May

829222_116
Text Box
Number of calls answered

829222_117
Text Box
Average time taken to answer call



PERFORMANCE MONITORING - FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Investment and Treasury Management Service - Achievement Measures

Senior Responsible Manager: Dafydd L. Edwards

Responsible Manager: Caroline L Roberts

Purpose of the Service:

Ref. Achievement Measure
Comments

Quarter 1

Q1

19/20

Q4

18/19

Q3

18/19

Q2

18/19

Q1

18/19

Q1

17/18

Q1

16/17

CD13.05 Pension Fund - Portfolio managers'

investment performance compared with

the specific benchmark set for it.

1.90 -0.30 0.70 0.70 +1.1 +0.4

CD13.06 The security of the Council's money

security in relation to bank deposits -

quarterly analysis by Arlingclose of the

credit score

(1 being highest, namely a credit status of

AAA, 2 is AA+, 3 is AA, 4 is AA-, 5 is A+,

6 is A and 7 is A-).

4.96 5.19 4.21 3.85 3.30 3.43

CD13.07 Interest income on bank deposits to be

measured against the 7 day non-

compounded LIBID rate

1.09 0.62 0.65 0.61 0.43 0.66

2018.19

Maximise the benefits from investing the Pension Fund, and keep appropriate accounts;

Invest the Council's cash flow safely, with acceptable interest;

Manage long-term loans

Statistics are not available for the

period in question, as the

performance statistics are received

from our investment advisors

following the end of each quarter.

P
age 139



www.gwynedd.gov.uk

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Cyswllt:
01286 679868
01286 679490

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has been 
happening in the fields within my remit as Cabinet Member for the Environment. 
This includes reporting on where we have reached with measuring performance, 
and the latest in terms of savings and cuts schemes.

1.2 I would remind you that all matters have already been the subject of discussions 
and have been scrutinised at meetings of the Management Team which also 
include two representatives of the relevant Scrutiny Committee.

1.3 Overall, I am happy with the performance of the measures for which I am 
responsible, or that relevant steps have been taken to improve performance.

2 THE DECISION SOUGHT

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report.

3 PERFORMANCE

3.1 Appendix 1 reports on the performance measures that are associated with my 
portfolio. 

3.2 The Planning Service is responsible for facilitating and managing developments in 
the interests of our communities, the economy and the environment. 

3.3 The measure of How quickly all planning applications have taken on average to 
be determined (C2) clearly demonstrates the difference between the time taken 
to determine applications by Officers, compared to applications determined by 
the Planning Committee. In the recent period, a major difference is seen between 
the time taken to determine applications at the Committee, taking from 378 days 
in April 2019, to 79 days in May 2019. Usually, determinations are made sooner by 
officers rather than the Committee due to the complex or contentious nature of 
the applications submitted to the Committee. However, in May, the Committee 
was making decisions more swiftly than the officers. A number of factors were 
associated with this situation, including that officers were awaiting determinations 

Date: 16 July 2019 

Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for the 
Environment

Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report

Cabinet Member: Councillor Gareth Griffith

Contact Officer: Dafydd Wyn Williams, Head of Environment 
Department

Page 140

Agenda Item 12

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


on planning appeals in order to provide guidance on similar applications. There 
was also a need to wait for supplementary planning guidance to be adopted in 
order to expand upon the adopted policies as part of the Joint Local Development 
Plan. Although the performance of planning officers has recently deteriorated, it 
should be noted that 76% of the applications have been determined within the 
statutory timeframe, and it is highlighted that only a small number of applications 
actually lead to the deterioration in their performance. 

3.4 It should be noted that, overall, the people of Gwynedd are generally satisfied with 
the service provided by the Planning Service. However, it has been regularly noted 
that their customers are unsatisfied with the contact arrangements for the service. 
This is a theme that has also emerged in the Ffordd Gwynedd review of the service, 
and therefore this will be addressed.

3.5 The task of measuring work in the planning enforcement field in a meaningful way 
continues.  The service has now been categorising cases in order to prioritise them. 
By prioritising, the intention is to ensure that the most serious cases are resolved, by 
changing the focus to what matters to the people of Gwynedd, rather than resolve 
a high number of easy cases swiftly. To date in 2019-20, the service has looked into 
11% of the open cases. It is important to remember, however, that the nature of 
the Planning Enforcement work is slow due to the legal requirements around the 
process.  

3.6 Following the adoption of the Joint Local Development Plan in the summer of 2017, 
the Joint Planning Policy Unit has been working hard to develop and adopt 
supplementary planning guidance in order to expand upon the Planning policies.   
Two supplementary planning guidance were adopted in March 2019, and one in 
April. Other planning guidance are nearing completion and adoption; however, 
recent appeal determinations has led to reconsidering some aspects of the 
guidance. 

3.7 The purpose of the Public Protection Service is to support businesses and protect 
public health and environmental standards and trading standards for the public 
and ensure that licensable activities are provided in a way which protects the 
public and supports businesses. The Percentage of food establishments meeting 
the food hygiene standards (G6) measure notes that 99.15% of food establishments 
conform, with only 0.85% that fail, namely 18 business out of 2124. The service works 
with the failing businesses to rectify the situation.

3.8 The measures for the Percentage of food establishments that have received Food 
Hygiene (G8) and Food Standards (G9) inspections show that the service is still 
unable to complete Food Hygiene and Food Standards inspections in accordance 
with its programme. At the end of the previous period, 8.55% of the programmed 
Food Hygiene inspections, and 36.24% of the programmed Food Standards 
inspections had not been completed. This includes a backlog of residual 
inspections since 2018/19.

3.9 Having challenged their performance, the Service noted that the beginning of the 
year is traditionally a period of recording and putting everything in order following 
the previous year. The service is expected to improve their performance in relation 
to the programme in the next period, and visit a number of seasonal businesses. 
The service has recently received additional resources in order to assist them in 
coping with their work load. I have asked them to report on their progress in relation 
to the pledges made to the Food Standards Agency at the next performance 
challenging meeting.

Page 141



3.10 The information about the Average number of days taken to determine a taxi 
licence application (G7) demonstrates that their performance with regard to 
processing vehicle and company licences continues to be within two days on 
average. The performance of processing driver licences has remained stable on 
the whole, by reducing from 28 days to 18.22 days before returning to 25.69 days. 
A number of taxi driver licences have been renewed recently, as a number of 
drivers had come to the end of their three-year cycle. This means that a high 
number of applications have been processed swiftly, thus bringing the average 
down.

3.11 The Property Service is responsible for supporting the Council's Departments by 
providing suitable property in order to deliver services and ensuring that the 
Council's property portfolio is managed effectively and efficiently. 

3.12 We see that the data measuring the Time (in days) taken to complete a request 
for maintenance work (Eiddo1) has gradually improved over the past 12 months, 
from 8.4 days to 6.9 days. The positive impact of the new IT system can be seen 
here, which has facilitated work processes, and one of the Council's employed 
craftsmen has returned to work following sickness.

3.13 The Service reported that the performance of the  Percentage of maintenance unit 
customer satisfaction (Eiddo2) has deteriorated recently, falling from 10 out of 10 
in February 2019, to 8 out of 10 in April and May. According to the service, this 
follows the Falconer Electricals company going into liquidation. This company was 
one of the Council's main contractors in Meirionnydd, and there were 
considerable difficulties in offering a service in the area at short notice.

3.14 The Percentage of buildings with appropriate security systems in place (Eiddo4) 
performance measure has deteriorated substantially recently, from 91% in June 
2018 to 63% in December 2018.  In its report to the Cabinet, my predecessor noted 
that the Service had commissioned an external company to complete the work 
as a staff member was sick. The situation has since improved, as 76% of the 
buildings now have security systems in place. The service has also appointed a new 
officer to undertake the work, and I trust that the performance will return to its 
historic good performance.

3.15 It must be noted that the service would not let any Council buildings be unsafe for 
staff or the public. Any necessary inspections have been completed, and any risks 
have been managed with temporary measures being introduced if the matter 
cannot be permanently resolved immediately. The wording of this measure could 
be misleading, as it suggests that we have unsafe buildings in use. As this is 
incorrect, we will attempt to improve the wording in future to reflect the actual 
situation.

3.16 The Integrated Transport Unit measure in its entirety facilitates people's ability to 
travel from one place to another across a network which is safe whilst also raising 
their awareness of and educating them about safety.

3.17 The measures Number of complaints received about public transport services 
contracted to the Council (Cludiant02) and the Number of complaints received 
about commercial public transport services (Cludiant03) are important measures 
for the Service. The service has now changed to measuring the number of incidents 
that caused complaints, rather than the number of complaints received. This has 
derived from realising that all incidents have led to a number of complaints, and 

Page 142



therefore it is more meaningful to record incidents. Six incidents (two for Cludiant02, 
and four for Cludiant03) were recorded recently. It was noted that the Arriva 
company had been having problems with staff sickness and vehicles breaking 
down on the 3B service, as well as recently withdrawing from providing services. 
Since another company started providing the services, the number of complaints 
has fallen.

3.18 The Traffic, Projects and Street Works Unit is responsible for processing traffic orders.  
The time it takes to process traffic orders has now reduced to 174 days. The service 
has also done a lot of work to better understand the process, and the legal 
processes in particular. I am confident that this more in-depth understanding of all 
components of the process will lead to a further performance improvement.

3.19 The work of The Council’s Carbon Management Plan has led to a reduction in the 
Council's carbon emissions by 9.9% in the year between April 2018 and April 2019. 
The weather caused the emissions to increase slightly in the same period in 2018, 
but we can see the impact of the scheme on reducing emissions here, without 
severe weather affecting it. 

3.20 The task of identifying measures that reflect the work of the Countryside Service 
continues. It is likely that the measures will derive from the Service's Ffordd 
Gwynedd work, and I will report on it in future.

3.21 Three Ffordd Gwynedd reviews are in hand at present.  In the Planning field (run in 
parallel with the Building Control review), a great deal of analysis work has been 
carried out, and their findings have revealed fields for improvement. The 
Countryside Unit has commenced a review, and is busy collecting data and 
analysing their processes. The Estates and Facilities Unit is yet to begin, and have 
noted that they will be ready to begin the review in six months.

4 FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS 

4.1 Realising the Current Savings Schemes

4.2 All the savings plans of the Environment Department until the end of the 2018/19 
year have been realised. 

4.3 13 of the department's 2019/20 savings schemes have been completed, or are on 
track to being completed in time. One scheme, namely the Staff Travel savings, is 
awaiting the Cabinet's approval.

4.4 It was noted that there were risks involved with some of the Department's schemes: 
In relation to the scheme: Increase income by increasing the number of pay and 
display car parks, and increase parking fees whilst also considering whether to 
keep the cost of parking for residents at the same rate, or even lower, more 
development work needs to be done, including the Communities Scrutiny 
Committee in order to come up with innovative ideas. In relation to the scheme: 
Provide electric car charge points in car parks, again, there is a need to conduct 
more research in order to ensure that we provide the best service. In relation to the 
scheme: Reduce the resource within the Planning Policy Service, there is a need to 
act cautiously in order to achieve the saving by continuing to offer the service.

Views of the Statutory Officers:

Page 143



i. Monitoring Officer:

No observations to add in relation to propriety

ii. Head of Finance Department:

The report notes the situation of the Environment Department in terms of realising 
the savings schemes, with 13 of the 2019/20 savings schemes having already been 
realised or on track to being realised on time, and the risk involved with the three 
other savings schemes have been noted in part 4 of the report. Finance Officers 
will assist the responsible Cabinet Member in monitoring the progress against these 
schemes, and we will be in a position to further report on the progress following the 
next financial review.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures 

Page 144



Comments
The questionnaire is based on a sample of customers who have received a decision on a planning application during the period. The results show that the reasons for the
dissatisfaction of a small percentage of the customers are the dissatisfaction with the arrangements for contacting the Service and that there is no opportunity to discuss the
reasons for refusals. The comments regarding satisfaction include very positive comments about the service and the advice given by officers (despite the fact that the
application was refused in some cases). Nevertheless, it must be noted that many of the satisfied customers have added comments regarding the difficult system of getting
hold of a planning officer / contact arrangements and that the system of receiving pre-application advice and the opportunity to make amendments was to be welcomed. The
percentage of satisfied customers remains fairly consistent.

P
age 145

829222_118
Text Box
C1 - Percentage of customers who responded to a survey who noted that they were happy with the service level

829222_119
Text Box
Number of Satisfied Customers

829222_120
Text Box
Number of Customers Targeted

829222_121
Text Box
Number of customers

829222_122
Text Box
Data by application decision

829222_123
Text Box
Number of Customers who did not respond

829222_124
Text Box
Number of Dissatisfied Customers



Sylwadau
Mae’r nifer o ddyddiau mae ceisiadau ar gyfartaledd wedi cymryd i’w penderfynu ers Ebrill 2017 wedi bod yn eithaf cyson o gwmpas y 60 diwrnod. Mae’r perfformiad erbyn
hyn wedi ei rannu i ddangos cyfartaledd y cyfnod, cyfartaledd ceisiadau dirprwyedig a chyfartaledd ceisiadau a gyflwynwyd i’r Pwyllgor. Ers y cyfnod o fabwysiadu’r Cynllun
Dirprwyo newydd (1/5/18) mae’r cyfartaledd ar gyfer ymdrin gyda cheisiadau dirprwyedig (lliw melyn) wedi bod yn weddol gyson gyda'r cyfnod statudol ar gyfer ymdrin gyda
cheisiadau. Mae mabwysiadu’r Cynllun Dirprwyo newydd yn gyffredinol wedi golygu llai o geisiadau gerbron y Pwyllgor ac felly mae canran uwch o geisiadau yn cael
penderfyniad o dan y drefn dirprwyedig. Mae cyfartaledd amser ceisiadau sydd gerbron y Pwyllgor yn tueddu bod yn llawer uwch a hynny oherwydd fod natur y cais fel arfer
yn fwy cymhleth neu gynhennus lle o bosib fod negodi neu ddisgwyl gwybodaeth wedi digwydd er mwyn gallu gwneud argymhelliad clir ac hefyd mae hyn hefyd yn gallu cael
ei ddylanwadu gan y nifer o geisiadau sydd yn dod gerbron Pwyllgor ac unrhyw benderfyniad i ohirio. Noder fod cyfartaledd swyddogion yn ystod Mai 2019 yn uwch na’r arfer
– er hyn bu i 76% (78 o 102 cais) o’r ceisiadau gael eu penderfynu o fewn yr amser statudol ac felly mewn gwirionedd nifer isel o geisiadau sydd wedi dylanwadu ar y cyfartaledd
uchel sy’n cael ei adrodd ar gyfer y mis yma.

62 52 77 44 56 59 48 54 58 64 58 57 51 82

271

128

85

231

93

128
135

144

208

135

81

378

79

63 74

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

01/04/18 -
30/04/18
(78 Cais)

01/05/18 -
31/05/18
(94 Cais)

01/06/18 -
30/06/18
(94 Cais)

01/07/18 -
31/07/18
(86 Cais)

01/08/18 -
31/08/18
(70 Cais)

01/09/18 -
30/09/18
(105 Cais)

01/10/18 -
31/10/18
(92 Cais)

01/11/18 -
30/11/18
(88 Cais)

01/12/18 -
31/12/18
(95 Cais)

01/01/19 -
31/01/19
(98 Cais)

01/02/19 -
28/02/19
(86 Cais)

01/03/19 -
31/03/19
(88 Cais)

01/04/19 -
30/04/19
(96 Cais)

01/05/19 -
31/05/19
(102 Cais)

N
IF

ER
O

D
D

YD
D

IA
U

A
R

G
YF

A
R

TA
LE

D
D

CYFNOD A NIFER O PENDERFYNIADAU

C2 Pa mor sydyn mae'r holl geisiadau Cynllunio
ar gyfartaledd wedi cymryd i'w penderfynu

Cyfartaledd Swyddogion Cyfartaledd Pwyllgor Cynllunio Cyfartaledd y Cyfnod Cyfartaledd y flwyddyn Cyfnod Statudol: 56 diwrnod

P
age 146

829222_125
Text Box
Comments The number of days taken on average for applications to be determined since April 2017 has been quite consistent at approximately 60 days. By now, the performance has been divided to show the average time, average number of delegated applications and the average number of applications submitted to the Committee. Since the adoption period for the new Scheme of Delegation (1/5/18), the average time for dealing with delegated applications (in yellow) has been relatively in line with the statutory time for dealing with applications. Adopting the new Scheme of Delegation has also generally meant fewer applications going before the Committee and, therefore, a higher percentage of applications receive a decision under the delegation system. The average time for applications submitted to the Committee tends to be much higher due to the fact that the nature of the application is usually more complicated or contentious where, possibly, negotiation or awaiting information has taken place in order to be able to make a clear recommendation, and this can also be influenced by the number of applications that are submitted to Committee, and any determination to defer. It is noted that officers' percentage in May 2019 was higher than normal - nevertheless, 76% (78 of 102 applications) were determined within the statutory period, and therefore, in reality, it is a low number of applications that have influenced the high percentage that is reported for this month.

829222_126
Text Box
C2 - How quickly on average were planning applications decided

829222_127
Text Box
Period average

829222_128
Text Box
Officer Average

829222_129
Text Box
Committee Average

829222_130
Text Box
Year Average

829222_131
Text Box
Satutory Period, 56 days

829222_132
Text Box
Period and number of applications

829222_133
Text Box
Average number of days



Sylwadau
Mae’r canran o geisiadau sydd yn cael eu caniatáu yn weddol gyson ac yn parhau i fod yn dystiolaeth bendant o gysondeb a gwasanaeth cynllunio cadarnhaol. Noder y
gostyngiad bychan sydd yn dilyn y cyfnod o fabwysiadu’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar y Cyd diwedd Gorffennaf 2017 sydd wedi golygu fod rhai agweddau polisi wedi newid yn
sylweddol a’i bod yn debygol nad oedd rhai ymgeiswyr / asiantwyr yn ymwybodol o’r oblygiadau e.e. datblygiad oedd yn cwrdd ag anghenion y Cynllun Datblygu Unedol yn
flaenorol ond yn groes i bolisïau’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar y Cyd. Bydd parhau i annog defnydd o’r gwasanaeth cyn-cyflwyno cais hefyd o gymorth i sicrhau nifer uchel o
geisiadau yn cael eu cymeradwyo.

79.49

91.49

84.04

91.76

81.43

92.08

83.52

88.64

93.68

88.66

91.86

93.18

89.58

92.16

88.63

90.91

77.5

80

82.5

85

87.5

90

92.5

95

97.5

100

01/04/18 -
30/04/18
(62 Cais)

01/05/18 -
31/05/18
(86 Cais)

01/06/18 -
30/06/18
(79 Cais)

01/07/18 -
31/07/18
(78 Cais)

01/08/18 -
31/08/18
(57 Cais)

01/09/18 -
30/09/18
(93 Cais)

01/10/18 -
31/10/18
(76 Cais)

01/11/18 -
30/11/18
(78 Cais)

01/12/18 -
31/12/18
(89 Cais)

01/01/19 -
31/01/19
(86 Cais)

01/02/19 -
28/02/19
(79 Cais)

01/03/19 -
31/03/19
(82 Cais)

01/04/19 -
30/04/19
(96 Cais)

01/05/19 -
31/05/19
(102 Cais)

C
A

N
R

A
N

CYFNOD A NIFER O GEISIADAU

C3 Canran y ceisiadau cynllunio wedi eu pennu a gafodd eu cymeradwyo

Cyfartaledd y Cyfnod Cyfartaledd y flwyddyn

P
age 147

829222_134
Text Box
C3 - Percentage of planning applications approved

829222_135
Text Box
Period average

829222_136
Text Box
Cumulative average 17-18 & 18-19

829222_137
Text Box
%

829222_138
Text Box
Period and number of applications

829222_139
Text Box
CommentsThe percentage of applications that are approved is quite consistent and is still firm evidence of consistency and a positive planning service. It is noted that the decrease following the period of adopting the Joint Local Development Plan at the end of July 2017 has meant that some policy aspects have changed significantly and that it is likely that some applicants / agents were unaware of the implications, e.g. a development that met the needs of the Unitary Development Plan previously, but was contrary to the policies of the Joint Local Development Plan. Continuing to encourage the use of the pre-application service would also be useful to ensure a high number of applications being approved.



P
age 148

829222_140
Text Box
Number of enforcement cases requiring attention in 2019-20

829222_141
Text Box
Investigation Outcome

829222_142
Text Box
Average number of days  to investigate

829222_143
Text Box
Number of cases  to investigate

829222_144
Text Box
Percentage of enforcement cases investigated

829222_145
Text Box
Analysis according to risk



Sylwadau
Bwriad y dangosyddion yw mesur canran yr holl achosion y llwyddir i ymchwilio iddynt o fewn amserlen benodol. Nod hynny yw annog y Gwasanaeth i ddelio â phob
achos ar sail lefel blaenoriaeth ac mor gyflym a phosibl. Gall y cyhoedd wedyn weld canlyniad ymchwiliadau a'r camau sydd wedi eu cymryd i ddatrys y sefyllfa (ble
mae angen datrusiad). Mae’r dangosydd yma yn y broses o gael ei ddatblygu a’i fireinio er mwyn adnabod y nifer o achosion sydd yn parhau yn agored ac er adnabod
llwyth gwaith swyddogion a pherfformiad yr Uned Gorfodaeth yn ei gyfanrwydd at bwrpas rheolaeth effeithiol. Y nod yw gallu archwilio mwy o achosion, gan roi
blaenoriaeth i’r rhai risg uchel a chanolig yn y lle cyntaf a chael canran uwch o achosion ble mae camau cadarnhaol wedi eu cwblhau. Gan ddweud hyn mae’n rhaid
derbyn nad yw cymryd camau gorfodaeth ffurfiol yn broses sydyn ei natur oherwydd gofynion ymchwilio, gofynion statudol y broses a’r broses gyfreithiol o’i gwmpas.
Mae’n wir dweud fod canlyniad ymchwiliad yn aml yn gallu bod yn bwysicach na’r cyfnod o gymerwyd i ddelio gyda’r achos. Yn ddiweddar mae blaenoriaeth yr Uned
wedi bod ar apeliadau yn deillio o achosion gorfodaeth ac hefyd ar gyflwyno rhybuddion gorfodaeth ar yr achosion mwyaf difrifol.

P
age 149

829222_146
Text Box
Number of enforcement cases requiring positive steps 2019-20

829222_147
Text Box
Results of positive steps

829222_148
Text Box
Average number of days to  complete positive steps

829222_149
Text Box
Percentage of positive steps cases completed

829222_150
Text Box
Analysis by risk

829222_151
Text Box
CommentsThe intention of the indicators is to measure the percentage of all cases that were successful in being investigated within a specific time-scale. The aim of this is to encourage the Service to deal with each case based on its level of priority, and as swiftly as possible. The public can then see the outcome of the investigations and the steps taken to rectify the situation (where a resolution is required). This indicator is in the process of being developed and refined in order to identify the number of cases that are still open, and in order to identify officers' workload and the performance of the Enforcement Unit in its entirety for the purpose of effective management. The aim is to be able to investigate more cases, and prioritise the high and medium risk cases in the first instance, and have a higher percentage of cases where positive steps have been completed. Saying that, it must be accepted that taking formal enforcement steps is not a quick process due to the investigation requirements, the statutory requirements of the process, and the legal process surrounding it. It is true to say that the outcome of the investigation can often be more important than the time taken to deal with the case. Recently, the Unit has prioritised the appeals deriving from enforcement cases, and also on issuing enforcement notices for the most serious cases.



The policy measure since August 2017:

C5 - Adopt Supplementary Planning Guidance for the Joint Local Development Plan, including the adoption of four SPG by Quarter 3 of
2017-18 (this is what was noted in the monitoring framework for the Joint Local Development Plan)

Comments - Supplementary Planning Guidance

The SPG puts meat on the bones of the Local Development Plan policies, and gives guidance on the consistent implementation of the policies for officers and
prospective applicants for planning permission.

In previous performance monitoring reports, it was noted that the timetable noted above was agreed when the Service was awaiting the adoption of the Plan
earlier in 2017. The original timetable slipped because the Plan was not adopted until the beginning of Quarter 2 (2017-18), and therefore it was not practical
to put resources to one side to begin the work. After adopting the Plan, the Unit saw an increase in the demand for planning policy guidance from planning
officers associated with applying some new policies, and officers from the Joint Planning Policy Unit were off sick for relatively long periods of time. Together,
there were insufficient resources and reasonable time to be able to make significant progress to prepare the first series of SPG and it is likely that the risk
associated with this is that there will be a longer period of time where there is no detailed guidance on some planning policies of the LDP. A collaboration
agreement between the Joint Planning Policy Unit and the two Planning Services was agreed in May 2018 in order to ensure that the Unit can focus on giving
guidance on applications that raise substantial policy issues, and focus on the preparation work of the SPG.

The following table provides the latest information about the increase to prepare the first series of the SPG.

Name of the Supplementary Planning Guidance Status (November 2018)
Housing Mix Adopted October 2018

Tourism development - attractions and accommodation This was the subject of a public consultation, but amendments need to be
considered in light of the appeal decision, which will possibly require
another public consultation

Local Market Housing Joint Planning Policy Committee adopted on 22 March 2019

Open spaces within new residential developments Joint Planning Policy Committee adopted on 22 March 2019

Affordable housing Joint Planning Policy Committee adopted on 15 April 2019

Maintaining and creating sustainable communities Public Consultation December 2018 - January 2019, Scrutiny Committee 4
April 2019, and aim for 14 June 2019.

Planning obligations A public consultation was held, and a report will be given to the Joint Policy
Committee on 17 July 2019 for its adoption.

Converting buildings and re-building houses in the countryside A public consultation was held, and a report will be given to the Joint Policy
Committee on 17 July 2019 for its adoption.

P
age 150



Sylwadau
Mae’r ddarpariaeth o dai fforddiadwy yn golygu fod yr ACLl yn darparu lefel uwch o dai fforddiadwy na’r targed uchaf o fewn y CDLl sydd yn 30%. Mae hyn yn adlewyrchu’r
patrwm blaenorol a chadarnhaol ar gyfer nifer o dai fforddiadwy sy’n cael eu caniatau.

2

3

1

2

0 0
0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

N
if

er
o

U
n

ed
au

Ta
i

MIS

C6 - Nifer Cronnus o Dai wedi eu cymeradwyo yn
2019-20

Tai Tai Fforddiadwy Tai Fforddiadwy - Adran 106

Tai
60%

Tai Fforddiadwy
40%

C6 - Canran o Dai Fforddiadwy Ganiatawyd yn
2019-20

P
age 151

829222_152
Text Box
CommentsThe affordable housing provision means that the LA provides a higher level of affordable housing than the highest target within the LDP, which is 30%. This reflects the previous and positive pattern for the number of affordable housing that are approved.

829222_153
Text Box
C6 - Percentage of Affordable Houses Approved in 2019-20

829222_154
Text Box
Affordable Houses 

829222_155
Text Box
Houses

829222_156
Text Box
C6 - Cumulative number of houses approved in 2019-20

829222_157
Text Box
Houses

829222_158
Text Box
Affordable Houses

829222_159
Text Box
Affordable Houses - Section 106



Comments
The service has drawn up a new question procedure for the future, and these are expected to be trialled in the next period.
In the meantime, the Support team has already completed the questionnaires for April and May in accordance with the previous procedure in order to collect
some data.
One customer had stated his dissatisfaction because neither the officer nor the service had adequate statutory powers to solve a specific problem.

P
age 152

829222_160
Text Box
Percentage of customers that replied to a survey reporting that they were happy with the service level 

829222_161
Text Box
Number of satisfied customers

829222_162
Text Box
Total number of customers targeted

829222_163
Text Box
Data by unit

829222_164
Text Box
Satisified

829222_165
Text Box
Satisified

829222_166
Text Box
G1 - Percentage of customers that replied to a survey reporting that they were happy with the service level (1/4/19 - 31/5/19)

829222_167
Text Box
Dissatisfied

829222_168
Text Box
Dissatisfied



Comments
This measure has been adapted to report on the performance of holding food hygiene, food standards and animal health inspections A risk category premises (the
highest risk category) only.

3 Animal Health inspections have been completed. According to the chart, 10 appear to be late - historically, the programme was completed over a period of 12
months, with the vast majority of inspections being held in Quarters 3 and 4. We are in the process of amending the due date of the inspections and creating
scheduled actions as an APP in order to bring the programme forward, by beginning with the 10 inspections that appear as late.

P
age 153

829222_169
Text Box
G2 - Percentage of high risk businesses inspected according to the programme (1/4/19-31/3/20)

829222_170
Text Box
Inspected

829222_171
Text Box
Late

829222_172
Text Box
To do

829222_173
Text Box
Number of high risk businesses inspected according to the programme

829222_174
Text Box
Inspected

829222_175
Text Box
The Programme

829222_176
Text Box
Number of premises inspected

829222_177
Text Box
Number of premises where the inspection is late

829222_178
Text Box
Number of premises requiring inspection

829222_179
Text Box
April      May        June      July        August September October November December   January  February March



Comments
No businesses require an inspection until July 2019.

P
age 154

829222_180
Text Box
April      May        June      July        August September October November December   January  February March

829222_181
Text Box
G3 - Percentage of Air Pollution Process businesses that have been inspected during the year (1/4/19 - 31/3/20)

829222_182
Text Box
Percentage of Air Pollution Process businesses that have been inspected

829222_183
Text Box
to do

829222_184
Text Box
Number of Air Pollution Process businesses that have been inspected during the year

829222_185
Text Box
Inspected

829222_186
Text Box
Programme

829222_187
Text Box
Number of businesses inspected

829222_188
Text Box
Number of businesses where the inspection is late

829222_189
Text Box
Number of businesses requiring inspection



Comments
The FSA has a unique system in terms of feed enforcement - at the beginning of each financial year, the FSA asks each region to report on the number of premises due for a feed
visit on their data base (the Chief Officer of Wrexham leads on behalf of the North Wales region). The Chief Officer then allocates the visits that are due between the six authorities,
based on risk and premises type, e.g. Manufacturers A01, Mixer R10, Pet Foods Manufacturers R6, Farms (livestock) R13, etc. and the relevant authority receives a fixed payment
for each inspection (depending upon how much funding the FSA has to complete feed enforcement in Wales).

The FSA has not yet confirmed the number of inspections that are expected as part of this year's programme. Nevertheless, four properties have been inspected so far, whilst
carrying out inspections on the health of animals.
It is also noted that the FSA has selected the Regional Animal Feed Service in North Wales to receive an audit in 2019-20.
The plan is that they visit the Chief Officer in Wrexham for one day and then visit one other Authority in the Region on the second day (which could be Gwynedd). The Service will
receive two months' notice of the inspection date.

P
age 155

829222_190
Text Box
G4 - Percentage of animal feed premises inspected in accordance with the programme (1/4/19 - 31/5/19)

829222_191
Text Box
Percentage of animal feed premises inspected in accordance with the programme

829222_192
Text Box
Number of animal feed premises inspected in accordance with the programme

829222_193
Text Box
Inspected

829222_194
Text Box
To do

829222_195
Text Box
Programme

829222_196
Text Box
Inspected

829222_197
Text Box
April      May        June      July        August September October November December   January  February March

829222_198
Text Box
Number of businesses inspected

829222_199
Text Box
Number of businesses where the inspection is late

829222_200
Text Box
Number of businesses requiring inspection



Comments
In terms of Pollution Management and licensing - there has been a significant improvement in the number of crimes recorded in the field of licensing. Four records of licensing
offences are awaiting an update; but the offences have been resolved. Three cases of lawbreaking in pollution management matters which recently came to our attention are still
awaiting a resolution as an investigation is ongoing. There are two cases of incomplete recording, which need to be updated.

In terms of Trading Standards (Industry) & (Consumer) - One case has been resolved since the report ('bunk beds' now comply). The rest of the cases, including the joint cases with
the Police (that await a court date) are more complex Trading Standards cases, which include gathering and assessing evidence and, of course, a few cases could end up in court in
future.

Of the six significant offences noted for the Food Unit, five have been resolved, but the records have not been updated. One of the three offences that are still under consideration
by the health and safety team has also been resolved, but the record has not been updated.

P
age 156

829222_201
Text Box
G5 - Percentage of Crimes solved following an intervention by Public Protection (1/4/19 - 31/5/19)

829222_202
Text Box
Percentage of Crimes solved following an intervention by Public Protection

829222_203
Text Box
Number solved

829222_204
Text Box
Number discovered

829222_205
Text Box
Data by unit



Comments

The number of food establishments that reach the satisfactory food hygiene standard or above is high, with only 0.85% failing, which is 18 businesses. The
businesses that do not meet the satisfactory standard have already received a further comment to ensure that they do not continue to operate in a manner that
causes risk to the health of customers.

P
age 157

829222_206
Text Box
G6 - Percentage of food premises that reach Food Hygiene Standards (1/4/18 - 31/5/19)

829222_207
Text Box
Number complying

829222_208
Text Box
Number not complying

829222_209
Text Box
% Complying



Sylwadau
Gweler y sylwadau isod ynglyn a cheisiadau gyrrwyr tacsis.

42.13

47.32 46.88

42.36 41.85

38.92

28.47

21.15
19.10 18.62 18.64 18.22

28.13

25.69

0.40 0.29 0.25 0.25
1.50 1.77 1.85 1.83 1.76 1.66 1.60 1.74 1.77 1.67 1.63 1.70 1.11 1.58

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

01/04/18 -
30/04/18

01/05/18 -
31/05/18

01/06/18 -
30/06/18

01/07/18 -
31/07/18

01/08/18 -
31/08/18

01/09/18 -
30/09/18

01/10/18 -
31/10/18

01/11/18 -
30/11/18

01/12/18 -
31/12/18

01/01/19 -
31/01/19

01/02/19 -
28/02/19

01/03/19 -
31/03/19

01/04/19 -
30/04/19

01/05/19 -
31/05/19

N
IF

ER
O

D
D

YD
D

IA
U

G7: Cyfartaledd y dyddiau a gymerir i benderfynu cais Trwydded Tacsi (01/04/2018 - 31/05/2019)

Gyrwyr Gweithredwyr Cerbydau

P
age 158

829222_210
Text Box
CommentsSee the below comments regarding taxi driver applications.

829222_211
Text Box
G7 - Average days taken to make a decision on a Taxi License (1/4/19 - 31/5/19)

829222_212
Text Box
Drivers

829222_213
Text Box
Operators

829222_214
Text Box
Vehicles



Sylwadau
Mae’r mesuryddion a ddatblygwyd fel rhan o adolygiad Ffordd Gwynedd yn canolbwyntio ar brofiad y cwsmer o’r cyswllt cyntaf. Felly, mae cyfartaledd y dyddiau a gymerir i
benderfynu ceisiadau tacsi yn cael eu cyfri o’r achlysur cyntaf y daw cwsmer atom i wneud cais. Nid yw cais yn gallu cael ei brosesu a’i benderfynu tan mae yn gyflawn. O ran ceisiadau
am drwyddedau gyrwyr sydd yn cael ei nodi uchod, dau ffactor sydd yn effeithio yn sylweddol ar yr amser - sef yr amser mae’r Gwasanaeth DBS cenedlaethol yn ei gymryd i brosesu
tystysgrif DBS a’r amser mae’n cymryd i drefnu Is Bwyllgor Trwyddedu i gael gwrandawiad ar y cais. Golyga hyn fod cais o’r newydd llawer fwy tebygol o gymryd mwy o amser i’w
brosesu. Er bod gostyngiad cyffredinol yn yr amser a gymerir i brosesu ceisiadau o’r newydd mae peth cynnydd wedi bod ers diwedd mis Mawrth yn yr amser a gymerir i brosesu
ceisiadau adnewyddu yn ogystal â cheisiadau o’r newydd. Mae hyn oherwydd bod cyfartaledd uwch na’r arfer o geisiadau newydd ac adnewyddu wedi gorfod cael eu cyfeirio at
Bwyllgor am benderfyniad.

29 53 48 41 40 38 17158 19 9 5 13 161 31
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

01/04/16 - 30/09/16 01/10/16 - 31/03/16 01/04/17 - 30/09/17 01/10/17 - 31/03/18 01/04/18 - 30/09/18 01/10/18 - 31/03/19 01/04/19 - 31/05/19

LL
IN

EL
L

N
IF

ER
O

D
D

Y
D

D
IA

U
A

R
G

Y
FA

R
TA

LE
D

D

N
IF

ER
O

G
EI

SI
A

D
A

U

CYFNOD

G7 - Pa mor sydyn mae Trwyddedau Gyrwyr Tasci
ar gyfartaledd wedi cymryd i'w ganiatau

Nifer o geisiadau newydd Nifer o geisiadau adnewyddu
Cyfartaledd Ceisiadau Newydd Cyfartaledd Ceisiadau Adnewyddu

P
age 159

829222_215
Text Box
CommentsThe measures developed as part of the Ffordd Gwynedd review focus on customer experience from the first point of contact. Therefore, the average number of days taken to determine a taxi application is counted from the first occasion the customer comes to us to make an application. Applications cannot be processed and determined until they are complete. In terms of driver's licence applications noted above, there are two factors that have a significant impact on the time - namely the time the national DBS Service takes to process a DBS certificate, and the the time taken to arrange a Licensing Sub-Committee to hold a hearing on the application. This means that a new application is much more likely to take more time to be processed. Although there is a general reduction in the time taken to process new applications, there has been some increase since the end of March in the time taken to process renewal applications, as well as new applications. This is due to the fact that a higher than average percentage of new and renewal applicants needed to be referred to Committee for a decision. 

829222_216
Text Box
G7 - Average time taken to approve a Taxi Driver License

829222_217
Text Box
Number of new applications

829222_218
Text Box
New applications average

829222_219
Text Box
Number of renewal applications

829222_220
Text Box
Average of renewal applications

829222_221
Text Box
Number of applications

829222_222
Text Box
Average number of days (line)



Comments
The graph shows all food hygiene inspections that had been programmed for the year, including the backlog of inspections that should have been completed before the end of March 2019.

At the end of May, 59 programmed inspections had not been completed. Traditionally, officers spend the beginning of April inputting the information of the final quarter of the previous year into the
recording system. This means that the inspection programme for the new year does not begin until the end of April / beginning of May. The Service endeavours to prevent this work pattern by
programming the majority of the inspections to be completed in quarters 1-3.

It is expected that the effort will substantially increase over the coming months as we carry out inspections in seasonal businesses.

P
age 160

829222_223
Text Box
G8 - Percentage of food premises inspected according to the Food Hygiene Programme (1/4/19 - 31/3/20)

829222_224
Text Box
Number of premises inspected during the year

829222_225
Text Box
Programme

829222_226
Text Box
Inspected

829222_227
Text Box
Late

829222_228
Text Box
To do

829222_229
Text Box
Inspected

829222_230
Text Box
Number of food premises inspected

829222_231
Text Box
Number of premises where the inspection is late

829222_232
Text Box
Number of premises in need of inspection

829222_233
Text Box
April      May        June      July        August September October November December   January  February March



Comments
The graph shows all food standards inspections that had been programmed for the year, including the backlog of inspections that should have been completed before the end of
March 2019.

147 of standards inspections were still required by the end of March 2019, and had been transferred to this year's programme. At the end of May, there were 147 programmed
inspections that had not been completed, and 38 had been completed.

The effort to reduce this backlog will continue over the coming months.

See also the notes under the comments of indicator G8 in terms of amending the annual work pattern of officers.

P
age 161

829222_234
Text Box
G9 - Percentage of food premises inspected according to the Food Standards programme (1/4/19 - 31/3/20)

829222_235
Text Box
Inspected

829222_236
Text Box
Late

829222_237
Text Box
To do

829222_238
Text Box
Number of food premises inspected

829222_239
Text Box
Number of premises where the inspection is late

829222_240
Text Box
Number of premises in need of inspection

829222_241
Text Box
Inspected

829222_242
Text Box
Programme

829222_243
Text Box
April      May        June      July        August September October November December   January  February March

829222_244
Text Box
Number of premises inspected during the year



The performance has improved recently due to:

1. The new IT system has facilitated work processes, meaning that recording calls, sending orders and updating customers takes less effort. It has

also enabled us to discover recording weaknesses in an easier manner.

2. The impact of using our employed manual workers – it is likely that we would have seen this impact earlier, if it were not for the sickness

absence of one new member of staff.

3. New arrangements of paying invoices has been established – until recently, every staff member spent a portion of their time paying invoices.

Recently, this work is mainly completed by one staff member, which frees up time for the rest to focus on calls.

4. The new IT system has also facilitated our ability to identify errors with recording data.

EIDDO 1 –

The time taken (in days) to complete a request for maintenance work

P
age 162

829222_245
Text Box
June

829222_246
Text Box
July 2018

829222_247
Text Box
August 2018

829222_248
Text Box
September 2018

829222_249
Text Box
October 2018

829222_250
Text Box
November2018

829222_251
Text Box
December2018

829222_252
Text Box
January2019

829222_253
Text Box
February2019

829222_254
Text Box
March2019

829222_255
Text Box
April2019

829222_256
Text Box
May2019



By asking for a score out of 10, we receive very good feedback from our customers, and get to the core of their real opinion when they do not give a full

score. The feedback for the last two months has not been as good, and the main reason for this is the fact that one of our main electrical contractors

that served Meirionnydd and Dwyfor has closed unexpectedly. There is a lack of specialist contractors in these areas, and attempting to ensure a swift

response to our calls has proven difficult. It is likely that this will be reflected in our statistics for “the time taken to close calls” in due course. We were

already drawing up a business case to appoint our own electricians, and this recent change has driven us to attempt to move this forward with haste.

EIDDO 2 –

Number of customers (out of the 10 asked) who were completely satisfied with the service they received from the Maintenance Unit

P
age 163

829222_257
Text Box
June

829222_258
Text Box
July 2018

829222_259
Text Box
August 2018

829222_260
Text Box
September 2018

829222_261
Text Box
October 2018

829222_262
Text Box
November2018

829222_263
Text Box
December2018

829222_264
Text Box
January2019

829222_265
Text Box
February2019

829222_266
Text Box
March2019

829222_267
Text Box
April2019

829222_268
Text Box
May2019

829222_269
Text Box
May20

829222_270
Text Box
April2018

829222_271
Text Box
2017/18Period 3



EIDDO 3 –

The time taken (in days) to complete a request for Telecare

Before this work was transferred to the Maintenance Unit, the average time taken to deal with calls was approximately 53 days – the system has now

been transformed and the work processes are similar to the maintenance work processes. The average time taken to complete a request for Telecare

has reduced from 5 days to 4.2 days over the past year, as new staff familiarise themselves with the work in this field.

P
age 164

829222_272
Text Box
May20

829222_273
Text Box
June

829222_274
Text Box
July 2018

829222_275
Text Box
August 2018

829222_276
Text Box
September 2018

829222_277
Text Box
October 2018

829222_278
Text Box
November2018

829222_279
Text Box
December2018

829222_280
Text Box
January2019

829222_281
Text Box
February2019

829222_282
Text Box
March2019

829222_283
Text Box
April2019

829222_284
Text Box
May2019



EIDDO 4 –

Percentage of buildings with a full range of security systems in place.

The performance in this field has remained stable for nearly two years following the introduction of new working processes in light of the Ffordd

Gwynedd exercise. The exercise led to establishing a staff resource level that was the equivalent to the workload. Before Christmas, it was reported that

a staff member had been absence due to sickness, and there was no spare resource in the Unit that could cope with its specialist workload. It was

decided that it could not be delayed until the officer has returned to work due to the risks involved with this field, therefore an external company was

commissioned to assist us. Consequently, we have been able to restore the situation and see considerable progress in the last three months.

Nevertheless, the cost of using an external company is higher than completing the work internally. We are now in a situation to move forward to

appoint a new officer to complete the work, and are confident that further improvement will be seen once the officer has commenced in post.

P
age 165

829222_285
Text Box
Period 1   Period 2  Period 3  Period 4  Period 1  Period 2   Period 3

829222_286
Text Box
June

829222_287
Text Box
September 2018

829222_288
Text Box
October 2018

829222_289
Text Box
April2019

829222_290
Text Box
May2019

829222_291
Text Box
November 2018

829222_292
Text Box
Dec2018

829222_293
Text Box
Jan2019

829222_294
Text Box
Feb2019

829222_295
Text Box
March 2019



EIDDO 5 –

Number of customers (out of the 10 asked) who were completely satisfied with the service they received from the Pest Control Unit

The Pest Control Unit is a ‘commercial’ unit for the public and, therefore, it is essential that our customers believe that they are receiving an excellent

service for what they pay. Therefore, we are proud that this is a field where we consistently receive excellent feedback from our customers. Of the

two negative feedback we received over the past three months, one referred to a delay in receiving an invoice – we are aware that our invoicing

arrangements need to improve and work is underway to review these work processes.

P
age 166

829222_296
Text Box
Period 1  Period 2  Period 3      

829222_297
Text Box
June

829222_298
Text Box
September 2018

829222_299
Text Box
October 2018

829222_300
Text Box
April

829222_301
Text Box
May

829222_302
Text Box
July

829222_303
Text Box
August

829222_304
Text Box
April2019

829222_305
Text Box
May2019

829222_306
Text Box
November 2018

829222_307
Text Box
Dec2018

829222_308
Text Box
Jan2019

829222_309
Text Box
Feb2019

829222_310
Text Box
March 2019



EIDDO 6 –

Number of appeals to the independent adjudicators that are granted

Compared to the situation around two years ago, the number of appeals to the Independent Adjudicator has significantly reduced in light of

dealing with problematic locations such as the Square in Caernarfon. There was one appeal in April by an individual who alleged that there were

inadequate signage in the car park to notify him of the need to pay and display. Following the hearing, it could be proven that the driver had

passed by two signs on the way into the car park, and another two signs on the way out.

P
age 167

829222_311
Text Box
Period 1  Period 2  Period 3      

829222_312
Text Box
June

829222_313
Text Box
Sep 2018

829222_314
Text Box
Oct 2018

829222_315
Text Box
April

829222_316
Text Box
July2018

829222_317
Text Box
August 2018

829222_318
Text Box
April2019

829222_319
Text Box
May2019

829222_320
Text Box
Nov 2018

829222_321
Text Box
Dec2018

829222_322
Text Box
Jan2019

829222_323
Text Box
Feb2019

829222_324
Text Box
March 2019



EIDDO 7 –

Number of customers (out of the 10 asked) who were completely satisfied with the service they received from the Estates Unit

This new measure was established as we had known for some time that this unit was under pressure and was unable to cope with the workload that

they have. When asking for feedback, two negative observations are clear – issues take too much time to solve, or a lack of information/updates

during a case. There have been no complaints regarding the quality of the work completed or regarding the outcomes, and the respondents emphasise

this in their comments. We have taken many steps to strengthen the staffing resource that can be referred to this work, along with a slight change in

the distribution of duties, and this has led to an improvement in the feedback. We have also appointed a new officer to the team, who will commence

in post next month, and will hopefully lead to further improvement.

P
age 168

829222_325
Text Box
Period 2      Period 3      

829222_326
Text Box
June

829222_327
Text Box
Oct 2018

829222_328
Text Box
April

829222_329
Text Box
April2019

829222_330
Text Box
May2019

829222_331
Text Box
Nov 2018

829222_332
Text Box
Dec2018

829222_333
Text Box
Jan2019

829222_334
Text Box
Feb2019

829222_335
Text Box
March 2019

829222_336
Text Box
May



EIDDO 8 –

Percentage of carbon emission reduction from buildings thus far during the year

This year thus far, the total emissions are 9.9% lower than the same time last year. However, it must be borne in mind that the first three months of last

year was 25% colder than the previous year due to the Beast from the East. Therefore, last year, we were punished due to the weather; and, this year,

we are likely to benefit from the warmer weather. Of course, it is early in the year; however, at the moment, our gas usage is substantially lower than

last year, and our electricity usage has also reduced.

P
age 169

829222_337
Text Box
June

829222_338
Text Box
Sep 2018

829222_339
Text Box
Oct 2018

829222_340
Text Box
July2018

829222_341
Text Box
August 2018

829222_342
Text Box
April2019

829222_343
Text Box
Feb2019

829222_344
Text Box
March 2019



Transport and Road Safety Performance Report
Quarter 4 - 2018/19

Unit Tier Reference: Measure
Measure

Unit

Frequency

of

Reporting

2018-2019 Comments

Integrated

Transport

1 Cludiant 01 Percentage of public transport journeys

monitored (buses) which are within the

reliability limits (bus timings)

Percentage of public transport journeys

that are punctual

100% Every three

months

76% We have 36 services and we monitored 19 of them (at various times) during this

period.

Integrated

Transport

1 Cludiant 02 Number of complaints received about

public transport services contracted to the

Council (number rather than a percentage)

Number Every three

months

Two incidents A vast number of complaints were received regarding the 3B service (Arriva) - bus

running late or did not turn up. The public unhappy with the service. A response has

been received from Arriva, stating that vehicles had broken down and that drivers

were off sick.

Complaints that Arriva had stopped the 67S at short notice.

Integrated

Transport

1 Cludiant 03 Number of complaints received about

commercial public transport services

(number rather than percentage)

Number Every three

months

Four incidents A vast number of complaints were received regarding the 83/85/88 service (Arriva) -

bus running late or did not turn up, etc. The public unhappy with the service.

A number of enquiries and complaints by the public that Arriva had stopped these

services at short notice. Gwynfor Coaches had commercially taken over these services

from 1/4/2019 onwards. Complaints about bus 1N following the

incorrect route through Talysarn.

Road Safety 1 DFF 01 Percentage of attendees who have learned

to be safer on the roads as a result of the

lesson/training

Every three

months

- Durin the period, 559 customers who participated in various Road Safety sessions were

questioned. A summary of their responses is as follows:

Q1 What was your opinion of the session = 99.82%

Q3 What was your opinion of the facilitator = 100%

Q4 Do you believe that the content and the key messages in the session are useful for

young people = 100%

The Unit has completed its sessions with year 12 and 13 pupils on the Too Young to

Die campaign, namely a campaign to raise their awareness of the risks they face on the

roads - as passengers and as drivers. The Unit received very encouraging feedback

following the sessions, and this had a positive impact on the number of attendees for

our Pass Plus Cymru sessions.

The Unit was very busy holding various road safety activities with schools across

Gwynedd during the period, e.g. radar gun sessions, Kerbcraft, cycling, quiz, etc. Also,

Story Stacks sessions were held in nurseries, cylchoedd meithrin and libraries, as well

as baby set sessions at the clincs. In order to attempt to get the children to have a

better understanding of road safety, the Unit has begun to bring the element of play

whilst learning into the sessions.

DETAILS ABOUT THE SERVICE DETAILS OF MEASURES Period 4: January 2018 - March 2019

P
age 170



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

01/04 - 31/05/18 01/06 - 31/07/18 01/08 - 30/09/18 01/10 - 30/11/18 01/12 - 31/01/18 01/02 - 31/03/19

N
u

m
b

er
o

f
co

m
p

la
in

ts

Period

Cludiant 02 and 03 - Customer Satisfaction Chart (complaints about public transport services) 2018 - 19

Commercial

Contract

Commercial public transport
The number of complaints about Arriva services has increased substantially during the last year.
Buses randomly breaking down and services not operating. Bus Users Cymru have been
monitoring and have held a meeting with Arriva. They have a plan underway in order to improve
their maintenance programme over the coming months. Unfortunately, there is no quick fix!

Gwynfor Coaches / Dilwyn's Coaches have taken over the 83/85/88/67S services since 1/4/19.
The services have since improved.

Public transport under contract
- Buses failing to turn up (Arriva)
- The service to the college runs late due to traffic (Nefyn Coaches)
- A lack of bus services in the Dyffryn Nantlle Area
- A complaint that a bus had caught fire - Lloyds had explained that the brakes had
come on and took hold as the disabled ramp had not closed properly on the sensor.
- Complaints that the buses were full through Penygroes/Caernarfon/Bangor in the
mornings. Have arranged to provide a larger bus for the 5A journey.

P
age 171



-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

7/15/2018 8/15/2018 9/15/2018 10/15/2018 11/15/2018 12/15/2018 1/15/2019 2/15/2019 3/15/2019

P
ry

d
lo

n
d

eb
(m

u
n

u
d

au
)

Cludiant 01
A chart displaying the punctuality of buses

April 2018 to March 2019

Time of the Bus

Minimum

Maximum

Up to 1 minute early

Up to 5 minutes late

Traffic is very heavy in Bangor - has
affected the timing of the service

Traffic is very heavy in
Llanbedr, and has had a
considerable impact on
the timing of the
service

Traffic affecting the
service

Monitoring
Officer on
a
secondmen
t to another
post.
Therefore,
no
monitoring
work has
been
undertaken

Huw Bus Company Incident - unable to monitor.

Problems / bus had broken down

Accident on the road x 2

P
age 172



174 0

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

(i) CG56: Arfon
& Dwyfor Speed

05/02/2018

CG61:
Meirionnydd

Speed
06/07/2018

CG65: Arfon
Parking

16/07/2018

(ii) CG63: Arfon
One-way

03/08/2018

CG67:
Meirionnydd

Parking
05/09/2018

CG66: Arfon
Parking

24/09/2018

CG69A: Arfon
Parking

07/11/2018

CG70: Arfon
Parking

11/11/2018

CG69: Barmouth
Prom Clearway

28/11/2018

(iii) CG71: Arfon
Residential

Parking
25/03/2019

CG72: Arfon
Speed

27/03/2019

(iv) CG73: Arfon
Residential

Parking
25/03/2019

CG74:
Meirionnydd

Speed
18/03/2019

CG75: Arfon
Parking

04/04/2019

CG76: Parcio
Meirionnydd
05/04/2019

CG77: Arfon
Parking

30/04/2019

CG78: Dwyfor
Parking

12/05/2019

CG79: Arfon
Parking

28/05/2019

N
U

M
B

ER
O

F
D

A
Y

S

ORDER

T 01 - A chart displaying the time taken to process Traffic Orders and executing the works on site - 01/04/2019 - 06/06/2019

Traffic Unit: Application Assessment Legal: Preparing the Notice Legal: Statutory Period of the Notice Legal: Granting the Order In Traffic again In legal again

Traffic Unit: Commissioning the Work Contractor Completed Average UCL

Comments

(i) Waiting to complete the work of erecting signage on one of the sites

(ii) The order has come back to the Traffic Unit following objections. Discussions are ongoing with the objectors,
to attempt to come to an agreement.

(iii) Objections were received in the initial consultation. Therefore, it was determined not to proceed to the next
step.

(iv) Objections were received in the initial consultation. Therefore, it was determined not to proceed to the next
step.

P
age 173



CABINET CYNGOR GWYNEDD

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has been taking 
place in the fields within my remit as Cabinet Member for Highways and Municipal 
and Gwynedd Consultancy. This includes outlining where we have reached with 
measuring performance; and the latest in terms of savings and cuts schemes.

1.2. I will remind you that all matters have already been the subject of discussions and 
have been scrutinised at meetings of the Management Teams, which also included 
representatives from the relevant Scrutiny Committees.

1.3. On the whole, I am satisfied with the performance of the measures for which I am 
responsible.

Date: 16 July 2019
Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Municipal and Gwynedd Consultancy
Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report.
Cabinet Member: Councillor Catrin Wager
Contact Officer: Dilwyn Williams, Chief Executive

Page 174

Agenda Item 13



2. THE DECISION SOUGHT

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report. 

3. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION

3.1. In order to ensure effective performance management.

4. PERFORMANCE 

        Highways and Municipal Department

4.1   Maintaining a high quality local environment as well as the appearance of streets and 
public places is important to the residents of Gwynedd. The work of the Street 
Services Unit is to keep our streets clean and tidy and there are several measures 
which look at how well they do this. The performance of the Measure of the 
Cleanliness and Appearance of Streets (STS/005a Measure) this year to date is 
79% which shows an improvement on the performance at the end of 2018/19 
(74.1%). The measure of PAM/010 measures the percentage of streets with 
standard B, B+ and A out of the same sample.  As you can see, our score is 95.1% 
which is a significant improvement on the figure of 98.5% reported for 2018/19. As 
these two measures are so similar, it does not make sense to report on both and as 
the PAM/010 measure measures how many of the streets are clean, this is the one 
the Department will report upon in the future.

4.2 PAM/011 percentage of illegal tipping cleared within five days.  Previously, we 
measured our performance based on whether we had completed the work within five 
working days from receiving the request.  The measure has since changed, and the 
requirement of reporting now is the average time it has taken to clear the items 
from the time of receiving information about it.  Accordingly, this is reported 
against the new definition under reference (PAM/035) and our performance for this 
current period comes out at 1.76 days which is the same number of days as 2018/19.  

4.3 The Waste and Recycling Service is responsible for dealing with waste in a 
sustainable way. I am satisfied with the performance of most measures for this 
service but I will draw your attention to the following points. 

4.4 It is noted that the Percentage of urban waste collected by the Local Authority 
and prepared for reuse, recycling or composting (Measure WMT/009) has 
remained constant from 63.3% in 2018/19 to 63% for the period from April to May 
2019/20. The current performance signifies a substantial increase compared with 
55.25% in 2014/15, 58.70% in 2015/16 and 62.34% in 2016/17 and 60.01% in 
2017/18. Welsh councils must currently recycle or compost 58% of all refuse 
collected from our homes. The target will increase to 64% by March 2020.  Gwynedd 
Council must now encourage many more of us to recycle and compost our waste; 
otherwise, Gwynedd Council could start facing substantial financial fines.

4.5 The performance of the Percentage of urban waste sent to landfill (WMT/004) 
measure is lower this year for the period from April to May, at 19% compared to 38% 
for 2018/19. This improvement could be attributed to the fact that more municipal 
waste had been treated through the incineration process and, consequently, had not 
been sent to landfill.

Page 175



4.6 It was noted that Performance Measure THS/009, namely the number of days 
taken on average during the year to repair all faults in street lamps is 2.6 days 
thus far for 2019/20, which is an improvement compared to 2.77 days for the year 
2017/18 but slightly lower than the 2018/19 performance of 2.5 days. Note that this 
is the Unit's performance alone and not the actual figure for the people of Gwynedd 
as the lamps which Gwynedd Council asks Scottish Power to repair are not included 
in this. I have asked the Department to review this and report the actual figure and I 
will include this in my next performance report.

5.     UPDATE ON PROJECTS 

5.1   In the previous report, it was noted that a substantial programme was ongoing to 
replace our street lights and signs with LED technology.  In 2015/16, 1,709 
street lighting units and signs were replaced with LED with 3,418 additional ones 
replaced in 2016/17, and 3,472 in 2017/18 and 1,680 in 2018/19. It was noted that 
the new three-year programme to replace the remaining 7,778 lights is underway.  
As a result of these changes it is anticipated that we will reduce energy costs, 
reduce carbon emissions and prevent light pollution.  It is noted that 700 lamps 
have already been replaced during the first two months of 2019/20. 

5.2   It was noted that a scheme is underway to introduce changes to the waste 
collection system in order to make improvements and savings. It is noted that the 
period of consultation with the workforce has ended and the work of engaging with 
the residents affected is currently underway, with information packs sent to 
residents during the week of 17 June 2019 and letters to traders during the week of 
21 July 2019. It was noted that the change would be operational in the Dwyfor area 
on 1 July. 

         

5.3   It was noted that a Scheme to Review the Council’s Fleet Management in order 
to make Savings is currently underway. As a part of the Scheme, the Department 
had been investigating whether there are any benefits of having electric vehicles 
and I have asked the Department to be more ambitious when experimenting with 
electric vehicles. I will report on the progress of this scheme in my next 
performance report.   

       

5.4    A Scheme is underway to modernise the Closed circuit television service in the 
County from an analogue system to a digital system. This Scheme is on track to be 
operational in October. It was noted that discussions were continuing with the City 
and Town Councils in order to establish new operational agreements. 

       

5.5    It was noted that the Department was currently implementing recommendations 
stemming from an Investigation by the Communities Scrutiny Committee into the 
expectations, requirements, resources and performance of the Street 
Enforcement Service. I have asked the Department to meet with me and the 
Senior Officers in order to set a direction and be clearer in terms of where we are 
going with this scheme and also to discuss the wider community aspirations in the 
field of the cleanliness of streets and the local environment.     

Page 176



6.   Gwynedd Consultancy Department

6.1 One main measure has been identified for this Department, namely Profit against 
target. It is noted that the situation is fairly positive at present with projections for the 
latest NET situation for April to June 2019/20 showing a profit deficit of £28,710.  
Looking back at historical patterns, due to the nature of client work, this figure is often 
lower in the first Quarter, therefore, at present, I am not concerned about this.  

6.2 The Building Control Unit is responsible for ensuring that building work meets 
building standards. The Unit has developed a series of performance measures (see 
attached table). The information for customer satisfaction (Measure BC-02) for 
Quarter 1 2019/20 is a satisfaction score of 9.75 out of 10, which is consistent with 
the 2018/19 performance of 9.6 out of 10. Work is underway to establish the reason 
for any dissatisfaction.

6.3 It is noted that the time from receiving notification of a dangerous structure to 
securing it is 1 day. This is consistent with the performance of 2017/18 and 2018/19.

7.     UPDATE ON PROJECTS 

7.1 It was noted that the project to inspect and record the condition of the County's 
assets continues. In 2018/19 it was noted that there was a priority to record the 
condition of coastal assets. It was noted that the work programme for 2019/20 focuses 
on scoring our land drainage assets. It was noted that the land drainage assets are 
inspected regularly but the scoring system will change this year in order to comply 
with the national system. It is noted that this will give us a comprehensive picture of 
the condition of our assets and how vulnerable or not they are.    

7.2 It was noted that the Water and Environment Service attracts grant funding to 
undertake case studies or design work to reduce the risk that exists in areas of 
Gwynedd. These are all communities that have either suffered in the past, or where 
there is strong evidence that climate change is likely to increase the risk in future. It 
was noted that work was progressing on six Schemes currently but that financial 
issues were a cause of concern with the Northern Prom at Barmouth and concerns 
about the Hirael Bay scheme. It was noted that a substantial scheme was underway 
in the centre of Llanberis to reduce the flood risk. It is good to be able to report that 
the Service has succeeded to attract grants for schemes in the Ogwen and Pwllheli 
Catchment Area. I will report on the progress of these schemes in my next report. 

8. FINANCIAL SITUATION / SAVINGS

8.1Highways and Municipal Department

8.1.1 Previous Years Schemes 

The efficiency savings schemes up to and including 2018/19 have been realised in full 
other than £33,000 of the Close 50 out of 73 of the county's public toilets scheme 
which is slipping, with the Service looking at an alternative scheme to realise the 
remaining savings by restructuring and also increased savings stemming from the CCTV 
scheme to be used to make up the difference.  

Page 177



8.1.2 2019/20 Savings Schemes
    

Eight of the 2019/20 savings schemes have either been realised or are on track to be 
realised on time before the end of the financial year.  It was noted that there was 
concern regarding the scheme to increase street enforcement income by fining 
more individuals who drop litter and as I have already noted, the Department will 
address this scheme as a matter of priority.

8.1.3 Saving Schemes for 2020/21 onwards

The Department has highlighted three scheme for which delivery is at risk. With the 
Scheme Transferring Playing Fields to others, it was noted that there were some 
risks to delivering, with the Scheme slipping or failing. With the Scheme to Rationalise 
Fleet Workshops from 3 to 2 in the County, it was noted that there were significant 
risks to delivering in full or partly.  I will report on the progress of these schemes in my 
next report. 

8.2 Gwynedd Consultancy Department

8.2.1 Previous Annual Schemes 

The Gwynedd Consultancy Department has achieved all its efficiency schemes and cuts 
up to and including 2018/19.  

8.2.2 2019/20 Savings Schemes

Two of the 2019/20 savings schemes have been realised and the rest are on track to be 
realised on time before the end of the financial year. 

9. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

9.1None to note.

10.ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE 
DECISION

10.1 Views of the Statutory Officers:

i. Monitoring Officer:
No observations to add in relation to propriety.  

ii. Statutory Finance Officer:

The report notes the situation of the Highways and Municipal Department 
in terms of realizing the savings plans, with eight of the plans for 2019/20 
already realized or on track to achieve timely, whilst risks are attached to 
the other plans are set out in part 8 of the report.

      It is encouraging to see in section 8.2 that Gwynedd Consultancy has 
either realized or is on track to realize the savings plans for 2019-20.

Page 178



      Finance Officers will assist the responsible Cabinet Member to monitor 
progress against these plans, and we will be in a position to report further on 
the progress following the next financial review.

      I note that the Recycling performance of the County is stable in section 4.4 of 
the report, but that there is a need to ensure that the Council reaches the 
target of 64% by 2020 in order to avoid any financial penalties that could be 
substantial.  

10.2 Views of the Local Member:

10.2.1 Not a local matter.

10.3 Results of Any Consultation:

10.3.1 None to note.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures for Highways and Municipal and Gwynedd 
Consultancy

Page 179



Performance April - May 2019-20
Highways and Municipal

Service Heading

Annual 
Performance 

2013-14

Annual 
Performance 

2014-15

Annual 
Performance 

2015-16

Annual 
Performance 

2016-17

Annual 
Performance 

2017-18

Annual 
Performance 

2018-19

Annual 
Performance  

2019-20

Highways  
THS/011a Percentage of main roads (class A) 

which are in a poor condition 4.40 3.50 3.1 3.5 3.2 3.3

Highways  
THS/011b Percentage of roads (class B) which 

are in a poor condition 4.70 3.70 3.4 3.9 3.8 3.8

Highways  
THS/011c Percentage of roads (class C) which 

are in a poor condition 14.70 14.2 15.8 15.2 14.1 14.5

Highways  

THS/009 Number of calendar days taken on 

average during the year to repair all faults in 

street lamps 2.70 3.50 2.76 2.52 2.77 2.5 2.6

Highways  

PB8 Percentage of incidents of dangerous 

damage to roads and pavements which were 

repaired or made safe within 24 hours of the 

time that they were reported. 97.20 97.00 97.8 98 98 97 97

Highways  
PB9 Percentage of safety inspections 

completed within the specified time. 98.30 98.00 99 99 99 99 99

P
age 180



Eitem 5

Service Heading

Actual 

2014-15

Actual 

2015-16
Actual 

2016-17
Actual 2017-

18
April - July 

2018-19

April - 
October 2018-

19
April - March 

2018-19
April - May 

2019-20

Street Services 
Unit

STS/005a A Measure of the Cleanliness and 

Appearance of Streets 
70.65 76.26 75.7 71.95 74.5 74.1 74.1 79

Street Services 
Unit

PAM/010 Percentage of clean streets

94.3 96.7 96.55 94.10 98.04 98.5 98.5 95.1

Street Services 
Unit

PAM/035 Average number of work days taken to 

clear illegal tipping incidents
96.5 96.50 97.90 97.00 1.76 1.76 1.76 1.76

Street Services 
Unit

PB15 Percentage of graffiti/posters which hide 

traffic signs and cause dangers, cleaned/cleared 

within 24 hours of the time that they are reported. 100 100.00 100 100 100 100 100 100

Street Services 
Unit

PB16 Percentage of racist/offensive graffiti/posters 

on Council property, cleaned/cleared within 5 

working days of the time that they are reported.

100 100.00 100 100 100 100 100 100

Waste and 
Recycling

WMT/004 Percentage of urban waste sent to 

landfill
43.33 34.34 30.62 24.33 57 46 38 19%

Waste and 
Recycling

WMT/009 Percentage of urban waste collected by 

the Local Authority and prepared for reuse, 

recycling or composting

55.25 58.7 62.34 60.01 74.5 63.19 63.3 63%

Waste and 
Recycling

PB51 Percentage of commercial 

recycling/composting levels

35.45 41.44 40.5 44.34 44% 43% 48% 48% 47%

Waste and 
Recycling

PB60 Maximum tonnage of landfilled 

biodegradable waste (landfill allowance)
18603 8147 16989 8103 448.41 3697 42% 50%

P
age 181



Eitem 5

Performance April - May 2019-20
Ymgynghoriaeth Gwynedd

Heading 2014-15 Annual 
Performance

 2015-16 Annual 
Performance

2016-17 Annual 
Performance

2017-18 Annual 
Performance 

2018-19 Annual 
Performance 

Quarter 1                       
2019-20 

Performance

Profit against the target £21,256 -£34,118 £95,619 £81,695 £58,744 -£28,710

Heading
Performance 

2016-17

Performance 

2017-18

Performance 

2018-19

Performance 

Quarter 1 

2019-20

BC-01 Time from receiving the Building 
Regulations application to approval 70.78 days

BC-02 Customer satisfaction survey, the 
average score given by clients for their 
building control service (Figure given out 
of a maximum satisfaction score of 10)

9.3 9.6 9.6 9.7

BC-03 Time from receiving notification 
of a dangerous structure to "made safe" 1 day 1 day 1 day 1 day

BC-04 Time from receiving street 
"naming and numbering" application to 
confirmation of registration

8.8 days

BC-05 Percentage of decisions made to 
the statutory deadline (5 weeks) 67.35%

BC-05 Percentage of decisions made to 
the statutory deadline (8 weeks)

89.55%

New measure for 2019-20

New measure for 2019-20

New measure for 2019-21

New measure for 2019-22

P
age 182



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet

Date: 16 July 2019
Title of Item: Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for 

Adults, Health and Well-being 
Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report
Cabinet Member: Councillor Dafydd Meurig
Contact Officer: Morwena Edwards, Corporate Director 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has taken place 
in the areas within my remit as Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Well-being.  
This includes reporting on the Improvement Priorities of the department, outlining 
where we have reached with measuring performance; and the latest in terms of 
savings and cuts schemes.

1.2. I will remind you that all matters have already been the subject of discussions and 
have been scrutinised at performance challenge meetings, which also included 
representatives from the relevant Scrutiny Committees.

1.3. On the whole, I am satisfied with the performance of the measures for which I am 
responsible.

Page 183

Agenda Item 14



2. THE DECISION SOUGHT

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report. 

3. THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION

3.1. In order to ensure effective performance management.

4.     THE DEPARTMENT’S PRIORITIES 

4.1 Brief progress reports are submitted below on the improvement programmes of the 
Department, of which have been noted in the Council Plan 2018 - 2023. The 
Department has prepared action plans for the three priorities, and milestones have 
been set for the period.

4.2 It is important for me to draw the attention of members to the intertwinement 
between the following projects and the broader transformation that derives from the 
Healthier Wales programme.  As members will be aware, the North Wales Region 
has managed to attract one-off additional resources from Welsh Government.  The 
most relevant in terms of this field of work is, Community Transformation, Learning 
Disabilities and Mental Health.  We are collaborating on these programmes with 
the Health Board (West Area) and Isle of Anglesey Council.  The Integrated Group 
that leads on this Programme reports to the Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Service 
Board.  Therefore, our intention is to seek to bring the work streams below and this 
transformation programme together, where appropriate.

4.3 Therefore, with that context, this is a summary of progress for the Projects within 
the Council Plan.

4.3.1 Purpose of the Re-designing Care Services Project is to ensure that we    
work in a way that focuses on what matters to people who receive health and care 
services by trialling and developing new and innovative ways of working.

4.3.2 You will be aware that the five Area Teams have been established and the 
Department is now reporting that the Teams are experiencing stability and have 
begun identifying specific priorities within each area. For the measure, OED23 
Percentage of older people with physical disabilities where progress is seen 
with achieving what is important to them, 85 assessments have been completed 
thus far this year. Of the 85 assessments, 82.4% (namely 70) of Gwynedd clients 
note that we had done what mattered to them. The data being collected is not yet 
complete, and it does not reflect the obstacles that are being seen. In order to 
examine this, a Task Group has been established to carry out the work of ensuring 
that the data is more complete and that we are reporting correctly. I will review this 
measure with the department on a regular basis. Of course, the information behind 
the measure is the most important element and the Department is striving to collect 
the stories where we have not succeeded to achieve 'what matters'. A support 
programme has now been created to support staff and leaders in the five Areas, in 
order to support them further with the journey in terms of good practice and 
changing culture. I can see clear enthusiasm within teams and managers to remove 
the obstacles that prevent us from achieving what matters to people. Consequently, 
we look at performance from the perspective of the people.   

Page 184



4.3.3 It is noted that the linguistic element is raised by many of the teams with concern 
that it is very difficult to keep a linguistic balance within the Integrated team.  It is 
noted that there is a tendency for discussions, which include non-Welsh speaking 
colleagues, to be held in English only. It is noted that this is a concern and that the 
department will examine the matter as a priority over the coming year. The Director 
will follow up on the matter through her contacts with the Health Board and the 
North Wales More Than Just Words Forum. I would like Members to consider 
whether or not they believe this would be a matter that a Welsh Language sub-
group from the Public Services Group could consider as a specific project.

4.3.4 It is noted that one of the main concerns of the Department is the lack of 
assessment beds for individuals with dementia at Ysbyty Cefni, Llangefni. In 
addition, there is a lack of CPN nurses across Gwynedd. This shortage holds puts 
many developments on hold as it is increasingly difficult to support individuals with 
intense needs in our communities without this specialist support. The lack of 
doctors who can carry out "Section 12" assessments also creates problems in the 
Mental Health field. The Director has written to the Health Board to raise the matters 
once again and it is noted that a meeting has been arranged between Gwynedd 
Council and the Health Board to discuss this as a matter of urgency.

4.3.5 In addition to the above problems, the service highlighted that accommodating 
young people with physical disabilities is difficult and that they are considering 
opportunities with the Housing Department as well as examining developments that 
are in the pipeline or newly opened developments to see whether it is possible to 
consider using them in a more flexible manner. Clearly, I will be requesting regular 
updates from the Service on the matter and ensuring that these matters are 
addressed within our Housing Strategy for the People of Gwynedd.

4.3.6 The Department also highlighted some Safeguarding matters. You will be aware of 
the 'County Lines' problem which is a challenge across North Wales. The 
Department highlighted that they are starting to see examples of 'County Lines' and 
'Cuckooing' within the field of older people. Clearly, this is a worrying situation and 
the Department is working with the Learning and Development Service to identify 
how to support the workforce with this type of cases. I will also escalate the matter 
with the Council’s Strategic Safeguarding Panel.

4.3.7 There is some slippage against the performance measures in the safeguarding field 
with 'Percentage of the adult safeguarding referrals completed during the 
year, where the risk has been controlled' at 69%. The work of scrutinising the 
background information has taken place and I understand that this deterioration 
relates to six individuals who refused intervention. With the exception of these 
individuals from the measure, performance is 84% which continues to be positive 
despite the slippage. The Department highlighted that there was some frustration 
in relation to arrangements to refer Safeguarding matters, for example lengthy 
documentation and the emphasis on completing the forms. The Department will 
therefore proceed to undertake a 'Ffordd Gwynedd' intervention to identify the 
problem and to ensure that our arrangements are effective and focus on our efforts 
on the individuals. I look forward to giving you an update. This again reflects the 
change of culture that is at work within the Department. 

The programme of investing in the Council’s care homes continues, with the 
intention of ensuring suitable care locally. These specialist dementia units are part 

Page 185



of joint efforts by the Council and the Health Board to ensure that older people gain 
access to the specialist care and health services they require within their 
communities.

4.3.8  

4.3.9 The Learning Disabilities Service continues to measure 'What matters' with the 
performance of the year thus far at 63.6% The service has been working on 
adapting this measure in order to ensure that we report comprehensively and the 
"partly" category has now been noted. This has led to a measure that conveys a 
more realistic performance. However, the service continues to better review 
outcomes and focus on knowing the story behind what matters to individuals. The 
main themes in terms of identified obstacles are:- problems with Continuing Health 
Care arrangements, matters regarding accommodation for some individuals and 
the need to improve suitable employment opportunities. The service is working on 
identifying solutions for the above obstacles and I will monitor the situation on a 
regular basis.

4.3.10 A lot is happening within the learning disabilities field with various plans at work, 
which includes the development of community hubs. I have highlighted the need 
for the service to ensure that these developments are developed in a manner that 
intertwines with other fields of work, e.g. health and care hubs. Several 
transformation work streams linked with ‘A Healthier Wales’ are in the pipeline and 
it is essential that we maximise all opportunities to collaborate and work in an 
integrated manner in order to avoid duplication, to avoid working in silos and to 
create a healthcare system that is simple and related to Gwynedd residents. To 
this end, I have challenged the Service to ensure that they hold these discussions 
with our partners across the sector. It is noted that a project is afoot at Tan y Marian, 
Pwllheli to transform the respite support provision. I will report on the progress of 
this work in my next report.  

4.3.11 The purpose of the Community Resilience project is to build on the strengths 
within our communities and seek to co-produce a full range of preventative support 
in order to make it easier for people to continue to live independently in their 
communities. 

4.3.12 It was noted that the IAA Service (Information, Advice and Assistance) has been 
incorporated within the five Community Resource Teams and it has celebrated its 
first birthday. A detailed work programme is in place to develop the service further.

4.3.13 By now, the Llŷn Team has established a task group to look at improving the IAA 
provision and to move away from receiving referrals only and to seek a solution at 
the time for the citizen, if possible. I am pleased to report that the team has taken 
ownership for this change and the new procedure has been operational for a few 
weeks. Early evidence indicates that the quality of referrals has improved, and that 
individuals receive advice and information in a timely manner without delay.

4.3.14 Members will be aware that the North Wales Carers' Strategy has now been 
adopted which acknowledges the importance of working in partnership with carers 
of all ages. The strategy has led to developing and co-producing an 'offer' for 
carers, which includes the service standards that partners are committing to deliver. 
The department reported how they would proceed over the next few months with 
the action plan to ensure that we commit in full to the standards, identifying the 
obstacles and how it would be possible to resolve them. In terms of the Annual Page 186



Questionnaire that is sent to Carers as part of Welsh Government requirements, it 
was seen that 53.8% of Gwynedd Carers had reported that they "can do the things 
that matter to me", with 38.3% reporting that this occurred occasionally, and the 
rest saying that they could not do the things that mattered to them. This gives us 
an idea of the opinion of carers and this, along with more detailed information from 
individuals, will enable us to measure the success of our developments in the field. 
In addition to this, the Department will proceed to develop further measures within 
the field of carers by the next reporting cycle.

4.3.15 Another scheme involved with community resilience is 'Bridging the Generations' 
and this looks at improving how different generations connect.  An output from this 
will be seeking to prevent loneliness by bringing everyone together to undertake 
fun and interesting activities. Over the past few moths, the Well-being Unit has 
been working with the Head of Grŵp Llandrillo Menai Site in Dolgellau on a pilot 
programme between their students and older people. A successful pilot was 
undertaken where individuals who lived in the community came to the college, and 
also at the Cefn Rodyn residential home, to work with students on different 
activities.  In future, this will become a part of the curriculum of some courses and 
this pilot will also be disseminated to other College sites. I intend to hold a 
discussion with some of my fellow members on this field to see whether or not there 
is an opportunity to increase the awareness of other Council departments of this 
agenda.  

4.3.16 It is good to be able to report that the ‘Dementia Go’ project is going from strength 
to strength and has a far-reaching influence on changing the stigma associated 
with dementia.  We will build on this good work in 2019/20 with additional activities 
such as a gardening project with homes and walking football.

4.3.17 The purpose of the The Workforce and Recruitment within the Care Field 
project is to ensure that we genuinely understand the problem of recruiting in the 
care field in Gwynedd. 

4.3.18 The lack of domiciliary care provision is still a problem in every part of the County 
and domiciliary care staff are totally essential to support older people at home for 
as long as possible. You will be aware that the Domiciliary Care Plan has been 
experimenting with new ways of commissioning domiciliary care. We anticipate that 
work to transform Domiciliary Care will undoubtedly lead to improving the status 
and image of domiciliary care posts in future. The change involves entrusting in 
front line staff, home carers becoming part of a wider team and by highlighting a 
potential career path in the field. It is noted that communication and marketing 
permeates through all work streams of course and are totally essential to the 
success of Council efforts to recruit and retain experienced staff in future.  

4.3.19 We continue to try to identify gaps that exist in terms of specialist skills.  One way 
of doing this is by analysing patterns that are highlighted as part of the recruitment 
process. One specific example of this is the role of the Occupational Therapist.  In 
response to this, good examples exist in terms of collaborating with Colleges such 
as Glyndŵr University which has led to the development of a part-time 
Occupational Therapist course.

Page 187



4.3.20 Clear themes have been identified through the detailed work of understanding the 
recruitment problem in Gwynedd and these themes have been submitted to the 
Care Scrutiny Committee. Consequently, the Department has formulated a detailed 
work programme and they will report on the progress of the priority at performance 
challenge meetings. By improving the employment terms of workers in this field 
and marketing this, it is hoped that it will increase the status and image of the field 
as a career path and attract more interest in the field. I look forward to giving you 
an update.

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

5.1 It can be seen that performance measures have been incorporated within the report 
where relevant, but I would like to make my fellow members aware of a Welsh 
Government consultation on National Measures within the Health and Care field. 
The measures presented to us in the consultation do not measure the value for the 
individual. The measures continue to guide us to measure extensive managerial 
data and leads us to measure the wrong things. We have considerable concern 
regarding Welsh Government direction with these national measures and the 
opinion is the same across Wales. On behalf of the Council, I will be sending a firm 
letter to Welsh Government to voice our opinion and highlight the direction we are 
taking in Gwynedd.

5.2 There was no opportunity to challenge the Provider or Mental Health field during 
the performance challenge meeting. I am looking forward to receiving information 
about these services at the next meeting and am very eager to understand the 
measures linked with these services.  

6.     FINANCIAL SITUATION / SAVINGS

6.1 Previous Years’ Schemes 

6.1.1 All savings and cuts for 2016/17 have been realised.

6.1.2 With 2017/18 Schemes, the Department anticipates risks in delivering the savings 
of one scheme, namely Improving the efficiency of field workers. Is there a need to 
state how the Department intends to deal with the risk?

6.1.3 With 2018/19 Schemes, the Department anticipates a risk in delivering the 
remaining efficiency savings, valued at £64k, on the scheme to Automate the 
Department’s financial processes. In order to meet this deficit, the Department will 
consider whether or not it is possible to deliver the savings though alternative 
methods.  

6.1.4 Substantial risks are anticipated from realising the savings on the Prudent 
commissioning - Mental Health Service scheme, namely a total of £100k. There is 
an intention to review the situation in full over the coming months when the 
Department will consider re-profiling or introducing alternative delivery methods.  

Page 188



6.1.5 The Department anticipates some risks from delivering the savings from the 
Integrating and transforming Older People Services scheme, a balance of £510k. 
The Department has provided an additional resource in three areas and hopes to 
make further appointments by using the resource of the Health Board and the 
Integrated Care Fund (ICF) to support and strengthen this work. 

 6.1.4 2019/20 Savings Schemes
    

All savings schemes from the new 2019/20 system, with the exception of one, 
have either been realised, are on track to be delivered on time or are moving 
forward. The one with risks in delivering the savings is the Extend the Principles 
of the Alltwen Pilot Scheme across the service, a value of £133,500 in 2019/20. 
The Department has provided an additional resource in three areas and hopes to 
make further appointments by using the resource of the Health Board and the ICF 
to support and strengthen this work. 

Several other potential challenges face the Department but I believe that ICF 
(Welsh Government) schemes and the transformation bids will lead to realising the 
savings.

6.1.6 By looking at the current financial projections, the Department notes a risk of 
significant overspend at the end of this financial year. The overspend is mainly 
within the Provider Service. The Department believes that most of this overspend 
is involved with arrangements within the domiciliary care field. In response, you will 
be aware that extensive work is taking place to seek to provide this service in a 
more efficient manner by means of our Domiciliary Care Plan. Furthermore, 
detailed analysis work needs to be undertaken in order to understand the budget 
properly and to particularly understand what leads to the overspend. The Finance 
Department and the Adults, Health and Well-being Department highlighted the 
need for an additional resource to undertake this work and I am very eager for this 
work to proceed and to identify the resource that is required.

One of the main overspend challenges of the Department is Continuous Health 
Care (CHC) which is a matter that requires attention and early resolution. It is an 
increasing challenge to seek the agreement of Health on CHC contributions. There 
is constant disagreement and delay on decisions regarding packages and 
contributions which leads to costs for staffing resources etc. as well as an impact 
on the service and care that Gwynedd residents receive. I am aware that the Health 
Board is undertaking a piece of work on CHC and that the Director will contribute 
to this field of work and share the evidence we have of obstacles within the current 
system. Evidence of work taking place in Tywyn by merging budgets also offers 
learning and lessons in order to steer the matter towards an early resolution.

 
7. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE

7.1 None to note.

8. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE 
DECISION

Page 189



8.1 Views of the Statutory Officers:

i. Monitoring Officer:

ii. Statutory Finance Officer:

8.2 Views of the Local Member:

8.2.1 Not a local matter.

8.3 Results of Any Consultation:

8.3.1 None to note.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures - Adults, Health and Well-being Department. 

Page 190



National Performance Indicator
Summary of national performance indicator with trends over time

Date Indicator Worth Status Last 
Year Wales Against 

Wales Trends

30/06/2018 The percentage of safeguarding adults referrals that have 
been made during the year where the risk has been 
managed

94.1 -3.57% 97.6

30/06/2018 The percentage of safeguarding adults referrals that have 
been made during the year where the risk has been 
managed – excluding those that declined

94.1 -1.96% 96

30/06/2018 The percentage of adult protection enquiries completed 
within statutory timescales 83.3 -10.72% 9.3

30/06/2018 The percentage of adults who have received support from 
the information, advice and assistance service and have 
not contacted the service again during the year

58.8

30/06/2018 The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care 
reasons per 1,000 population aged 75 or over 1.9 -63.67% 5.2 5.34 -64.49%

30/06/2018 The average length of time older people (aged 65 or over) 
are supported in residential care homes 865.5

30/06/2018 Average age of adults entering residential care homes
86.2

30/06/2018 The percentage of adults who completed a period of 
reablement and have no package of care and support 6 
months later

59.1

30/06/2018 The percentage of adults who completed a period of 
reablement and have a reduced package of care and 
support 6 months later

34.1

P
age 191



OED23 – WE DID WHAT MATTERED – ADULTS
Date 2017-18 2018-19 Total

GW – Adult Team Alltwen (Central) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
GW – Adult Team Bangor 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
GW – Adult Tim Caernarfon 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
GW – Adult Team South Meirionnydd 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
GW – Adult Team Llyn 97.6% 100% 97.9%
Total 99.0% 100% 99.3%

OED24 – WE DID WHAT MATTERED – LEARNING DISABILITY
Date 2017-18 2018-19 Total

Learning Disability 97% 98.4% 97.5%
Total 97% 98.4% 97.5%

SAFEGUARDING AND QUALITY INDICATORS 
Date Indicator Worth Status Target Previous 

Period
Comparison to 
the previous Trends

31/10/2018 The percentage of safeguarding adults referrals that have 
been made during the year where the risk has been 
managed

85.7 -11.27 96.6 83.33 +2.86%

31/10/2018 The percentage of safeguarding adults referrals that have 
been made during the year where the risk has been 
managed – excluding those that declined

88.9 -9.57 98.3 90.91 -2.22%

31/10/2018 The percentage of adult protection enquiries completed 
within statutory timescales 71.7 -19.17 87.90 79.17 -10.25%

P
age 192



PMA 19 – Rate of delay for Social Care reasons per 1000 of the population over 75 years of age

P
age 193



FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET

Date of discussion at the 
Cabinet

Items to be discussed Cabinet Member

Quarter 2 2019/10 – 
1 July – 30 September

23 July Service Improvement Annual 
Report

Cllr Nia Jeffreys

Ffordd Gwynedd Scheme Cllr Nia Jeffreys
Annual Employment Report Cllr Nia Jeffreys
Sustainable Procurement 
Policy

Cllr Nia Jeffreys

Recommissioning Domiciliary 
Care Provision

Cllr Dafydd Meurig

2020/21 Financial Plan Cllr Ioan Thomas 
Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Support 

Cllr Nia Jeffreys

Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Children 
and Supporting Families 

Cllr Dilwyn Morgan

Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for 
Education

Cllr Cemlyn Rees Williams

Performance Report of the 
Cabinet Member for Housing 

Cllr Craig ab Iago

17 September Permit Introduction Scheme 
(Use of vans on visits to 
recycling centres) 

Cllr Gareth Griffith

Ysgol Abersoch Cllr Cemlyn Williams
Quarter 2 2019/10 – 
1 July – 30 September
Date to be determined

Page 194

Agenda Item 15



Date of discussion at the 
Cabinet

Items to be discussed Cabinet Member

Llanbedr Scheme Cllr Gareth Griffith
Quarter 3 2019/20 – 
1 October – 31 December
15 October 2019/20 Revenue Budget –

End of August Review
Cllr Ioan Thomas

2019/20 Capital Programme 
– End of August Review

Cllr Ioan Thomas

2019/20 Savings Overview: 
Progress Report on Realising 
Savings Schemes

Cllr Ioan Thomas 

Cabinet Forward Work 
Programme

Cllr Dyfrig Siencyn

Page 195


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 MAY
	6 PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER FOR BANGOR
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Public Spaces Protection Order for Bangor
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Public Spaces Protection Order for Bangor
	Item 6 - Appendix 3 - Public Spaces Protection Order for Bangor
	Item 6 - Appendix 4 - Public Spaces Protection Order for Bangor

	7 PRIMARY SCHOOL MEAL PRICE SEPTEMBER 2019
	Item 7 - Appendix - Primary School Meal Price September 2019

	8 ARFOR INNOVATION FUND
	9 HOUSING STRATEGY 2020-21
	Item 9 - Homes for the People of Gwynedd
	Item 9 - Equality Impact Assessment

	10 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
	Item 10 - Appendix - Performance Indicators

	11 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE
	Item 11 - Appendix 1 - Performance Data
	5708-7_-_Yswiriant_19.20.pdf
	Graffiau Yswiriant Ch 1 19.20.pdf
	8155-Archwilio_Mewnol-EN.pdf
	Cyflogau 19.20-E.pdf
	Graffiau Cyflogau Ch. 1 2019-20.pdf
	5707-4_-_Taliadau_19.20.pdf
	Taliadau CD6.01.pdf
	CD6 02 Anfonebau Lleol 19-20.pdf
	8155-Naratif_-_TG_Systemau_cefnogol-EN.pdf
	5709-8_-_TG_19.20.pdf
	8155-TG_Isadeiledd-EN.pdf
	5709-10_-_Pensiynau_19.20.pdf
	Pensions Graphs Q1 2019.pdf
	5709-9_-_Cyllid_a_Chyfrifeg_19.20.pdf
	5707-3_-_Incwm_19.20.pdf
	Incwm Graff Dyledion  6mis.pdf
	5707-2_-_Budd-dal_19.20.pdf
	Graffiau Budd-daliadau.pdf
	8155-Trethi-EN.pdf
	5709-11_-_Buddsoddi_a_Rheolaeth_Trysorlys_19.20.pdf


	12 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR THE ENVIRONMENT
	Item 12 - Appendix 1 - Performance Data
	8055-PAPUR_2_Perfformiad_CYNLLUNIO-EN.pdf
	8055-PAPUR_2_Perfformiad_GYC-EN.pdf
	8056-PAPUR_4_Perfformiad_Eiddo-EN.pdf
	8057-PAPUR_3_Perfformiad_Cludiant_a_DyFf-EN.pdf
	8057-PAPUR_3__Siart_Bodlonrwydd_Cwsmer-EN.pdf
	8057-PAPUR_3_Prydlondeb_Bysiau_-EN.pdf
	8057-PAPUR_3_Gorchmynion_Traffig-EN.pdf


	13 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR HIGHWAYS AND MUNICIPAL AND GWYNEDD CONSULTANCY
	Item 13 - Appendix - Performance Measures

	14 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT'S, HEALTH AND WELL-BEING
	Item 14 - Appendix  - Performance Indicators

	15 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

